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PART |

This Report contains statements which constitute@dod-looking statements within the meaning of BecP7A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934s&hstatements appear in a number of places iRégert and include all statements
regarding the intent, belief or current expectagiohthe Company, its directors or its officershwigéspect to, among other things: (i) the
Company's financing plans; (ii) trends affecting ompany's financial condition or results of ogierss; (iii) the Company's growth strategy
and operating strategy; and (iv) the declaratiath gayment of dividends. Investors are cautionetiahg such forwardeoking statements a
not guarantees of future performance and invobiksrand uncertainties, and that actual resultsdiffgr materially from those projected in
the forwardlooking statements as a result of various fact@sugsed herein and those factors discussed iil ietlae Company's filings wit
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY
General

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") wasripa@ted on June 23, 1995 to serve as a bank lgotdimpany for The First, A
National Banking Association ("The First" or t‘Bank”) located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Thedtibegan operations on August 5, 1996
from its main office in the Oak Grove community,iegthwas on theutskirts of Hattiesburg but now is included in dity of Hattiesburg. Th
First currently operates its main office and twarlwhes in Hattiesburg, one in Laurel, one in Puniig in Picayune, one in Pascagoula, one
in Bay St. Louis, one in Wiggins, four in Gulfpooe in Biloxi, one in Long Beach and one in Diamllogad, Mississippi, as well as one
branch in Bogalusa, Louisiana and five branchégaildwin County, Alabama. See Note C of Notes tostdidated Financial Statements for
information regarding branch acquisition. The Compand its subsidiary bank engage in a general aantial and retail banking business
characterized by personalized service and locasieemaking, emphasizing the banking needs of ktmahedium-sized businesses,
professional concerns and individuals. The Firstwgholly-owned subsidiary bank of the Company.

Location and Service Area

The First serves the cities of Hattiesburg, LauPekvis, Picayune, Pascagoula, Bay St. Louis, Wigigsulfport, Biloxi, Long Beach
and Diamondhead, Mississippi; Bogalusa, Louisi@aphne, Fairhope, Foley, Gulf Shores and OrangetBedabama, and the surrounding
areas of Lamar, Forrest, Jones, Pearl River ,Jacktancock, Stone and Harrison Counties in MiggmsWashington Parish in Louisiana;
and Baldwin County in Alabama. The main office panity serves the area in and around the northertiogpoof Lamar County. The Purvis
office primarily serves the area in and around RBuMississippi, which is in the east-central pEramar County and is the county seat.
Lamar County is located in the southeastern sedtidnississippi. Hattiesburg, one of the largesiesiin Mississippi, is located in Forrest ¢
Lamar Counties. Major employers located in the Liaamal Forrest County areas include Forrest Gehtspital, the University of Southern
Mississippi, Wesley Medical Center, Camp Shelbg, Hattiesburg Public Schools, the Hattiesburg €lithie City of Hattiesburg, and
Marshall Durbin Poultry. The principal componentshe economy of the Lamar and Forrest County airedgde service industries,
wholesale and retail trade, manufacturing, andspartation and public utilities. The Laurel offiserves the city of Laurel and the
surrounding area of Jones County, Mississippi, Withmajority of its retail business coming frome tbcal area and the remaining business
coming from other areas of Jones County, as wedbasons of Jasper County, Wayne County, Smithr®guand Covington County. Major
employers in the Jones County area include Howsdtddtries, Sanderson Farms, Inc., and South Cd&tigibnal Medical Center. The
Picayune office primarily serves the area in amiad Picayune, Mississippi, including areas of métancock County and Pearl River, LA
and Slidell, LA. Picayune is located in the southgart of Pearl River County. Pearl River Countipisated in the southern section of
Mississippi. Major employers in the Pearl River @guarea include Stennis Space Center, ChevrorgcieXArizona Chemical, American
Crescent Elevator Co., City of Picayune, Crosby Meat Hospital and the public schools. The printig@mponents of the economy of the
Pearl River County area include timber, serviceigides, wholesale and retail trade, manufactuingl, transportation and public utilities.
The Pascagoula and Ocean Springs offices primseitye the area in and around Pascagoula and Opeagss Mississippi, including areas
of Jackson County. Major employers in the Jacksoan®y area include Northrop Grumman, Singing RKespital, and Shell Oil Company.
The Bay St. Louis and Diamondhead offices serveityeof Bay St. Louis, Diamondhead and the surthng area of Hancock County,
Mississippi. Major employers in the Hancock Couatga include the City of Bay St. Louis, Hancock @guand Stennis Space Center. The
Wiggins office serves the city of Wiggins and tlereunding area of Stone County, Mississippi. StGoenty is south of Forrest County and
north of Harrison County. The Gulfport, Biloxi, ahdng Beach offices serve the city of Gulfport dhd surrounding area of Harrison
County, Mississippi. Major employers in the Harrigdounty area include Keesler Air Force Base analsharray of casinos. The Bogalusa
office serves the city of Bogalusa and the surrcumdrea of Washington Parish, Louisiana. The majoployers in the Washington Parish
area include Temple-Inland, the Bogalusa SchodieBysand LSU-Washington/St. Tammany Regional Mddigater. The Fairhope,
Daphne, Foley, Gulf Shores and Orange Beach offieege their respective cities as well as the smding area of Baldwin County,
Alabama. Major employers in the Baldwin County aredude Baldwin County Board of Education, Wal-M&uper Centers, Infirmary
Health, UTC Aerospace Systems, and South BaldwgidRel Medical Center.




Banking Services

The Company strives to provide its customers withlireadth of products and services comparablesetoffered by large regional

banks, while maintaining the quick response andqel service of a locally owned and managed bardkddition to offering a full range of
deposit services and commercial and personal |@dresFirst offers products such as mortgage lo&ins.following is a description of the
products and services offered or planned to beaidfey the Bank.

Deposit ServicesThe Bank offers a full range of deposit services Hre typically available in most banks and sawiagd loan
associations, including checking accounts, NOW aetsxy savings accounts, and other time depositaridus types, ranging from
daily money market accounts to longer-term cedtis of deposit. The transaction accounts anddentéicates are tailored to the
Bank's principal market area at rates competitivihose offered by other banks in the area. Allbdépmccounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDig'Xo the maximum amount allowed by law. The Baolicis these accounts
from individuals, businesses, associations andmizgtions, and governmental authorities. In addjtihe Bank offers certain
retirement account services, such as Individuar&uaent Accounts (IRAS’

Loan ProductsThe Bank offers a full range of commercial and pead loans. Commercial loans include both secunedumsecure
loans for working capital (including loans secubgdinventory and accounts receivable), businesarmsipn (including acquisition «
real estate and improvements), and purchase opeguit and machinery. Consumer loans include edjuig of credit and secured
and unsecured loans for financing automobiles, hiompeovements, education, and personal investm&hts Bank also makes real
estate construction and acquisition loans. The Bdehkding activities are subject to a variety efiding limits imposed by federal
law. While differing limits apply in certain circustances based on the type of loan or the natuteedforrower (including the
borrower's relationship to the Bank), in general Bank is subject to a loans-to-one-borrower limfian amount equal to 15% of the
Bank's unimpaired capital and surplus. The Bank naymake any loans to any director, executiveceffior 10% shareholder
unless the loan is approved by the Board of Dimsotd the Bank and is made on terms not more fdblert® such a person than
would be available to a person not affiliated vitie Bank.

Mortgage Loan DivisionsThe Bank has mortgage loan divisions which originaans to purchase existing or construct new homes
and to refinance existing mortgag

Other ServiceOther Bank services include on-line internet bagldarvices, voice response telephone inquiry sereimmercial
sweep accounts, cash management services, safgtdepcees, travelers checks, direct deposit of ghgnd social security checks,
and automatic drafts for various accounts. The Bamlssociated with the Interlink, Plus, Pulser,Stad Community Cash networks
of automated teller machines that may be useddB#nk’s customers throughout Mississippi and otegions. The Bank also
offers VISA and MasterCard credit card servicesuigh a correspondent bai




Competition

The Bank generally competes with other financiatitations through the selection of banking prodwaid services offered, the
pricing of services, the level of service providétk convenience and availability of services, tneddegree of expertise and the personal
manner in which services are offered. Mississippi permits statewide branching by banks and sawirggutions, and many financial
institutions in the state have branch networks.gegnently, commercial banking in Mississippi ishtygcompetitive. Many large banking
organizations currently operate in the Company'sketarea, several of which are controlled by dustate ownership. In addition,
competition between commercial banks and thriftiusons (savings institutions and credit uniohap been intensified significantly by the
elimination of many previous distinctions betweke various types of financial institutions and ¢éxpanded powers and increased activity of
thrift institutions in areas of banking which prewsly had been the sole domain of commercial bdféderal legislation, together with other
regulatory changes by the primary regulators ofvdm@ous financial institutions, has resulted ia #imost total elimination of practical
distinctions between a commercial bank and a tmsfitution. Consequently, competition among ficiahinstitutions of all types is largely
unlimited with respect to legal ability and authytio provide most financial services.

The Company faces increased competition from bedlerally-chartered and state-chartered financiadlthnift institutions, as well as
credit unions, consumer finance companies, ins@aonmpanies, and other institutions in the Compamgrket area. Some of these
competitors are not subject to the same degreegoflation and restriction imposed upon the Compktany of these competitors also have
broader geographic markets and substantially greegeurces and lending limits than the Companyaddfedt certain services such as trust
banking that the Company does not currently pravid@ddition, many of these competitors have namgibranch offices located throughout
the extended market areas of the Company that mosyde these competitors with an advantage in ggagc convenience that the Company
does not have at present.

Currently there are numerous other commercial hasdsngs institutions, and credit unions operaimdhe First's primary service
area.

Employees
As of March 20, 2014 the Company had 257 full-tieneployees and 9 part-time employees.
Recent Developments

On March 3, 2014, the Company entered into an Agese and Plan of Merger (the “Agreement”) with B&BIding Company,
Inc., an Alabama corporation (“BCB”) and parenBafy Bank, Mobile, Alabama. The Agreement provides,tupon the terms and subject to
the conditions set forth in the Agreement, BCB wiktrge with and into the Company (the “Merger”) &&y Bank will merge with and into
The Bank (“Bank Merger”). Subject to the terms andditions of the Agreement, which has been apptdoyethe boards of directors of the
Company and BCB, each outstanding share of BCB aomrstock, other than shares held by the CompaBC&, or, shares with respect to
which the holders thereof have perfected dissenigigs, will receive (i) for the BCB common stotkat was outstanding prior to August 1,
2013, (x) $3.60 per share which may be receivezhéin or Company common stock provided that at Rt of the aggregate consideration
paid to such shareholders is in Company commork stod (y) one non-transferable contingent valubtrifCVR”), and (ii) for the BCB
common stock that was issued on August 1, 20125%2er share in cash. Each CVR is eligible to rexaicash payment equal to up to $C
with the exact amount based on the resolution dhteidentified BCB loans over a three-year peffoitbwing the closing of the transaction.
Payout of the CVR will be overseen by a special mittee of the Company board of directors. The Campaill also either assume or
redeem in full a note payable by BCB to Alostar Bas well as the preferred stock issued under tl8e Treasury’s Capital Purchase
Program. The total consideration to be paid in eation with the acquisition will range between apgmately $6,239,890.25 and
$6,611,762.25 depending upon the payout of the @¥Rell as the price of the Company common stocthertlosing of the transaction,
which is subject to a cap and a collar regardiggiice.




Concurrently, Company and BCB will enter into amesgnent and plan of merger pursuant to which B@Bislly-owned subsidiary, Bay
Bank, will be merged with and into The Bank.

The Agreement contains customary representatiothsvamranties from both the Company and BCB and &a¢k agreed to customary
covenants, including, among others, covenantsimglab (1) the conduct of BCB'’s businesses durhmgihterim period between the execution
of the Agreement and the completion of the Mer{frcooperation with respect to the filing of regpolry approval applications by the
Company, The Bank, BCB and Bay Bank regarding tleegdr, the Bank Merger and the transactions coriegatpthereby. BCB has also
agreed, subject to certain exceptions, not toqlgisproposals relating to alternative businesmbination transactions or (b) enter into any
discussions, or enter into any agreement, conagroinprovide confidential information in connectiwith, any proposals for alternative
business combination transactions.

Completion of the Merger is subject to certain ogsry conditions, including, among others, (1) iigicef all required regulatory approvals,
(2) the accuracy of the representations and waesaof the other party, and (3) performance imadterial respects by the other party of its
obligations under the Agreement.

The Agreement contains certain termination rigbtstie Company and BCB, as the case may be, apf@icgon: (1) June 30, 2014, if the
Merger has not been completed by that date, (2),firon-appealable denial of required regulatograyals or an injunction prohibiting the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement, (3gadh by the other party that is not or cannotuseat within 30 dayshotice of such breau
if such breach would result in a failure of the ditions to closing set forth in the Agreement, 4 the failure of any of the conditions
precedent to the obligations of either party tostanmate the Merger have not been fulfilled and caonhave not otherwise been cured or
waived. The Company may terminate the Agreemetitérevent that the BCB board of directors withdrafvfails to give their
recommendation at the BCB shareholder meeting jproapes any alternative transaction or makes any tolao so. In such event, BCB will
pay the Company a termination fee of $350,000 iBB0Obsequently consummates or enters into an agreemconsummate an alternative
transaction. If the Company willfully breachesatsigations under the Agreement which causes thredgents termination, it will reimburs
BCB for its reasonable costs incurred up to $250,00

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The Company and the Bank are subject to stateedetdl banking laws and regulations which imposeifip requirements or
restrictions on and provide for general regulatmrgrsight with respect to virtually all aspectopgrations. These laws and regulations are
generally intended to protect depositors, not di@ders. To the extent that the following summaggaibes statutory or regulatory
provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by reémce to the particular statutory and regulatogyisions. Any change in applicable laws or
regulations may have a material effect on the lmssirand prospects of the Company. Beginning wétetractment of the Financial
Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act@89 ("FIRREA") and following with the Federal pasit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA"), and now mostemtly the sweeping Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refond @onsumer Protection Act of
2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), numerous additionajutatory requirements have been placed on the bgnkdustry in the past several years,
and additional changes have been proposed. Thatapes of the Company and the Bank may be affduyddgislative changes and the
policies of various regulatory authorities. The Qamy is unable to predict the nature or the extétiie effect on its business and earnings
that fiscal or monetary policies, economic contoolnew federal or state legislation may have ftiure.




Legislative and Regulatory Initiatives and Comp®&ayticipation

The Congress, Treasury Department and the fedenditg regulators, including the FDIC, have takesal action since early
September 2008 to address volatility in the U.Skbgy system. In October 2008, the Emergency Ecan&tabilization Act of 2008
(“"EESA”) was enacted. The EESA authorized the TugaBepartment to purchase from financial instdos and their holding companies up
to $700 billion in mortgage loans, mortgage-relatedurities and certain other financial instrumeiniduding debt and equity securities
issued by financial institutions and their holdogmpanies in a troubled asset relief program (“TARH he purpose of TARP was to restore
confidence and stability to the U.S. banking sysgem to encourage financial institutions to inceetheeir lending to customers and to each
other. The Treasury Department allocated $25@hilowards the TARP Capital Purchase Program (“GRRrsuant to which the Treasury
Department purchased debt or equity securities frarticipating institutions. The TARP also inclddhe Community Development Capital
Initiative (“CDCI"), which was made available ortly certified Community Development Financial Ingiibns (“CDFIs”) and imposed a
lower dividend or interest rate, as applicablenttite CPP funding. Participants in the TARP argesuitio executive compensation limits and
are encouraged to expand their lending and mortlyegemodifications.

On February 6, 2009, as part of the CPP, the Coynpatered into a Letter Agreement and Securitigstiiaise Agreement
(collectively, the “Purchase Agreement”) with theedsury Department, pursuant to which the Compald/(§ 5,000 shares of the
Company’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Prefedtedk, Series UST (the “CPP Preferred Stock”) @ha warrant (the “Warrant”) to
purchase 54,705 shares of the Company’s Commork 8ioan exercise price of $13.71 per share. Orie®aiper 29, 2010, after successfully
obtaining CDFI certification, the Company exiteé tBPP by refinancing its CPP funding into lowertc@®ClI funding and also accepted
additional CDCI funding. In connection with thistisaction, the Company retired its CPP PreferreckStnd issued to the Treasury
Department 17,123 shares of the Company’s Fixed Ratnulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Seriest@®“CDCI Preferred Stock”).
Including refinanced funding and newly obtaineddimg, the Company’s total CDCI funding is $17,1Z80

The CDCI Preferred Stock qualifies as Tier 1 cagital, provided that the Company maintains its C8ligibility and certification,
is entitled to cumulative dividends at a rate of &6 annum until 2018, and 9% per annum theredfter. Warrant has a 10-year term and is
immediately exercisable upon its issuance, aneiigscise price is subject to anti-dilution adjustise

In order to benefit from the lower dividend rats@sated with the CDCI Preferred Stock, the Compamgquired to maintain
compliance with the eligibility requirements of t8®FI Program. These eligibility requirements irdguthe following:

« The Company must have a primary mission of prongotimmmunity development, based on criteria sehfortl2 C.F.R. 1805.201

(b)(1);

« The Company must provide Financial Products, Dearaknt Services, and/or other similar financing aselominant business
activity in arn’ s-length transactions, as provided in 12 C.F.R. IB0Kb)(2);

- The Company must serve a Target Market by servirgos more Investment Areas and/or Targeted Papofatsubstantially in the
manner set forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)

« The Company must provide Development Services mueetion with its Financial Products, either ditgcthrough an Affiliate, or
through a contract with a thi-party provider, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.2)#(b

« The Company must maintain accountability to redislefithe applicable Investment Area(s) and/or &g Population(s) through
representation on its governing Board of Directmrstherwise, as provided in 12 C.F.R. 1805.205(b¥nd

« The Company must remain a non-governmental entifigiwis not an agency or instrumentality of thetddiStates of America, or
any State or political subdivision thereof, as diégd in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b)(6) and within theamiag of any supplemental
regulations or interpretations of 12 C.F.R. 180%(®)(6) or such supplemental regulations publigethe Fund




As used in the discussion above, the terms “Affilja“Financial Products,” “Development Service$Target Market,” “Investment Area(s),”
and “Targeted Population(s)” have the meaningstzestito such terms in 12 C.F.R. 1805.104.

American Reinvestment and Recovery Act of ZDKE America Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 20B&RRA") contained
expansive new restrictions on executive compensdgiofinancial institutions and other companiesgipgating in the TARP. These
restrictions apply to us and are further detaitegiplementing regulations found at 31 CFR Part(8@y reference to “ARRA” herein
includes a reference to the implementing regulatjon

ARRA prohibits bonus and similar payments to theshiighly compensated employee of the Company.prbleibition does not
apply to bonuses payable pursuant to “employmergemgents” in effect prior to February 11, 2009. rigeterm” restricted stock is excluded
from ARRA's bonus prohibition, but only to the emtehe value of the stock does not exceed one-tifitde total amount of annual
compensation of the employee receiving the stdekstock does not “fully vest” until after all TARBlated obligations have been satisfied,
and any other conditions which the Treasury magi§pbave been met.

ARRA prohibits any payment to the principal exeeatofficer, the principal financial officer, andyaof the next eight most highly
compensated employees upon departure from the Gonipaany reason for as long as any TARP-relatdiyations remain outstanding.

Under ARRA TARP-participating companies are requiiie@ recover any bonus or other incentive paymaitt fo the principal
executive officer, the principal financial officem, any of the next 23 most highly compensated eygas on the basis of materially inaccu
financial or other performance criteria.

ARRA prohibits TARP participants from implementiagy compensation plan that would encourage martipulaf the reported
earnings of the Company in order to enhance thepeosation of any of its employees.

ARRA requires the principal executive officer aheé principal financial officer of any publicly-trad TARP-participating company
to provide a written certification of compliancetlwthe executive compensation restrictions in ARRge Companys annual filings with tr
SEC beginning in 2010.

ARRA requires each TARP-participating company tplement a company-wide policy regarding excessiMenairy expenditures,
including excessive expenditures on entertainmertents, office and facility renovations, aviatimnother transportation services.

ARRA directs the Treasury to review bonuses, rggardawards, and other compensation paid to theipdhexecutive officer and
the next four other highest paid executive offickthe Company and the next 20 most highly compedsamployees of each company
receiving TARP assistance before ARRA was enacted to “seek to negotiate” with the TARP recipiand affected employees for
reimbursement if it finds any such payments wecemsistent with TARP or otherwise in conflict witke public interest.

ARRA also prohibits the payment of tax gross-upsguired disclosures related to perquisite paymamisthe engagement, if any, by
the TARP participant of a compensation consultantt prohibits the deduction for tax purposes otakee compensation in excess of
$500,000 for each applicable senior executive.

These standards could change based on subseqidsricgiissued by the Treasury or the Internal Rex&ervice. As long as the
Treasury continues to hold equity interests inGloenpany issued under the TARP, the Company willitooits compensation arrangements
and modify such compensation arrangements, agi@ait@and limit its compensation deductions, aakle such other actions as may be
necessary to comply with the standards discussexkahs they may be modified from time to time. Twnpany does not anticipate that :
material changes to its existing executive comptmsatructure will be required to comply with tegecutive compensation standards
included in the TARP.




Dodd-Frank Act The enactment during 2010 of the Dodd-Frank \8aktet Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the ‘tDBdank
Act”) has resulted in increased regulation of tinarficial services industry. Provisions affecting #ttivities of the Company and the Bank
include, without limitation, the following:

« Asse-based deposit insurance assessmeRf3IC deposit insurance premium assessments aszllmn bank assets rather than
domestic deposit:

« Deposit insurance limit increas. The deposit insurance coverage limit has beemaeently increased from $100,000 to $250,000.

« Limitation on federal preemptic. Limitations have been imposed on the ability afional bank regulators to preempt state law.
Formerly, the national bank and federal thrift degrs possessed preemption powers with regamgmsactions, operating
subsidiaries and attorney general civil enforcenagmiiority. These preemption requirements have bedted by the Dodd-Frank
Act, which will likely impact state banks by afféay activities previously permitted through panitith national banks

« Changes to regulation of bank holding companigader Dodd-Frank, bank holding companies mustéicapitalized and well-
managed to engage in interstate transactionselpdit, only the subsidiary banks were requireddet those standards. The Federal
Reserve Board’s “source of strength doctrine” has been codified, mandating that bank holding comgsasuch as the Company
serve as a source of strength for their subsidianks, meaning that the bank holding company mausthite to provide financial
assistance in the event the subsidiary bank expmr$efinancial distres

« Executive compensation limitatio. The Dodd-Frank Act codified executive compensalimitations similar to those previously
imposed on TARP recipient

SummaryThe foregoing is a brief summary of certain stegutales and regulations affecting the Companythadank. It is not
intended to be an exhaustive discussion of alsthrites and regulations having an impact on tleeatipns of such entities. Additional bills
may be introduced in the future in the United St&engress and state legislatures to alter thetstey regulation and competitive
relationships of financial institutions. It canrm predicted whether and what form any of thespgwals will be adopted or the extent to
which the business of the Company and the Bankheagffected thereby.

The Company

Because it owns the outstanding capital stock @Bank, the Company is a bank holding company withé meaning of the Federal
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (the "BHCA").

The BHCAUnder the BHCA, the Company is subject to peri@kamination by the Federal Reserve and is reqtiréite periodic
reports of its operations and such additional imf@tion as the Federal Reserve may require. The @oygand the Bank’s activities are
limited to banking, managing or controlling banksnishing services to or performing services fersubsidiaries, and engaging in other
activities that the Federal Reserve determinegtsdclosely related to banking or managing orrodiintg banks as to be a proper incident
thereto.

The Dodd-Frank Act removed many limitations on feeleral Reserve Board's authority to make exananatof banks that are
subsidiaries of bank holding companies. Under thdd¥rank Act, the Federal Reserve Board is generaiynjited to examine bank holdi
companies and their subsidiaries, provided thaFtoeral Reserve Board must rely on reports subdndtirectly by the institution and
examination reports of the appropriate regulatsuslf as the OCC) to the fullest extent possiblestmprovide reasonable notice to, and
consult with, the appropriate regulators before m@mcing an examination of a bank holding compatgisiiary; and, to the fullest extent
possible, must avoid duplication of examinatioridti¢s, reporting requirements, and requestsrit@rimation.




Investments, Control, and Activitiad/ith certain limited exceptions, the BHCA requimgery bank holding company to obtain the
prior approval of the Federal Reserve before @uatng substantially all the assets of any baika¢quiring direct or indirect ownership or
control of any voting shares of any bank if aftects acquisition it would own or control more th& 6f the voting shares of such bank
(unless it already owns or controls the majoritgoéh shares), or (iii) merging or consolidatinghwanother bank holding company.

In addition, and subject to certain exceptions BRCA and the Change in Bank Control Act, togetivih regulations thereunder,
require Federal Reserve approval (or, dependinp@eircumstances, no notice of disapproval) gnany person or company acquiring
"control" of a bank holding company, such as thenBany. Control is conclusively presumed to existrifindividual or company acquires
25% or more of any class of voting securities ef lank holding company. Control is rebuttably presd to exist if a person acquires 10%
more but less than 25% of any class of voting seesiand either the Company has registered seurtinder Section 12 of the Exchange
(which the Company has done) or no other persors@greater percentage of that class of votingreesuimmediately after the transaction.
The regulations provide a procedure for challerfgb@rebuttable control presumption.

Under the BHCA, a bank holding company is genenaithibited from engaging in, or acquiring directrdirect control of more
than 5% of the voting shares of any company engagednbanking activities, unless the Federal ResBoard, by order or regulation, has
found those activities to be so closely relatebanking or managing or controlling banks as to peoper incident thereto. Some of the
activities that the Federal Reserve Board has ahirted by regulation to be proper incidents to thsitess of a bank holding company incl
making or servicing loans and certain types ofdsaengaging in certain insurance and discountdbagje activities, performing certain data
processing services, acting in certain circumstaasea fiduciary or investment or financial adyisevning savings associations, and making
investments in certain corporations or projectsgiesi primarily to promote community welfare.

The Federal Reserve Board has imposed certainatagifuirements on the Company under the BHCAuyifiolg a minimum
leverage ratio and a minimum ratio of "qualifyintgipital to risk-weighted assets. These requiremametslescribed below under "Capital
Regulations." Subject to its capital requirememis eertain other restrictions, the Company maydwmoney to make a capital contribution
to the Bank, and such loans may be repaid fronddils paid from the Bank to the Company (althohghability of the Bank to pay
dividends is subject to regulatory restrictionslascribed below in "The Bank - Dividends"). The Qxamy is also able to raise capital for
contribution to the Bank by issuing securities withhaving to receive regulatory approval, subjeaompliance with federal and state
securities laws.

Source of Strength; Cross-Guarantéeaccordance with Federal Reserve Board policy Gbmpany is expected to act as a sour
financial strength to the Bank and to commit researto support the Bank in circumstances in whiehGompany might not otherwise do so.
Under the BHCA, the Federal Reserve Board may requbank holding company to terminate any actieityelinquish control of a nonbank
subsidiary (other than a nonbank subsidiary ofr&papon the Federal Reserve Board's determin#timnsuch activity or control constitutes
a serious risk to the financial soundness or staloif any subsidiary depository institution of thank holding company. Further, federal bank
regulatory authorities have additional discretiomequire a bank holding company to divest itsétiry bank or nonbank subsidiary if the
agency determines that divestiture may aid the siep® institution's financial condition.

The Bank

The Bank operates as a national banking associatonporated under the laws of the United Statessabject to examination by
the Office of Comptroller of the Currency ("OCCDeposits in the Bank are insured by the FDIC ug teaximum amount (generally
$250,000 per depositor, subject to aggregatiorsyulthe OCC and the FDIC regulate or monitor vilyuall areas of the Bank’s operations,
including security devices and procedures, adeqafcgpitalization and loan loss reserves, loangstments, borrowings, deposits, merg
issuances of securities, payment of dividendsrestaates payable on deposits, interest ratesesrdhargeable on loans, establishment of
branches, corporate reorganizations, maintenanbea¥s and records, and adequacy of staff traitdregrry on safe lending and deposit
gathering practices. The OCC requires the Bankamtain certain capital ratios and imposes limitasi on the Bank’s aggregate investment
in real estate, bank premises, and furniture attdrés. The Bank is required by the OCC to prepasaterly reports on their financial
condition and to conduct an annual audit of thiericial affairs in compliance with minimum stangdiaand procedures prescribed by the
OCC.




Under FDICIA, all insured institutions must undemggular on-site examinations by their appropristeking agency. The cost of
examinations of insured depository institutions ang affiliates may be assessed by the appro@ggacy against each institution or affiliate
as it deems necessary or appropriate. Insuredutigtis are required to submit annual reports ¢oRBIC and the appropriate agency (and
state supervisor when applicable). FDICIA alsodi#dhe FDIC to develop with other appropriate aigsha method for insured depository
institutions to provide supplemental disclosurehef estimated fair market value of assets andiliglsi to the extent feasible and practicable,
in any balance sheet, financial statement, redarbodition, or any other report of any insured @gfory institution. FDICIA also requires t
federal banking regulatory agencies to prescripeefgulation, standards for all insured depositosfitutions and depository institution
holding companies relating, among other things(ijanternal controls, information systems, andliagystems; (ii) loan documentation; (iii)
credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate risk exposuand (v) asset quality.

National banks and their holding companies whickehazeen chartered or registered or undergone aeharcontrol within the past
two years or which have been deemed by the OCBedFé¢deral Reserve Board, respectively, to be kedubstitutions must give the OCC
the Federal Reserve Board, respectively, thirtysdajor notice of the appointment of any seniorceiwe officer or director. Within the thir
day period, the OCC or the Federal Reserve Boartheacase may be, may approve or disapprove afyagppointment.

Deposit InsuranceThe FDIC establishes rates for the payment of premaiby federally insured banks and thrifts for dsfpo
insurance. A Deposit Insurance Fund ("DIF") is ntaiimed for commercial banks and thrifts, with irswre premiums from the industry used
to offset losses from insurance payouts when ban#shrifts fail. Since 1993, insured depositorstitutions like the Bank have paid for
deposit insurance under a risk-based premium sy#iesessments are calculated based on the deyasistitution’s average consolidated
total assets, less its average amount of tanggulaye

Transactions With Affiliates and Insidefide Bank is subject to Section 23A of the FedesddRve Act, which places limits on the
amount of loans to, and certain other transactitis affiliates, as well as on the amount of adveto third parties collateralized by the
securities or obligations of affiliates. The aggrtegof all covered transactions is limited in antpas to any one affiliate, to 10% of the Ba
capital and surplus and, as to all affiliates cambi to 20% of the Bank's capital and surplus.Heunbore, within the foregoing limitations as
to amount, each covered transaction must meetfiggbcollateral requirements.

The Bank is also subject to Section 23B of the Fadeeserve Act, which prohibits an institutionrfr@ngaging in certain
transactions with affiliates unless the transadtiare on terms substantially the same, or at &safgtvorable to such institution, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactioita nonaffiliated companies. The Bank is subjectértain restrictions on extensions of
credit to executive officers, directors, certaimpipal shareholders, and their related inter&atish extensions of credit (i) must be made on
substantially the same terms, including interetgtsrand collateral, as those prevailing at the foneomparable transactions with third par
and (ii) must not involve more than the normal igkepayment or present other unfavorable features

Dividends A national bank may not pay dividends from its talpiAll dividends must be paid out of undivideafits then on hand,
after deducting expenses, including reserves fsde and bad debts. In addition, a national bapkotsbited from declaring a dividend on its
shares of common stock until its surplus equalstéted capital, unless the bank has transferredrflus no less than one-tenth of its net
profits of the preceding two consecutive half-yeariods (in the case of an annual dividend). Ther@ml of the OCC is required if the total
of all dividends declared by a national bank in aalendar year exceeds the total of its net préditshat year combined with its retained net
profits for the preceding two years, less any negfutransfers to surplus. In addition, under FDIQe banks may not pay a dividend if, after
paying the dividend, the bank would be undercapitdl See "Capital Regulations" below.




Branching.National banks are required by the National Banktd@dhere to branch office banking laws applieablstate banks in
the states in which they are located. Under cuméssissippi, Alabama and Louisiana law, banks mjgn branches throughout these states
with the prior approval of the OCC or other priméegeral regulator. In addition, with prior reguat approval, banks are able to acquire
existing banking operations in Mississippi, Alabaamal Louisiana. Furthermore, federal legislatios teently been passed which permits
interstate branching. The new law permits out afesacquisitions by bank holding companies (sultgegeto by new state law), interstate
branching by banks if allowed by state law, int&#estmerging by banks, and de novo branching bypmnaltbanks if allowed by state law. See
"Recent Legislative Developments.”

Community Reinvestment A€he Community Reinvestment Act requires that, innection with examinations of financial
institutions within their respective jurisdictionthe Federal Reserve, the FDIC, the OCC, or the®#f Thrift Supervision shall evaluate the
record of the financial institutions in meeting ttredit needs of their local communities, includiogy and moderate income neighborhoods,
consistent with the safe and sound operation afeliestitutions. These factors are also considierestaluating mergers, acquisitions, and
applications to open a branch or facility.

Other Regulationdnterest and certain other charges collected otraoted for by the Bank are subject to state ukawg and certai
federal laws concerning interest rates. The Baludn operations are subject to certain federal lapygicable to credit transactions, such as
the federal Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disaloss of credit terms to consumer borrowers; the eldfortgage Disclosure Act of 1975,
requiring financial institutions to provide inforti@n to enable the public and public officials ttekrmine whether a financial institution is
fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housimgeds community it serves; the Equal Credit OppmifsttAct, prohibiting discrimination on
the basis of creed or other prohibited factorsxemrding credit; the Fair Credit Reporting Act &7B, governing the use and provision of
information to credit reporting agencies; the Fébt Collection Practices Act, concerning the mammevhich consumer debts may be
collected by collection agencies; and the rulesragdlations of the various federal agencies clthvgith the responsibility of implementing
such federal laws. The deposit operations of thekBdso are subject to the Right to Financial RiywAct, which imposes a duty to maintain
confidentiality of consumer financial records amdgeribes procedures for complying with administeasubpoenas of financial records, and
the Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulatiaasted by the Federal Reserve Board to implement&tt, which governs automatic
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accountsaistomers' rights and liabilities arising frdme use of automated teller machines and
other electronic banking services.

Capital RegulationsThe federal bank regulatory authorities have adbpgk-based capital guidelines for banks and Wasi#ing
companies that are designed to make regulatoryatapguirements more sensitive to differencessk profile among banks and bank
holding companies, account for off-balance shepbsure, and minimize disincentives for holding idhassets. The resulting capital ratios
represent qualifying capital as a percentage af tigk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet it@ims guidelines are minimums, and the
federal regulators have noted that banks and baldkny companies contemplating significant expamgimgrams should not allow
expansion to diminish their capital ratios and stienaintain ratios well in excess of the minimurke current guidelines require all bank
holding companies and federally-regulated bankedmtain a minimum risk-based total capital ratio& to 8%, of which at least 4% must
be Tier 1 capital. Tier 1 capital includes commabargholders' equity, qualifying perpetual prefersaatk, and minority interests in equity
accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, but exclgdesiwill and most other intangibles and excludesallowance for loan and lease losses.
Tier 2 capital includes the excess of any prefestedk not included in Tier 1 capital, mandatorpwertible securities, hybrid capital
instruments, subordinated debt and intermediate-preferred stock, and general reserves for lodnease losses up to 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets.

Under the guidelines, banks' and bank holding canegsaassets are given risk-weights of 0%, 20%, 58#100%. In addition,
certain off-balance sheet items are given creditvecsion factors to convert them to asset equitasrounts to which an appropriate risk-
weight will apply. These computations result in th&al risk-weighted assets. Most loans are asdigméhe 100% risk category, except for
first mortgage loans fully secured by residenti@pgerty and, under certain circumstances, residectinstruction loans, both of which carr
50% rating. Most investment securities are assigo¢lde 20% category, except for municipal or stateenue bonds, which have a 50%
rating, and direct obligations of or obligationsaganteed by the United States Treasury or UnitateSiGovernment agencies, which have a
0% rating.
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The federal bank regulatory authorities have algglémented a leverage ratio, which is Tier 1 chpisaa percentage of average total
assets less intangibles, to be used as a suppléonbet risk-based guidelines. The principal olyecof the leverage ratio is to place a
constraint on the maximum degree to which a badimg company may leverage its equity capital base minimum required leverage
ratio for top-rated institutions is 3%, but mosdtitutions are required to maintain an additionaltgon of at least 100 to 200 basis points.

FDICIA established a capital-based regulatory sehdasigned to promote early intervention for tredidvanks and requires the
FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution okbfailures. The capital-based regulatory framewanktains five categories of compliance
with regulatory capital requirements, including Theapitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undgpitalized," "significantly
undercapitalized," and "critically undercapitalize®io qualify as a "well capitalized" institutioa,bank must have a leverage ratio of no less
than 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based ratio of no less ®f#n and a total risk-based capital ratio of no thas 10%, and the Bank must not be under
any order or directive from the appropriate reqagagency to meet and maintain a specific cafatadl. As of December 31, 2013, the
Company and The First, were qualified as "well tdjzied."

Under the FDICIA regulations, the applicable agecay treat an institution as if it were in the niexter category if the agency
determines (after notice and an opportunity forrimgg that the institution is in an unsafe or unsdweondition or is engaging in an unsafe or
unsound practice. The degree of regulatory scruifrgyfinancial institution will increase, and thermissible activities of the institution will
decrease, as it moves downward through the cagitafories. Institutions that fall into one of theee undercapitalized categories may be
required to (i) submit a capital restoration pl@n;raise additional capital; (iii) restrict thegrowth, deposit interest rates, and other actisjti
(iv) improve their management; (v) eliminate mamagat fees; or (vi) divest themselves of all or pditheir operations. Bank holding
companies controlling financial institutions candadled upon to boost the institutions' capital amgartially guarantee the institutions'
performance under their capital restoration plans.

These capital guidelines can affect the Comparsgueral ways. If the Company continues to growraipé pace, a premature
"squeeze" on capital could occur making a capifaision necessary. The requirements could impacCibmpany's ability to pay dividends.
The Company's present capital levels are moreddaquate; however, rapid growth, poor loan podfpkrformance, or poor earnings
performance could change the Company's capitatiposn a relatively short period of time.

Failure to meet these capital requirements wouldmibat a bank would be required to develop aeddfiblan with its primary
federal banking regulator describing the meansaaschedule for achieving the minimum capital regmients. In addition, such a bank would
generally not receive regulatory approval of angligption that requires the consideration of cdgitlequacy, such as a branch or merger
application, unless the Bank could demonstrat@somable plan to meet the capital requirement wihieasonable period of time.

Enforcement PowersFIRREA expanded and increased civil and crimpealalties available for use by the federal regwyato
agencies against depository institutions and aeftastitution-affiliated parties" (primarily inclling management, employees, and agents of
financial institution, independent contractors sashattorneys and accountants, and others wheipatt in the conduct of the financial
institution's affairs). These practices can incltlefailure of an institution to timely file reqed reports; the filing of false or misleading
information; or the submission of inaccurate repo@ivil penalties may be as high as $1,000,008yafar such violations. Criminal penalties
for some financial institution crimes have beenéased to twenty years. In addition, regulatorpangided with greater flexibility to
commence enforcement actions against institutiodsrastitution-affiliated parties. Possible enfarmnt actions include the termination of
deposit insurance. Furthermore, FIRREA expandedypipeopriate banking agencies' power to issue aaadelesist orders that may, among
other things, require affirmative action to corrant harm resulting from a violation or practiggluding restitution, reimbursement,
indemnifications, or guarantees against loss. Arfaial institution may also be ordered to resttigcgrowth, dispose of certain assets, rescind
agreements or contracts, or take other actiongtesrdined by the ordering agency to be appropriate.
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Effect of Governmental Monetary Polici@he earnings of the Bank are affected by domestio@mic conditions and the monetary
and fiscal policies of the United States governnaamt its agencies. The Federal Reserve Board'stergmmlicies have had, and are likely to
continue to have, an important impact on the opggaesults of commercial banks through its poweintplement national monetary policy
order, among other things, to curb inflation or tata recession. The monetary policies of the Fédaserve Board have major effects u
the levels of bank loans, investments, and deptisitaigh its open market operations in United Stgtevernment securities and through its
regulation of the discount rate on borrowings ofmber banks and the reserve requirements againsberdrank deposits. It is not possible
predict the nature or impact of future changes amatary and fiscal policies.

Significant LegislationThe Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchirficiehcy Act of 1994 (the "Interstate Banking Act")
permits eligible bank holding companies in anyestatith regulatory approval, to acquire bankingamigations in any other state. The
Interstate Banking Act allows banks with differéiime states to merge, unless a particular staseooptof the statute. In addition, the
Interstate Banking Act permits national and statekis to establish de novo branches in anotheristhtere is a law in that state which app
equally to all banks and expressly permits all @u$tate banks to establish de novo branches.

The Gramm- Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the "Financt®rvices Modernization Act") repealed the twoliatffion provisions of the
Glass-Steagall Act: Section 20, which restrictegldffiliation of Federal Reserve Member Banks wiitims "engaged principally” in specified
securities activities; and Section 32, which resdrofficer, director, or employee interlocks betwe member bank and any company or
person "primarily engaged" in specified securiiesvities. In addition, the Financial Services Madzation Act also contains provisions t
expressly preempt any state law restricting thaldishment of financial affiliations, primarily @gled to insurance. The general effect of the
law is to establish a comprehensive framework tongeaffiliations among commercial banks, insuranoepanies, securities firms, and of
financial service providers by revising and expagdhe BHCA framework to permit a holding compaggtem to engage in a full range of
financial activities through a new entity knownaaBinancial Holding Company. "Financial activities'broadly defined to include not only
banking, insurance, and securities activities di&t merchant banking and additional activities tha Federal Reserve, in consultation with
the Secretary of the Treasury, determines to éial in nature, incidental to such financial @ties, or complementary activities that do
pose a substantial risk to the safety and soundrfeepository institutions or the financial systgemerally.

Generally, the Financial Services Modernization: Act

. Repeals historical restrictions on, and eliminatasiy federal and state law barriers to, affiliasi@mong banks, securities
firms, insurance companies, and other financialiserproviders

. Provides a uniform framework for the functionalwkdion of the activities of banks, savings indtdns, and their holding
companies
. Broadens the activities that may be conducted tpma banks, banking subsidiaries of bank holdingpanies, and their

financial subsidiaries
. Provides an enhanced framework for protecting theapy of consumer information;

. Adopts a number of provisions related to the céipition, membership, corporate governance, androtieasures designed
to modernize the Federal Home Loan Bank sys

. Modifies the laws governing the implementationted Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"); and

. Addresses a variety of other legal and regulatesyeés affecting both day-to-day operations and-teng activities of
financial institutions
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In order for a bank holding company to take advg@taf the ability to affiliate with other financiaérvices providers, that company
must become a "Financial Holding Company" as peeaiiinder an amendment to the BHCA. To becomeanEial Holding Company, a
company would file a declaration with the Federas&ve, electing to engage in activities permisditnl Financial Holding Companies and
certifying that it is eligible to do so becauseddlits insured depository institution subsidiarégs well-capitalized and well-managed. In
addition, the Federal Reserve must also deterrhiatesiach insured depository institution subsidargt company has at least a "satisfactory"
CRA rating.

The Financial Services Modernization Act also p&smational banks to engage in expanded actiitiesigh the formation of
financial subsidiaries. A national bank may hawibsidiary engaged in any activity authorized fational banks directly or any financial
activity, except for insurance underwriting, insura investments, real estate investment or devedopror merchant banking, which may
only be conducted through a subsidiary of a Firert¢olding Company. Financial activities includéaativities permitted under new sectis
of the BHCA or permitted by regulation.

A national bank seeking to have a financial subsidiand each of its depository institution afféis, must be "well-capitalized" and
"well-managed.” The total assets of all financigbsidiaries may not exceed the lesser of 45% aink'b total assets, or $50 billion. A
national bank must exclude from its assets andyeqlliequity investments, including retained eags, in a financial subsidiary. The asse
the subsidiary may not be consolidated with theklsamssets. The bank must also have policies awtgures to assess financial subsidiary
risk and protect the bank from such risks and g@tklmabilities.

The Financial Services Modernization Act amendedRbderal Deposit Insurance Act governing subsatiaf state banks that
engage in "activities as principal that would ob&/permissible” for a national bank to conduct fmancial subsidiary. It expressly preserves
the ability of a state bank to retain all existBupsidiaries. Because Mississippi permits commigoaiaks chartered by the state to engage in
any activity permissible for national banks, thetastank competitors of The First are permittefibtm subsidiaries to engage in the activities
authorized by the Financial Services Modernizafiot to the same extent as The First. In ordeptmfa financial subsidiary, a state bank
must be well-capitalized, and the state bank wbeldubject to the same capital deduction, risk gamant and affiliate transaction rules as
applicable to national banks.

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providikmpropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstigrorism Act of 2001
(USA Patriot Act) broadened the application of antiney laundering regulations to apply to additldppes of financial institutions, such as
broker-dealers, and strengthened the ability ofit® Government to detect and prosecute intemmatimoney laundering and the financing
of terrorism. The principal provisions of Title Ibf the USA Patriot Act require that regulated fin&l institutions, including state member
banks: (i) establish an anti-money laundering paogthat includes training and audit componentsg@mply with regulations regarding the
verification of the identity of any person seekingpen an account; (iii) take additional requipgecautions with non-U.S. owned accounts;
and (iv) perform certain verification and certifiica of money laundering risk for their foreign oespondent banking relationships. The USA
Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under Wwhinds in a U.S. interbank account may be sulbgeftdirfeiture and increased the penalties
for violation of anti-money laundering regulatiofailure of a financial institution to comply withe USA Patriot Act’s requirements could
have serious legal and reputational consequencdisdfanstitution. The Bank has adopted policie#secpdures and controls to address
compliance with the requirements of the USA Patiict under the existing regulations and will contrto revise and update its policies,
procedures and controls to reflect changes reqbiyetie USA Patriot Act and implementing regulasion

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 addresses, amomryg isues, corporate governance, auditing and atiogy executive
compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosucerpbrate information. Section 404 of the Sarbadeley Act, and regulations adopted
by the SEC require the Company to include in itedad Report, a report stating management’s respibitysio establish and maintain
adequate internal controls over financial reporind management’s conclusion on the effectivenetf®eadnternal controls at year end.
Additionally, the Company'’s independent registgpadlic accounting firm is required to attest to aegort on management’s evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting.
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From time to time, various bills are introducedhe United States Congress with respect to thdaggn of financial institutions.
Certain of these proposals, if adopted, could figantly change the regulation of banks and tharfagial services industry. The Company
cannot predict whether any of these proposalsheilhdopted or, if adopted, how these proposalsdarffibct the Company.

Recent Legislative and Regulatory Initiati

Mortgage RulesDuring 2013, the CFPB finalized a series of ruldated to the extension of residential mortgagadoaade by banks.
Among these rules, are requirements that a banleraaood faith determination that a borrower hasttility to repay a mortgage loan prior
to extending such credit, a requirement that aer@drtgage loans contain escrow payments, new @&gpraquirements and specific rules
regarding how loan originators may be compensdted.implementation of these new rules began inalgn2014.

Volcker Ruleln December 2013, the Federal Reserve, the FDECOMC, the SEC, and the CFTC issued the “Prohitstind Restrictions
On Proprietary Trading And Certain Interests IndARelationships With, Hedge Funds And Private Bglitnds,” commonly referred to as
the Volcker Rule, which regulates and restrictestinents which may be made by banks. The Volckér Was adopted to implement a
portion of the Dodd-Frank Act and new Section 18haf Bank Holding Company which prohibits any bagkéntity from engaging in
proprietary trading or from acquiring or retainiag ownership interest in, sponsoring, or havingaderelationships with a hedge fund or
private equity fund (“covered funds”), subject &rtain exemptions.

Basel IIl.On July 2, 2013, the Company’s primary federal tegus—the Federal Reserve Board and the OCC —teddipal rules
implementing the Basel Ill framework which substalht revised the risk-based capital requiremenpigliaable to bank holding companies
and depository institutions. These final rulestzased on the international capital accords of theeBCommittee on Banking Supervision
(Basel Committee).

The new rules address both the components of tapitbother issues affecting the numerator in bamkistitutions’ regulatory capital ratios,
as well as address risk weights and other isstiestiafy the denominator, replacing the existinga&slerived risk weighting approach witl
more risk-sensitive approach based, in part, orstéedardized approach in the Basel Committee’d 2B@sel 11" capital accords. Such
instruments issued prior to May 19, 2010, currem@uded in Tier 1 capital are grandfathered mlang as they are limited to 25 percent of
the institution’s Tier 1 capital elements. The findes impose several new minimum capital ratiosluding a common equity to risk-
weighted assets minimum ratio of 4.5%, a Tier litehfo risk-weighted assets minimum ratio of 8% & capital conservation buffer of
2.5% added to the common equity Tier 1 capital,Tiee 1 capital and the total capital ratios. Eatthe minimum capital ratios take effect in
2015, with the capital conservation buffer setéghased in the beginning of 2016 and implememtddlli by 2019.

Under the final rules, the treatment of residentialtgage exposures remains unchanged from cysractice. First-lien, one-to-four family
residential mortgage exposures that are not pastrdin-accrual, or restructured will generally reee 50 percent risk weight. All other
residential mortgages receive a 100 percent risghteUnder the final rules however, some banksgaren a one-time “opt out” in which
they may elect to filter certain volatile accumalhbther comprehensive income (AOCI) components frlusion in regulatory capital. The
AOCI opt-out election must be made on the institus first Call Report, FR Y-9C or FR Y-9SP, as léggble, filed after January 1, 2015.
Lastly, under the final rules, banks with less tia8 billion in total consolidated assets as ofdeber 31, 2009, or organized in mutual form
as of May 19, 2010, are exempt from the requirertfatithey phase out TruPS and cumulative perpeteférred stock from Tier 1 capital.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Making or continuing an investment in securitiegluding the Company’s Common Stock, involves dentigks that you should
carefully consider. The risks and uncertaintiesdbed below are not the only risks that may hawneagerial adverse effect on the Company.
Additional risks and uncertainties also could adedr affect the Company’s business and resultpefadions. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial conditiomesults of operations could be affected, the rtapkice for your securities could decline,
and you could lose all or a part of your investmé&utther, to the extent that any of the informattmntained in this Annual Report on Form
10-K constitutes forward-looking statements, tis& factors set forth below also are cautionaryestants identifying important factors that
could cause the Company’s actual results to diffaterially from those expressed in any forward-logkstatements made by or on behalf of
the Company.
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We may be vulnerable to certain sectors of the etgn

A portion of the loan portfolio is secured by reatate. If the economy deteriorates and real egsttes depress beyond a certain
point, the collateral value of the portfolio ane ttevenue stream from those loans could come wwtidess and possibly require additional loan
loss accruals. Our ability to dispose of foreclossal estate at prices above the respective carmafues could also be impinged, causing
additional losses.

Difficult market conditions may adversely affea thdustry in which we opera

In the past, the capital and credit markets hape®gsnced volatility and disruption, which causedhtility and disruption to reach
unprecedented levels. Dramatic declines in theihgusarket, with falling home prices and increadioigclosures, unemployment and under-
employment, negatively impacted the credit perforogaof mortgage loans and resulted in significaritewdowns of asset values by financial
institutions, including governmesponsored entities as well as major commercialimvestment banks. Due to concerns about the gtabfi
the financial markets generally and the strengtboointerparties, many lenders were forced to reducease providing funding to borrowe
including to other financial institutions. That rkat turmoil and tightening of credit led to an ieased level of commercial and consumer
delinquencies, lack of consumer confidence and sgicead reduction of business activity generallyh@ligh, the capital and credit markets
have improved over the last several years, a worgef these conditions would likely re-aggravate adverse effects of those difficult
market conditions on us and others in the finariogtitution industry. Also, a new economic dowmtuvould exacerbate our exposure to
credit risk, particularly in our real estate maskets lower home prices and increased foreclosurafd likely result in higher charge-offs and
delinquencies.

General economic conditions in the areas whereaparations or loans are concentrated may advera#ct our customers’ ability to meet
their obligations

A sudden or severe downturn in the economy in #agoaphic markets we serve in the state of MiggigshAlabama, or Louisiana
may affect the ability of our customers to meehlpayments obligations on a timely basis. The lecahomic conditions in these areas have
a significant impact on our commercial, real estatel construction loans, the ability of borrowtersepay these loans and the value of the
collateral securing such loans. Changes resultiraglverse economic conditions of our market areaklmegatively impact the financial
results of the Company’s banking operations andritéitability.

Additionally, adverse economic changes may caustmers to withdraw deposit balances, thereby ngusistrain on our liquidity.
We are subject to a risk of rapid and significahtinges in market interest rates

Our assets and liabilities are primarily monetarpature, and as a result we are subject to sigmifirisks tied to changes in interest
rates. Our ability to operate profitably is largeigpendent upon net interest income. Unexpecte@ment in interest rates markedly
changing the slope of the current yield curve caadse net interest margins to decrease, subségdenteasing net interest income. In
addition, such changes could adversely affect #tegation of our assets and liabilities.

At present the Company’s oryear interest rate sensitivity position is slightability sensitive, but a gradual increase irenetst rate
during the next twelve months should not have ai@ant impact on net interest income during thetiod. However, as with most financial
institutions, the Company’s results of operatioresatfected by changes in interest rates and tmep@ay’s ability to manage this risk. The
difference between interest rates charged on istt@@ning assets and interest rates paid on sttbearing liabilities may be affected by
changes in market interest rates, changes inoekitips between interest rate indices, and/or @wimgthe relationships between long-term
and short-term market interest rates. A changkisndifference might result in an increase in iegtrexpense relative to interest income, or a
decrease in the Company’s interest rate spread.
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Certain changes in interest rates, inflation, oe financial markets could affect demand for ourdarcts and our ability to deliver products
efficiently

Loan originations, and potentially loan revenuesild be adversely impacted by sharply rising irgerates. Conversely, sharply
falling rates could increase prepayments withinseaurities portfolio lowering interest earningsnfrthose investments. An unanticipated
increase in inflation could cause operating cositsted to salaries and benefits, technology, apgl®s to increase at a faster pace than
revenues.

The fair market value of the securities portfolimlahe investment income from these securitiesfalstuate depending on general
economic and market conditions. In addition, actlinvestment income and/or cash flows from itwmests that carry prepayment risk,
such as mortgage-backed and other asset-backettisscmay differ from those anticipated at thadiof investment as a result of interest
rate fluctuations.

Changes in the policies of monetary authorities atiter government action could adversely affecfifability

The results of operations of the Company are afteby credit policies of monetary authorities, jgaiterly the Federal Reserve
Board. The instruments of monetary policy emploggdhe Federal Reserve Board include open marlatatipns in U.S. government
securities, changes in the discount rate or therédédunds rate on bank borrowings and changessarve requirements against bank deposits
In view of changing conditions in the national esmy and in the money markets, particularly in lighthe continuing threat of terrorist
attacks and the current military operations inNtiddle East, we cannot predict possible future ¢fegnin interest rates, deposit levels, loan
demand or the Company’s business and earninghdfarore, the actions of the United States goverhiaueth other governments in
responding to such terrorist attacks or the miligwerations in the Middle East may result in coesefluctuations, exchange controls, market
disruption and other adverse effects.

Natural disasters could affect our ability to opt

Our market areas are susceptible to natural disestieh as hurricanes. Natural disasters can dispgrations, result in damage to
properties and negatively affect the local econsrmeavhich we operate. The Company cannot predigther or to what extent damage
caused by future hurricanes or other natural disastill affect operations or the economies in market areas, but such weather events ¢
cause a decline in loan originations, a declinthévalue or destruction of properties securingdhaas and an increase in the risk of
delinquencies, foreclosures or loan losses.

Greater loan losses than expected may adversedgtadfir earnings

The Bank as lender is exposed to the risk thatistomers will be unable to repay their loans itoadance with their terms and that
any collateral securing the payment of their loaray not be sufficient to assure repayment. Credids are inherent in the business of
making loans and could have a material adversetaffeoperating results. Credit risk with respeadtd real estate and construction loan
portfolio will relate principally to the creditwdriness of corporations and the value of the raateserving as security for the repayment of
loans. Credit risk with respect to its commerciad @onsumer loan portfolio will relate principatty the general creditworthiness of
businesses and individuals within our local markets

The Bank makes various assumptions and judgments &te collectability of its loan portfolio andgwides an allowance for
estimated loan losses based on a number of fadioesBank believes that its current allowance danllosses is adequate. However, if our
assumptions or judgments prove to be incorrectallogvance for loan losses may not be sufficiertdeer actual loan losses. We may ha\
increase the allowance in the future in responskaaequest of one of its primary banking regukstto adjust for changing conditions and
assumptions, or as a result of any deterioratiaghémuality of the loan portfolio. The actual ambaf future provisions for loan losses car
be determined at this time and may vary from theuwrts of past provisions.
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The Company may need to rely on the financial markeprovide needed capital

The Company’s Common Stock is listed and tradethelNASDAQ stock market. Although the Company ap#tes that its capital
resources will be adequate for the foreseeabledutumeet its capital requirements, at times wg degend on the liquidity of the NASDAQ
stock market to raise equity capital. If the madsduld fail to operate, or if conditions in theital markets are adverse, the Company m:
constrained in raising capital. Should these riskserialize, the ability to further expand its a@ns through internal growth may be limit

We are subject to regulation by various Federal &talte entities

The Company is subject to the regulations of theuBges and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the Faldeéeserve Board, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the Q@ regulations issued by these agencies may selyaffect the Company’s ability to
carry on its business activities. The Company gexit to various Federal and state laws and cectzmges in these laws and regulations
adversely affect operations.

The Company is also subject to the accounting raekregulations of the SEC and the Financial Anting Standards Board.
Changes in accounting rules could adversely affecteported financial statements or results ofatpens of First Bancshares and may also
require extraordinary efforts or additional costsmplement. Any of these laws or regulations mayrodified or changed from time to time,
and we cannot be assured that such modificationbamges will not adversely affect the Company.

We engage in acquisitions of other businesses fimmto time

On occasion, the Company will engage in acquisitiohother businesses. Acquisitions may resultust@amer and employee
turnover, thus increasing the cost of operatingii businesses. The acquired companies may aleddgal contingencies, beyond those
that the Company is aware of, that could resultriexpected costs.

We are subject to industry competition which mayehan impact upon its success

The profitability of the Company depends on itdigbto compete successfully. We operate in a higldmpetitive financial services
environment. Certain competitors are larger and h@ase more resources than we do. We face competitiour regional market areas from
other commercial banks, savings and loan assoe@taedit unions, internet banks, finance comgamueitual funds, insurance companies,
brokerage and investment banking firms, and otin@ntial intermediaries that offer similar servicBsme of the nonbank competitors are
subject to the same extensive regulations thatrgabe Company or the Bank and may have greatebfligy in competing for business.

Another competitive factor is that the financiahgees market, including banking services, is ugderg rapid changes with freque
introductions of new technology-driven products aedvices. Our future success may depend, inqaxur ability to use technology
competitively to provide products and services firazide convenience to customers and create additefficiencies in operations.

Future issuances of additional securities couldufem dilution of shareholde’ ownership

The Company may determine from time to time toésadditional securities to raise additional capgapport growth, or to make
acquisitions. Further, the Company may issue stgptlons or other stock grants to retain and mogiwatr employees. Such issuances of
Company securities will dilute the ownership instseof the Company’s shareholders.

Anti-takeover laws and certain agreements and chantevipions may adversely affect share value

Certain provisions of state and federal law andQbmpany’s articles of incorporation may make itrendifficult for someone to
acquire control of the Company. Under federal Ismbject to certain exemptions, a person, entitgroup must notify the federal banking
agencies before acquiring 10% or more of the ondiétgy voting stock of a bank holding company, inlitg the Company’s shares. Banking
agencies review the acquisition to determinewiit result in a change of control. The banking agjes have 60 days to act on the notice, and
take into account several factors, including ttemueces of the acquiror and the antitrust effetth@acquisition. There also are Mississippi
statutory provisions and provisions in the Comparayticles of incorporation that may be used tayler block a takeover attempt. As a
result, these statutory provisions and provisiongé Company’s articles of incorporation coulduies the Company being less attractive to
a potential acquiror.
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Securities issued by the Company, including thegamyis Common Stock, are not FDIC insured

Securities issued by the Company, including the gamy’'s Common Stock, are not savings or deposiwats or other obligations
of any bank and are not insured by the FDIC, thpd3i Insurance Fund, or any other governmentat@ger instrumentality, or any private
insurer, and are subject to investment risk, inicigdhe possible loss of principal.

The failure of other financial institutions could\gersely affect the Company

The Company’s ability to engage in routine fundirapnsactions could be adversely affected by thermetind potential failures of
other financial institutions. Financial institut®are interrelated as a result of trading, cleaitognterparty and other relationships. As a
result, defaults by, or even rumors or concernsiglmme or more financial institutions or the fioai services industry generally have led to
market-wide liquidity problems and could lead tedes or defaults by the Company or by other ingtits.

Concern by customers over deposit insurance magecaulecrease in deposits and changes in the nfiisding sources available to the
Compary

With recent increased concerns about bank failuestomers increasingly are concerned about tlenetd which their deposits are
insured by the FDIC. Customers may withdraw depasitin effort to ensure that the amount they loavdeposit with their bank is fully
insured and some may seek deposit products or b#mr savings and investment products that arateodllized. Decreases in deposits and
changes in the mix of funding sources may advers#tct the Company’s funding costs and net income.

Evaluation of investment securities for oi-than-temporary impairment involves subjective dateations and could materially impact the
Company'’s results of operations and financial ctiodi

The evaluation of impairments is a quantitative gudlitative process, which is subject to risks andertainties, and is intended to
determine whether declines in the fair value oestment should be recognized in current periodimgsnThe risks and uncertainties include
changes in general economic conditions, the issfieasicial condition or future recovery prospedtss effects of changes in interest rates or
credit spreads and the expected recovery peridionaiing future cash flows involves incorporatimjarmation received from third-party
sources and making internal assumptions and judggmegarding the future performance of the undegyiollateral and assessing the
probability that an adverse change in future ctslis has occurred. The determination of the amotinther-than-temporary impairments is
based upon the Company’s quarterly evaluation asdssment of known and inherent risks associatdctié respective asset class. Such
evaluations and assessments are revised as cosditiange and new information becomes available.

Additionally, the Companyg management considers a wide range of factorg étsecurity issuer and uses its reasonable jadt
in evaluating the cause of the decline in the et fair value of the security and in assessiagtiospects for recovery. Inherent in
management’s evaluation of the security are assangpand estimates about the operations of thelissd its future earnings potential.
Impairments to the carrying value of our investmseturities may need to be taken in the futureclvhiould have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial conditio
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The Company may be required to pay additional iasae premiums to the FDIC, which could negativelgact earnings

Recent insured institution failures, as well agdetation in banking and economic conditions galhgrhave significantly increased
FDIC loss provisions, resulting in a decline in tesignated reserve ratio to historical lows. TBéd-expects a higher rate of insured
institution failures in the next few years compatedecent years; thus, the reserve ratio may goatio decline. In addition, pursuant to the
Dodd-Frank Act, the limit on FDIC coverage has bpermanently increased to $250,000. These develaisrhave caused the premiums
assessed to the Bank by the FDIC to increase.

Further, depending upon any future losses thafBI€ insurance fund may suffer, there can be narasse that there will not be
additional premium increases in order to replettighfund. The FDIC may need to set a higher baseschedule or impose special
assessments due to future financial institutiolufas and updated failure and loss projectionseitlly higher FDIC assessment rates than
those currently projected could have an adversadingn the Company’s results of operations.

The Company participates in the U.S. Treasury'subted Asset Relief Program

The Company received $5,000,000 in funding undeGhpital Purchase Program (“CPP”) in exchangeifeferred stock and common stock
warrants during 2009, which funding was refinanired lower-cost Community Development Capital laitve (“CDCI”) funding on
September 29, 2010. In addition, on September @B),2he Company also accepted $12,123,000 iniadditCDCI funding, for a total of
$17,123,000 in CDCI funding. Participation in thimgram constrains the Company’s ability to raisédénds and also places certain
constraints on executive compensation arrangemehésincreased funding provides assurance thatdmepany can maintain its minimum
regulatory capital ratios in the face of futurgykareal estate-related losses. The Company wik tavepay these funds, possibly by raising
capital within the next seven to eight years topkiée dividend costs from increasing to 9% per annu

Both the CPP and the CDCI are part of the TrouBlsskt Relief Program (“TARP”). The rules that gavéte TARP include restrictions on
certain compensation to executive officers andrabr of others in the Company. Among other thitigase rules include a prohibition on
golden parachute payments, a prohibition on progdax gross-ups, a bonus claw-back provision,apibhibition on paying any bonus
payment to the Company’s most highly compensatgu@raes. It is possible that compensation resbrstimposed on TARP participants
could impede our ability to attract and retain dfiead executive officers.

Our patrticipation in the TARP limits our annual idiend payments to no more than $0.15 per shareahllity to repurchase our common
stock would also be restricted in the event thafailed to make our dividend payments.

The Company recently executed a Merger Agreemgnirthase BCB Holding Company, Inc. of Mobile, Alala

On March 3, 2014, the Company entered into an Agese and Plan of Merger (the “Agreementiith BCB Holding Company, Inc
an Alabama corporation (“BCB”) and parent of BaynBaMobile, Alabama. The Agreement provides thagruthe terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in the Agreement, BCB will mewith and into the Company (the “Merger”) and Bank will merge with and into The
First. Subject to the terms and conditions of tlggement, which has been approved by the BoarB&reftors of the Company and BCB,
each outstanding share of BCB common stock, ottear shares held by the Company or BCB, or, shaites@spect to which the holders
thereof have perfected dissentaights, will receive (i) for the BCB common stodiat was outstanding prior to August 1, 2013, (xp$Jel
share which may be received in cash or Company ammstock provided that at least 30% of the aggeegansideration paid to such
shareholders is in FBMS common stock and (y) ometremsferable contingent value right (“CVR”) anigl for the BCB common stock that
was issued on August 1, 2013, $2.25 per sharesim &ach CVR is eligible to receive a cash payreqnal to up to $0.40, with the exact
amount based on the resolution of certain idetiBEB loans over a three-year period following ¢hasing of the transaction. Payout of the
CVR will be overseen by a special committee of@oenpany Board of Directors. FBMS will also eithesame or redeem in full a note
payable by BCB to Alostar Bank as well as the preféstock issued under the U.S. Treasury’s Capitathase Program. The total
consideration to be paid in connection with theugsitjon will range between approximately $6,2392% and $6,611,762.25 depending
upon the payout of the CVR as well as the pricEahpany common stock on the closing of the trammacivhich is subject to a cap and a
collar regarding its price.
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Concurrently, the Company and BCB will enter intoagreement and plan of merger pursuant to whicB’8 @holly owned
subsidiary, Bay Bank, will be merged with and ithe The First.

The Agreement contains customary representatiothsvanranties from both the Company and BCB and &a¢k agreed to
customary covenants, including, among others, cavisirelating to (1) the conduct of BGRusinesses during the interim period betwee
execution of the Agreement and the completion efNterger, (2) cooperation with respect to the djlof regulatory approval applications by
the Company, The First, BCB and Bay Bank regartliegMerger, the Bank Merger and the transactionsecoplated thereby. BCB has also
agreed, subject to certain exceptions, not toqlgisproposals relating to alternative businesmbination transactions or (b) enter into any
discussions, or enter into any agreement, conagroinprovide confidential information in connectiwith, any proposals for alternative
business combination transactions.

Completion of the Merger is subject to certain oosry conditions, including, among others, (1) iigicef all required regulatory
approvals, (2) the accuracy of the representatoswarranties of the other party, and (3) perforcean all material respects by the other
party of its obligations under the Agreement.

If for any reason the Merger or the Bank Mergerasapproved or consummated, or if the Merger arkBderger is consummated,
but the implementation of the businesses of BCBBaygBank does not transition as expected, thdtsestioperations of the Company and
The First may be adversely affected.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s main office, which is the holding gamy headquarters, is located at 6480 U.S. Hwy 88t\vi Hattiesburg,
Mississippi. The Company operates 23 full servigeking and financial services offices and one mb#otk facility as well as one loan
production office. The Company maintains leasetherHardy Court Branch, the Gulfport Downtown Branihe Pascagoula Branch, the
Ocean Springs Branch, and the Fairhope Branchegdsis/on the Bay Minette LPO. Management enstnaisall properties, whether owned
or leased, are maintained in suitable condition.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time the Company and/or the Bank nayndmed as defendants in various lawsuits arisih@fthe normal course of
business. At present, the Company is not awareyfemal proceedings that it anticipates may maligradversely affect its business.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
The Company’s common stock trades on the NASDAG&IMarket under the ticker symbol “FBMS”. The falling table sets

forth the high and low sales price of the Compargsimon stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global iarkhese prices do not reflect
retail mark-ups, mark-downs or commissions.
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Cash

High Low Dividends
Sale Sale Paid
2013
4th quarte| $ 16.6( $ 13.0z $ 0.037¢
3 quarter 14.9¢ 11.5¢ 0.037:
2 "dquarter 15.4( 11.5( 0.037¢
1 Stquarter 12.4¢ 9.5¢ 0.037¢
2012
4th quarte| $ 10.9¢ $ 9.1: $ 0.037¢
3 quarter 10.5: 8.9¢ 0.037:
2 "dquarter 9.2¢ 8.5¢ 0.037¢
1 Stquarter 11.02 7.1C 0.037¢

There were 1,146 registered shareholders and appaitely 374 beneficial holders of the Company’s coon stock at March 20,
2014 and 5,149,280 shares outstanding. On MarcB@, the high and low sale prices of the Compangmmon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ Global Market was $14.13 and $14.13, respelst

The principal sources of funds to the Company todigidends are the dividends received from ThetfFNational Banking
Association, Hattiesburg, Mississippi. Consequertlyidends are dependent upon the Bank’s earngastal needs, regulatory policies, as
well as statutory and regulatory limitations. Fed@nd state banking laws and regulations regtreeamount of dividends and loans a bank
may make to its parent company. Approval by ThetBancshares, Inc. regulators is required if tha bf all dividends declared in any
calendar year exceed the total of its net incoméhat year combined with its retained net incorhthe preceding two years.

Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related infaioraare neither “soliciting material” nor “filediith the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into awyife filings under the Securities Act of 1933toe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each
as amended, except to the extent the Company sjadigiincorporates it by reference to such filing.

The performance graph compares the cumulativeyfaag-shareholder return on the Company’s commark sssuming an
investment of $100 on December 31. 2008 and timwestment of dividends thereafter, to that of themon stocks of United States
companies reported in the NASDAQ Composite-TotduRes Index and the common stocks of the NASDAQ ORBtks Index. The
NASDAQ OMX Banks Index contains securities of NASQ-listed companies classified according to the ItiguSlassification Benchmark
as Banks. They include banks providing a broadeaidinancial services, including retail bankihgans and money transmissions.
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Comparison of 3 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of 3100
December 2013

300.00

250.00

200.00

150.00 o

100.00 / | _ /

S0.00
0.00 . . . s .
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—+—First Bancshares, In¢ —i— NASDAQ Composite-Total Returmns —a—MASDAQ OMX Banks Index
Legend
Symbol Total Returns Index Fc 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
L g First Bancshares, In 100.0( 77.65 95.77 87.4¢ 109.9¢ 165.7¢

NASDAQ Composit-
= Total Returns 100.0( 145.3¢ 171.7( 170.3¢ 200.57 281.1¢

NASDAQ OMX Banks
Index 100.0( 83.7( 95.5¢ 85.51 101.5( 143.8:

Notes:

The lines represent monthly index levels derivednfitompounded daily returns that include all dinidie
The indexes are reweighted daily, using the marépitalization on the previous trading d

If the monthly interval, based on the fiscal y-end, is not a trading day, the preceding tradingislaised
he index level for all series was set to $100.A2431/2008

ocow>

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagage 5 of the Company’s Annual Report to Shddehs for the year ended
December 31, 2013, is incorporated herein by rafare

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In response to this Item, the information containacgages 6 through 27 of the Company's Annual Rép&hareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2013, is incorporatedrbyeieference

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Not applicable.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

In response to this Item, the information containagages 29 through 72 of the Company's AnnuabRép Shareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2013 is incorporated hbyeiaference

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s principal executive officer and pijrat financial officer have concluded, based ugwmgirtevaluation of the
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2013 that the Compangisclosure controls and procedures were effec
During the quarter ended December 31, 2013, nogggahave occurred in the Company'’s internal cowmvel financial reporting that have
materially affected or are reasonably likely to emetly affect the Company’s internal control ofieancial reporting.

The First Bancshares, Inc.
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the “Company is responsible for distsihg and maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting.
Internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregérd reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foeml purposes in accordance with U.S. generatig@ated accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatioom@inagement, including the principal executiveceifiand principal financial
officer, the Company conducted an evaluation ofetiectiveness of internal control over financighorting based on the framework in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuedisy@ommittee of Sponsoring Organizations of thedweay Commission. Based on this
evaluation, management of the Company has conclilde@ompany maintained effective internal contradr financial reporting, as such
term is defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1884es 12a-15(f), as of December 31, 2013.

Internal control over financial reporting cannobyide absolute assurance of achieving financiadmémpy objectives because of its
inherent limitations. Internal control over finaakieporting is a process that involves human elilige and compliance and is subject to lapses
in judgment and breakdowns resulting from humaluif@s. Internal control over financial reportingaso be circumvented by collusion or
improper management override. Because of suchdliinits, there is a risk that material misstatemaratg not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis by internal control over financial ogfing. These inherent limitations, however, arewn features of the financial reporting
process. It is possible, therefore, to design tihéoprocess safeguards to reduce, though not atmithis risk.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company’s independent registeredipalzicounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. The Ccang’s registered public accounting firm was notuiegf to issue an attestation report on
internal controls over financial reporting pursuamtemporary rules of the Securities and Exchag@mission.

/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J /s! Dee Dee Lower
CEO and Presidel Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
March 31, 201« March 31, 201«

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

In response to this Item, the information containader the captions, “Election of Directors” anddditional Information
Concerning Directors and Officers” of the Comparrexy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shardad to be held on May 22, 2014, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

The Company's Board of Directors has adopted a GbE¢hics that applies to the Company's princgadcutive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, persons performing similar functions. A copy ast@ode of Ethics can be found at the
Company's internet website_at www.thefirstbank.cdrhe Company intends to disclose any amendmerits @pde of Ethics, and any war
from a provision of the Code of Ethics grantedite Company's principal executive officer, principaancial officer, principal accounting
officer, or persons performing similar functions, the Company's internet website within five busindays following such amendment or
waiver. The information contained on or connectethe Company's internet website is not incorparatereference into this Form 10-K and
should not be considered part of this or any otbport that we file with or furnish to the SEC.

Audit Committet

The information contained under the caption “Conteei$ of the Board of Directors” of the CompanysxyrStatement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May2Z14, is incorporated herein by reference. Thar8of Directors has determined that
there is at least one independent audit commiiteaial expert, J. Douglas Seidenburg, servinthemAudit Committee, as the terms
independent and audit committee financial expertused in pertinent NASDAQ listing standards ancu8ges and Exchange Commission
regulations.

Corporate Governance

The information contained under the caption “Adulial Information Concerning Directors and Officeed’the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdetsettield on May 22, 2014, is incorporated hereindigrence.

As a TARP recipient the Company is required to hav&xcessive Expenditure Policy. Such a policy adopted by the Comparsy’
Board of Directors on July 23, 2009, and is postedhe Bank’s website at www.thefirstbank.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Compensation Discussion andyaisl of the Company's
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareiddo be held on May 22, 2014, is incorporate@ihdvy reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

In response to this Item, the information containeder the caption “Security Ownership of CertaanBficial Owners and

Management” of the Company's Proxy Statement f@thnual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on R&y2014, is incorporated herein
by reference.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance
Number of securities to be issug Weighted-average exercise pricjunder equity compensation plan
upon exercise of outstanding |of outstanding options, warrantg (excluding securities reflected irf
options and warrants and rights and rights column (a))
Plan category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
Approved by security holders 141,651 -0- 173,349
Equity compensation plans
Not approved by security holde -0- -0- -0-
Total 141,651 -0- 173,349

(11 As of December 31, 2013, a total of 141,651 restmistock awards have been granted under the Corsp2007 Stock Incentive Plan
(2007 Plan”). A total of 173,349 shares remainedilable for issuance as awards under the 2007 Plerestricted stock awards are
issuable subject to vesting requirements. No ailaards have been made under the 2007 Plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Certain Relationships and Reldransactions” of the
Company's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meetin§ludreholders to be held on May 22, 2014, is irmated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

In response to this Item, the information containader the caption “Principal Accountant Fees aaiges” of the Company’s
Proxy Statement for the Annual meeting of Sharedrsldo be held on May 22, 2014, is incorporate@indsy reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following exhibits are furnished (or incorp@atby reference):

Exhibit Number  Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporafincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to @mmpany's
Registration Statement No.-94288 on Form -1).

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2te Company's Registration Statement N--94288 on Form -1).

3.3 Articles of Amendment Containing Certificate of psations for the Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetuafd?red Stocl
Series CD (incorporated by reference to ExhibitfBetl with Form K with the Commission on October 4, 201

4.1 Provisions in the Company's Articles of Ipmmation and Bylaws defining the rights of holdefshe Company's
Common Stock (incorporated by reference to ExHilditto the Company's Registration Statement N®4288 on
Form &-1).

4.2 Form of Certificate of Common Stock (incorgted by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companggi&ration
Statement No. 94288 on Form -1).

10.1 Purchase Letter Agreement dated Februa2@@ between The First Bancshares and the UnitgdsSDepartment
of the Treasury, including the Standard Terms, wagpect to the issuance of the CPP Preferred <

10.2 Exchange Letter Agreement dated Septemhe&@® between The First Bancshares and the USiisgs Department
of the Treasury, including the Standard Terms, wagpect to the exchange of the CDCI PreferredkS

10.5 Employment Agreement dated May 31, 2011, betweenHitst, A National Banking Association and M. Ragle, Jr.

10.6 First Bancshares, Inc. 1997 Stock Optiom B&of March 18, 1997 (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.7 of the

Company's Form -KSB for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996, I§0. 3:-94288).
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10.7

10.8

13

21

23

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

99.1

99.2

101.INS**

101.SCH**

101.CAL**

101.DEF**

101.LAB**

101.PRE**

Agreement to Repurchase Stock by and ambegirst Bancshares, Inc., Nick Welch and Davichgoh
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to tlmmpany's Registration Statement No.-102908 on Form-2).

The First Bancshares, Inc. 2007 Stock Imeeflan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit.8he Company’s
Registration Statement No. 171996 on Fol-8)

The Company's 2013 Annual Rep

Subsidiaries of the Compa

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Certification of principal executive officer pursuao Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2
Certification of principal financial officer pursoato Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of principal executive officgarsuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopiextipnt to Section 906 of
the Sarban+Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of principal financial officgmursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopiezslipnt to Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

EESA Certification of CEC

EESA Certification of CFC

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbat
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.

SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgfegeAct, the registrant caused this report to geesi on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC

Date: March 31, 2014 By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 31, 2014 By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Executive VP and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial and Principal Accounting O}
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In accordance with the Exchange Act, this repostiheen signed below by the following persons oralbetf the registrant and in tt
capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES CAPACITIES DATE
/sl E. Ricky Gibsol Director and Chairman of the Board March 3114
/s| Charles R. Lightse Director March 31, 2014
/sl Fred McMurry Director March 31, 2014
/s| Gregory Mitchel Director March 31, 2014
/sl Ted E. Parker Director March 31, 2014
/sl J. Douglas Seidenbu Director March 31, 2014
/s/ A. L. Smith Director March 31, 2014
/s/ Andrew D. Stetelma Director March 31, 2014
/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J CEO, President and Director March 31, 2014

(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Dee Dee Lower Executive VP & Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) March 31, 201
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Earnings;
Net interest incom $ 28,40. $ 22,19 $ 19,07¢ 16,33¢ 14,39(
Provision for loan losse 1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98¢ 1,20¢
Noninterest incom 7,08: 6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89t 4,397
Noninterest expens 28,16¢ 22,16¢ 18,87( 15,84: 15,328
Net income 4,63¢ 4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢ 1,743
Net income applicable to common Stockholi 4,21¢ 3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23 1,461
Per common share da
Basic net income per She $ 98 3 117 $ .83 74 A48
Diluted net income per Sha .9€ 1.1¢ .82 .74 A8
Per share dat:
Basic net income per she $ 1.07 $ 131 $ .94 .84 .58
Diluted net income per sha 1.0€ 1.2¢ .93 .84 .58
Selected Year En
Balances
Total asset $ 940,89 $ 721,38: $ 681,41: 503,04! 477,55:
Securities 258,02! 226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13¢ 114,61¢
Loans, net of allowanc 577,57 408,97( 383,41¢ 327,95¢ 314,03:
Deposits 779,97 596,62 573,39 396,47¢ 383,75¢
Stockholder equity 85,10¢ 65,88t 60,42t 57,09¢ 43,617




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Purpose

The purpose of management's discussion and an@ytsisnake the reader aware of the significantpaments, events, and chan
in the consolidated financial condition and resofteperations of the Company and The First dutiregyear ended December 31, 2013 v
compared to the years 2012 and 2011. The Compemysolidated financial statements and related raftesld also be considered.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the preparation of the Company's consolidatedritial statements, certain significant amountsbased upon judgment &
estimates. The most critical of these is the actiogrpolicy related to the allowance for loan lass€he allowance is based in large mee
upon management's evaluation of borrowers' alslitte make loan payments, local and national ecom@mnditions, and other subject
factors. If any of these factors were to determratanagement would update its estimates and juttgmeéhich may require additional I«
provisions.

Companies are required to perform periodic reviefvsndividual securities in their investment polifs to determine wheth
decline in the value of a security is other thamgerary. A review of other-thar@mporary impairment requires companies to mak&ic
judgments regarding the materiality of the declite effect on the financial statements and théabdity, extent and timing of a valuati
recovery and the comparsyintent and ability to hold the security. Pursuanthese requirements, Management assesses valdaitlines t
determine the extent to which such changes aribwtible to fundamental factors specific to theiéss such as financial condition, busir
prospects or other factors or markelated factors, such as interest rates. Declingbe fair value of securities below their costtthe
deemed to be other-than-temporary are recordedrivirgys as realized losses.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment both annuatig hen events or circumstances occur that makeit likely than not th
impairment has occurred. As part of its testing, @ompany first assesses qualitative factors teragte whether it is more likely than
that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrtlits carrying amount. If the Company determinesftir value of a reporting unit is less thai
carrying amount using these qualitative factors, @ompany then compares the fair value of goodwiilh its carrying amount, and th
measures impaired loss by comparing the implied vialue of goodwill with the carrying amount of thgoodwill. No impairment we
indicated when the annual test was performed ir8201

Overview

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) was iraratpd on June 23, 1995, and serves as a banikgadmpany for The First,
National Banking Associatior“The First”), located in Hattiesburg, Mississippi. The First begaerations on August 5, 1996, from its n
office in the Oak Grove community, which is on twestern side of Hattiesburg. The First has 25 lonatin South Mississippi, Sot
Alabama and Louisiana. See Note C of Notes to Qmfeed Financial Statements for information regagdbranch acquisitions. T
Company and The First engage in a general comnhemifretail banking business characterized bygpetiized service and local decision-
making, emphasizing the banking needs of smallediom-sized businesses, professional concerngpdividuals.




The Companys primary source of revenue is interest income faed, which it earns by lending and investing tineds which ar
held on deposit. Because loans generally earn higties of interest than investments, the Compaeksto employ as much of its dep
funds as possible in the form of loans to individudusinesses, and other organizations. To ersufieient liquidity, the Company al
maintains a portion of its deposits in cash, gowemnt securities, deposits with other financial itnibns, and overnight loans of exc
reserves (known as “Federal Funds Sold"correspondent banks. The revenue which the Coynparns (prior to deducting its overh
expenses) is essentially a function of the amofithe Company’s loans and deposits, as well aptbft margin (“interest spreadgnd fe:
income which can be generated on these amounts.

The Company increased from approximately $721.4ianilin total assets, and $596.6 million in deposit December 31, 2012
approximately $940.9 million in total assets, a@@&O0 million in deposits at December 31, 2013.riaet of allowance for loan los
increased from $409.0 million at December 31, 2@i2pproximately $577.6 at December 31, 2013. Thm@any increased from $6!
million in shareholderséquity at December 31, 2012 to approximately $8&illion at December 31, 2013. The First reportetineome o
$5,892,000 and $4,597,000 for the years ended Dmeedi, 2013, and 2012, respectively. For the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2
the Company reported consolidated net income aggkcto common stockholders of $4,215,000 and $308®, respectively. The followil
discussion should be read in conjunction with ti8elécted Consolidated Financial Datafid the Company's Consolidated Finat
Statements and the Notes thereto and the othercieladata included elsewhere.




SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Earnings;
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse

Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Net income

Net income applicable to common Stockholc

Per common share da
Basic net income per She
Diluted net income per Sha
Per share dati
Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

Selected Year End Balanct

Total asset

Securities

Loans, net of allowanc
Deposits

Stockholder equity

The following is a summary of the results of opierat by The First for the years ended Decembe?@13 and 2012.

Interest incomt
Interest expense
Net interest incom

Provision for loan losses

December 31

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
28,40 $ 22,19: $ 19,07¢ 16,33¢ 14,39(
1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98¢ 1,20¢
7,08: 6,32¢ 4,59¢ 3,89¢ 4,39
28,16¢ 22,16¢ 18,87( 15,84 15,32¢
4,63¢ 4,04¢ 2,871 2,54¢ 1,74:
4,21¢t 3,62¢ 2,52¢ 2,23 1,461
98 % 117 $ .83 74 A4S
.9€ 1.1¢ .82 .74 A4S
107 $ 131 $ .94 .84 .58
1.0¢€ 1.2¢ .93 .84 .58
940,89( $ 721,38" $ 681,41 503,04! 477,55:
258,02: 226,30: 221,17¢ 107,13t 114,61¢
577,57: 408,97( 383,41¢ 327,95¢ 314,03¢
779,97 596,62 573,39« 396,47¢ 383,75¢
85,10¢ 65,88¢ 60,42¢ 57,09¢ 43,61,

Results of Operations

Net interest income after provision for loan los

Other income
Other expens
Income tax expense

Net income

2013 2012
(In thousands
$ 31,31 $ 26,32¢
2,731 3,93(
28,58: 22,39:
1,07¢ 1,22¢
27,50t 21,167
7,08: 6,324
26,57¢ 21,647
2,11¢ 1,247
$ 589t $ 4,597




The following reconciles the above table to the ants reflected in the consolidated financial staets of the Company at
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
(In thousands

Net interest income

Net interest income of The Fir $ 28,58. $ 22,39¢
Intercompany eliminations (180) (201)
$ 28,40 $ 22,19«

Net income applicable to common stockhold
Net income of The Firs $ 589: $ 4,597
Net loss of the Company, excluding intercompanyants (1,677 (979
$ 421 $ 3,624

Consolidated Net Income

The Company reported consolidated net income agigicto common stockholders of approximately $4,@285 for the year end
December 31, 2013, compared to a consolidatechnetrie of $3,624,339 for the year ended Decembe2(@!12. The increase in income \
attributable to an increase in net interest incam®6.2 million or 28.0%, and an increase of $.8iam or 12.0% in other income which wx
offset by an increase in other expenses of $6.omibr 27.1%.

Consolidated Net Interest Income

The largest component of net income for the Compamet interest income, which is the differencénegen the income earned
assets and interest paid on deposits and borrowises to support such assets. Net interest incerdetermined by the rates earned ot
Company’s interest-earning assets and the ratab guaiits interest-bearing liabilities, the relatimeounts of interesarning assets a
interest-bearing liabilities, and the degree ofmatch and the maturity and repricing charactegstitits interest-earning assets and interest
bearing liabilities.

Consolidated net interest income was approxim&i28;,401,000 for the year ended December 31, 2Gl8pmpared to $22,194,(
for the year ended December 31, 2012. This incressethe direct result of increased loan volumes @decreased rates paid on interest-
bearing liabilities during 2013 as compared to 20A%erage interedbearing liabilities for the year 2013 were $728,899 compared
$534,998,000 for the year 2012. At December 313201 net interest spread, the difference betwleeryield on earning assets and the
paid on interesbearing liabilities, was 3.25% compared to 3.29%@&tember 31, 2012. The net interest margin (wlsafet interest incon
divided by average earning assets) was 3.31% éoyd¢lar 2013 compared to 3.42% for the year 201&sRa#aid on average interdsaring
liabilities decreased from .77% for the year 2064240% for the year 2013. Interest earned on assw®tsinterest accrued on liabilities
significantly influenced by market factors, spemilly interest rates as set by Federal agenciesraye loans comprised 68.0% of ave
earning assets for the year 2013 compared to 5thB#e year 2012.




Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rakbs following tables depict, for the periods iratied, certain informatic
related to the average balance sheet and averelgis gin assets and average costs of liabilitiesh Sields are derived by dividing income

expense by the average balance of the correspoads®gs or liabilities. Average balances have deered from daily averages.

Assets
Earning Asset

Loans (1)(2
Securities

Federal funds sold ({
Other

Total earning asse

Cash and due from ban
Premises and equipme
Other asset

Allowance for loan losse

Total asset

Liabilities

Interes-bearing liabilities
Demand deposits (:
Other liabilities
Shareholde’ equity
Total liabilities anc
shareholders’ equity

Net interest sprea

Net yield on intere-earning

assets

Average Balances, Income and Expenses, and Rates

Years Ended December &

2013 2012 2011
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/
Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense: Rate Balance Expense:
(Dollars in thousands
$ 583200 $ 25,73t 441% $ 388,01 $ 21,41 5.52% 354,29 $ 20,971 5.92%
248,23 5,41¢ 2.1&% 235,83 4,78t 2.02% 134,81! 3,36( 2.4%
18,56+ 62 .3%% 19,67( 51 .2€% 5,48¢ 72 1.31%
7,40/ 101 1.3¢% 4,84 83 1.71% 2,53( 72 2.85%
857,40! 31,31¢ 3.65% 648,36( 26,33. 4.06% 497,12¢ 24,47¢ 4.92%
25,447 16,69¢ 47,632
30,81¢ 22,63¢ 17,401
33,31« 32,331 21,61:
(5,240 (4,45)) (4,340
$ 941,74 $  715,57. 579,43:
$ 72832 $ 2,917 A% $ 53499t $ 4,131 T1% 44589. § 5,39¢ 1.21%
115,90¢ 107,39: 65,83(
12,43( 10,03¢ 18,751
85,08 63,14¢ 48,952
$ 941,74 $ 71557 579,43
3.25% 3.2% 3.71%
$ 28,40: 3.31% $ 22,19¢ 3.42% $ 19,07¢ 3.84%

(1) Allloans and deposits were made to borrowerseéntthited States. Includes nonaccrual loans of 43,$8,589, and $5,125, respectiv
during the periods presented. Loans include helddte loans
(2) Includes loan fees of $525, $430, and $418 respeyti
(3) Includes EB/MNBB and Federal Reser— New Orleans
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Analysis of Changes in Net Interest Incom€he following table presents the consolidatedadohmount of changes in inter
income and interest expense attributable to chaimgeslume and to changes in rate. The combineeceffh both volume and rate wh
cannot be separately identified has been allogattsplortionately to the change due to volume andtduate.

Analysis of Changes in Consolidated Net Interest tbome

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31
2013 versus 201, 2012 versus 201
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net

(Dollars in thousands)
Earning Assets

Loans $ 10,77+ $ (6450 $ 4,32¢ % 199 $ (1,557 $ 441
Securities 27C 374 644 2,51¢ (1,097 1,42t
Federal funds sol ©)] 13 10 18¢€ (207) (22)
Other short-term investments 35 (26) 9 66 (55 11
Total interest income 11,07¢ (6,089 4,987 4,767 (2,907 1,85¢

Interest-Bearing Liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction

accounts 46C (74€) (28€) 361 (785) (424)
Money market accoun 12: (159) (32) 11€ (18%) (69)
Savings deposil 3 (20 @) 23 9) 14
Time deposit 172 (88€) (714 36 (6829) (647)
Borrowed funds 97 (277) (180 542 (675 (139)
Total interest expense 85t (2,075 (1,220 1,07¢ (2,337) (1,259)
Net interest income $ 10220 $ (4019 $ 6,207 $ 3,685 $ (570 $ 3,11¢

Interest Sensitivity The Company monitors and manages the pricingnaattdrity of its assets and liabilities in orderdiminish the
potential adverse impact that changes in inteegesrcould have on its net interest income. A nooinigy technique employed by the Comp
is the measurement of the Company's interest satysiigap,” which is the positive or negative dolildifference between assets and liabil
that are subject to interest rate repricing withigiven period of time. The Company also perforssedliability modeling to assess the im|
varying interest rates and balance sheet mix assomspwill have on net interest income. Intere$ Isensitivity can be managed by reprii
assets or liabilities, selling securities availatoesale, replacing an asset or liability at maturityadjusting the interest rate during the lif
an asset or liability. Managing the amount of asseid liabilities repricing in the same time intdrkielps to hedge the risk and minimize
impact on net interest income of rising or fallimgerest rates. The Company evaluates interesttisétysrisk and then formulates guidelir
regarding asset generation and repricing, fundgces and pricing, and dffalance sheet commitments in order to decreaseegtteat
sensitivity risk.
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The following tables illustrate the Company's cditkstied interest rate sensitivity and consolidatesnulative gap position
December 31, 2011, 2012, and 2013.

December 31, 201.

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 72,117 $ 7483 $ 146,94¢ $ 240,98( $ 387,92¢
Securities (2 9,987 12,94¢ 22,93: 198,24 221,17¢
Funds sold and other 241 12,78¢ 13,02¢ - 13,02¢
Total earning assets $ 82,34 $ 100,56 $ 182,91( 3 439,22 $ 622,13:
Liabilities

Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits

NOW account(1) $ - $ 200,21 $ 200,21 $ - $ 200,21(
Money market accoun 43,29¢ - 43,29¢ - 43,29¢
Savings deposits (: - 45,64+ 45,64+ - 45,64+
Time deposits 39,41: 87,25¢ 126,67( 50,44¢ 177,11!
Total interes-bearing deposit 82,70° 333,11: 415,82( 50,44 466,26!
Borrowed funds (3) 231 12,99( 13,22: 13,81 27,03:
Total interest-bearing liabilities 82,93¢ 346,10: 429,04: 64,25¢ 493,29’
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (597 $ (24553) $ (246,13) $ 374,96¢ $ 128,83
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2011 $ (597 $ (246,13) $ (246,13) $ 128,83 $ 128,83
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets at
December 31, 201 (.09% (39.0% (39.0% 20.7%
December 31, 201,
After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 72,67C $ 78,16¢ $ 150,83t $ 262,85¢ $ 413,69
Securities (2 11,18t 15,50¢ 26,68¢ 199,61: 226,30:
Funds sold and other 1,06¢ 9,58¢ 10,65: - 10,65:
Total earning assets $ 84,91¢ $ 10326( $ 188,17¢ 3 462,47. $  650,65(
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 23058 $ 23058 $ - $ 230,58t
Money market accoun 47,32t - 47,32t - 47,32t
Savings deposits (- - 48,15: 48,15 - 48,15:
Time deposits 32,62« 70,88 103,50° 57,42¢ 160,93t
Total interes-bearing deposit 79,94¢ 349,62: 429,57 57,42¢ 487,00:
Borrowed funds (3) 20,00( 1,771 21,77 15,00( 36,77
Total interest-bearing liabilities 99,94¢ 351,39! 451,34 72,42¢ 523,77
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (15030 $ (248,13) $ (263,16) $ 390,04. $ 126,87
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2012 $ (15,030 $ (263,16) $ (263,16Y) $ 126,877 $ 126,87
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets
at December 31, 201 (2.9% (40.H% (40.9H% 19.5%
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December 31, 201.

After Three
Within Through Within Greater Than
Three Twelve One One Year or
Months Months Year Nonsensitive Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets
Earning Assets
Loans $ 89,31« $ 98,31t ¢ 187,62¢ $ 395,67 $ 583,30:
Securities (2 10,11 16,00¢ 26,12( 231,90¢ 258,02!
Funds sold and other 967 14,20¢ 15,17: - 15,172
Total earning assets $ 100,39! §$ 12852t $§ 228,92. $ 627,57¢ $ 856,49
Liabilities
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deposits
NOW accounts (1 $ - $ 24051 $ 240510 $ - $ 240,51
Money market accoun 107,56« - 107,56« - 107,56«
Savings deposits (: - 55,11: 55,11 - 55,11:
Time deposits 46,87" 87,47¢ 134,35( 68,637 202,98’
Total interes-bearing deposit 154,43 383,10: 537,54( 68,63’ 606,17
Borrowed funds (3) 37,00( 4,00( 41,00( 11,00( 52,00(
Total interest-bearing liabilities 191,43¢ 387,10: 578,54( 79,637 658,17"
Interest-sensitivity gap per period $ (91,040 $ (258,57) $ (349,619 $  547,93¢ $ 198,32
Cumulative gap at December 31, 2013 $ (91,049 $ (349,619 $ (349,619 $  198,32( $ 198,32
Ratio of cumulative gap to total earning assets
at December 31, 20! (10.6% (40.9% (40.9% 23.2%

(1) NOW and savings accounts are subject to immediatelvawal and repricing. These deposits do not terichmediately react to chang
in interest rates and the Company believes thepesits are a stable and predictable funding sourberefore, these deposits
included in the repricing period that managemetiebes most closely matches the periods in whi@y thre likely to reprice rather tr
the period in which the funds can be withdrawn cattially.

(2) Securities include mortgage backed and other instat paying obligations based upon stated matdatgs

(3) Does not include subordinated debentures of $10080C

The Company generally would benefit from increagimayket rates of interest when it has an assasitive gap and generally fr
decreasing market rates of interest when it iglifglsensitive. The Company currently is liabilisensitive within the ongear time frame
However, the Company's gap analysis is not a praégdicator of its interest sensitivity positiorhé analysis presents only a static view o
timing of maturities and repricing opportunitiesitivut taking into consideration that changes iteri@est rates do not affect all assets
liabilities equally. For example, rates paid onudstantial portion of core deposits may changereactially within a relatively short tin
frame, but those rates are viewed by managemesigaicantly less interest-sensitive than markasdd rates such as those paid oncume-
deposits. Accordingly, management believes a ligb#lensitive-position within one year would not &g indicative of the Comparsytrue
interest sensitivity as it would be for an orgatima which depends to a greater extent on purchéseds to support earning assets.
interest income is also affected by other signiftckactors, including changes in the volume and ofixarning assets and interéstaring
liabilities.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has developed policies and proceduesValuating the overall quality of its credit golio and the timel

identification of potential problem loans. Managete judgment as to the adequacy of the allowancassdupon a number of assumpt

about future events which it believes to be reasiendut which may not prove to be accurate. Tthexe can be no assurance that chafffge-
in future periods will not exceed the allowancel@@n losses or that additional increases in tha loss allowance will not be required.
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The Companys allowance consists of two parts. The first paudétermined in accordance with authoritative gutgaissued by ti
FASB regarding the allowanc&’he Companys determination of this part of the allowance isdzhupon quantitative and qualitative fact
A loan loss history based upon the prior three yéautilized in determining the appropriate allowe. Historical loss factors are determi
by criticized and uncriticized loans by loan tyfiéiese historical loss factors are applied to tlamdoby loan type to determine an indic:
allowance. The loss factors of peer groups areidered in the determination of the allowance arelumed to assist in the establishment
longterm loss history for areas in which this datansvailable and incorporated into the qualitativetdes to be considered. The histor
loss factors may also be modified based upon ajbalitative factors including but not limited tockl and national economic conditic
trends of delinquent loans, changes in lendingcpsiand underwriting standards, concentrations,raanagemend’ knowledge of the lo:
portfolio. These factors require judgment uponhe of management and are based upon state andalatconomic reports received fr
various institutions and agencies including thedreddReserve Bank, United States Bureau of Econémadysis, Bureau of Labor Statisti
meetings with the Company’s loan officers and loammittees, and data and guidance received ornauatdiom the Compang’regulator
authorities.

The second part of the allowance is determinec@om@ance with guidance issued by the FASB reggrititpaired loanslmpairec
loans are determined based upon a review by iftévaa review and senior loan officers. Impairedre are loans for which the Bank d
not expect to receive contractual interest andforcipal by the due date. A specific allowance $signed to each loan determined t
impaired based upon the value of the loan’s undgglgollateral. Appraisals are used by managentedétermine the value of the collateral.

The sum of the two parts constitutes manageradigst estimate of an appropriate allowance fon loases. When the estima
allowance is determined, it is presented to the @oy’'s audit committee for review and approval ajuarterly basis.

Our allowance for loan losses model is focused siabdishing a loss history within the Bank and iredyon specific impairment
determine credits that the Bank feels the ultimmapayment source will be liquidation of the subjeailateral. Our model takes into accc
many other factors as well such as local and natienonomic factors, portfolio trends, non perfarghnasset, charge off, and delinque
trends as well as underwriting standards and thperence of branch management and lending statiese trends are measured in
following ways:

Local Trends: ( Updated quarterly usually the mdotlowing quarter end )
Local Unemployment Ral
Insurance issues (Windpool are
Bankruptcy Rates (increasing/declinir
Local Commercial R/E Vacancy rat
Established market/new marl
Hurricane threa
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National Trends: Updated quarterly usually the month following qeaend )
Gross Domestic Product (GD
Home Sale:
Consumer Price Index (CF
Interest Rate Environment (increasing/steady/dexir
Single Family construction stai
Inflation Rate
Retail Salet

Portfolio Trends: ( Updated monthly as the ALLLceculated )
Second Mortgage
Single Pay Loan
Non-Recourse Loan
Limited Guaranty Loan
Loan to Value Exceptior
Secured by Nc-Owner Occupied proper:
Raw Land Loan:
Unsecured Loan

Measurable Bank Trends: ( Updated quarterly)
Delinquency Trend
Non-Accrual Trends
Net Charge Offt
Loan Volume Trend
Non-Performing Asset
Underwriting Standards/Lending Polici
Experience/Depth of Bank Lending
Managemen

Our model takes into account many local and natiesanomic factors as well as portfolio trends.cdloand national econon
trends are measured quarterly, typically in the timdollowing quarter end to facilitate the releasfeeconomic data from the report
agencies. These factors are allocated a basis yalire ranging from25 to +25 basis points and directly affect the am@aserved for ea
branch. As of December 31, 2013, most economi@ators both local and national pointed to a weainemy thus most factors wi
assigned a positive basis point value. This in@@dke amount of the allowance that was indicatelistorical loss factors. Portfolio trer
are measured monthly on a per branch basis tondieethe percentage of loans in each branch tleaB#nk has determined as having n
risk. Portfolio risk is defined as areas in thenBa loan portfolio in which there is additional rigkolved in the loan type or some other
in which the Bank has identified as having mor&.ri€ach area is tracked on bank-wide as well aa bnanchwide basis. Branches i
analyzed based on the gross percentage of contensraf the Bank as a whole. Portfolio risk igedtnined by analyzing concentration:
the areas outlined by determining the percentagmoli brancls total portfolio that is made up of the particdtzan type and then compar
that concentration to the Bank as a whole. Branegtitts concentrations in these areas are graded smale from 25 basis points to + .
basis points. Second mortgages, single pay loaassl|secured by raw land, unsecured loans and kEmsed by non owner occug
property are considered to be of higher risk thersé of a secured and amortizing basis. LTV exopptplace the Bank at risk in the ever
repossession or foreclosure.
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Measurable Bank Wide Trends are measured on aayjlyalobsis as well. This consists of data trackea dank wide basis in whi
we have identified areas of additional risk or tteed for additional allocation to the allowancelf@n loss. Data is updated quarterly,
area is assigned a basis point value fr@® basis points to + 25 basis points based on lamli area measures to the previous time pe
Net charge offs, loan volume trends and non peifignassets have all trended upwards therefore asarg the need for increased fu
reserved for loan losses. Underwriting standdeggling standards as well as experience/ deptlamf kending management is evaluated
per branch level.

Loans are reviewed for impairment when, in the Bampinion, the ultimate source of repayment willthe liquidation of collater
through foreclosure or repossession. Once idedtifipdated collateral values are obtained on thlese and impairment worksheets
prepared to determine if impairment exists. Thisthond takes into account any expected expense®deia the disposal of the subj
collateral. Specific allowances for these loares done on a per loan basis as each loan is revi@wvarhpairment. Updated appraisals
ordered on real estate loans and updated valuaiensrdered on non real estate loans to deteracitoal market value.

At December 31, 2013, the consolidated allowancddan losses amounted to approximately $5.7 millior .98% of outstandil
loans or 1.21% of loans excluding those bookediatvBlue due to business combination. At Decerdfie2012, the allowance for loan los
amounted to approximately $4.7 million, which wa$4®6 of outstanding loans. The Compangtovision for loan losses was $1,076,00!
the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to §0@2 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctuinéormation and events, it is probable that treerPany will be unable to colle
the scheduled payments of principal or interestrwtiee according to the contractual terms of the lagreement. Factors consideret
management in determining impairment include paynstésius, collateral value, and the probabilitycoflecting scheduled principal a
interest payments when due. Loans that experiensignificant payment delays and payment shortfgieerally are not classified
impaired. Management determines the significangeagment delays and payment shortfalls on a casmbg basis, taking into considera
all of the circumstances surrounding the loan &eddbrrower, including the length of the delay, basons for the delay, the borrovegptiol
payment record, and the amount of the shortfalelation to the principal and interest owed. Impent is measured on a loan by loan b
Impaired loans not deemed collateral dependenaiaatyzed according to the ultimate repayment sowbether that is cash flow from 1
borrower, guarantor or some other source of repaynepaired loans are deemed collateral deperifiémthe Banks opinion the ultima
source of repayment will be generated from theidigtion of collateral.
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The Company discontinues accrual of interest omdoahen management believes, after consideringoeticnand busine
conditions and collection efforts, that a borrowdihancial condition is such that the collectidnnterest is doubtful. Generally, the Comp
will place a delinquent loan in nonaccrual statdsemwthe loan becomes 90 days or more past dudweAirhe a loan is placed in nonacc
status, all interest which has been accrued orotire but remains unpaid is reversed and deducted &arnings as a reduction of repo
interest income. No additional interest is accroadthe loan balance until the collection of botimgipal and interest becomes reason

certain.

The following tables illustrate the Company’s padisé and nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2013Gi 2

December 31, 2013

Past Due 30 to

(In thousands)
Past Due 90 days or

89 Days more and still accruin Non-Accrual
Real Estat-constructior $ 47¢  $ - $ 21z
Real Estat-mortgage 4,69¢ 14¢ 2,45
Real Estai-non farm nonresidentii 252 - 507
Commercia 12 - 9
Consumer 11& 16 -
Total $ 565 $ 15¢ $ 3,181
December 31, 2012
(In thousands)
Past Due 30 to Past Due 90 days or
89 Days more and still accruin Non-Accrual
Real Estat-constructior $ 99C $ - % 1,66
Real Estat-mortgage 3,04 147 1,17¢
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti 38¢ - 60¢
Commercia 88 - 13E
Consumer 132 11 5
Total $ 464, $ 15¢ $ 3,58¢

Total nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2013 amdunt&3.2 million which was a decrease of $.2 willfrom the December @
2012 amount of $3.4 million. Management believeséhrelationships were adequately reserved at Dmsredd, 2013. Restructured loans
reported as past due or nonaccrual at Decemb&03B, amounted to $1.6 million.

A potential problem loan is one in which managentergt serious doubts about the borrowduture performance under the term
the loan contract. These loans are current asitaipal and interest and, accordingly, they areinotuded in nonperforming asset catego
The level of potential problem loans is one factsed in the determination of the adequacy of tlmvaihce for loan losses. At December
2013 and December 31, 2012, The First had potemtiddlem loans of $17,070,000 and $19,164,000 ectsgely. This represents a decre

of $2,094,000.
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Consolidated Allowance For Loan Losses

Years Ended December :

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Average loans outstanding $ 583,20 $ 388,01: $ 354,29 $ 328,95( 320,49!
Loans outstanding at year end $ 583,30: $ 413,69 $ 387,92¢ $ 332,57 318,79
Total nonaccrual loans $ 3,181 $ 3,401 $ 512t $ 4,21: 4,361
Beginning balance of allowan: $ 4,727 $ 4,511 $ 4,617 $ 4,76: 4,78¢
Loans charged-off (759) (1,190 (1,989 (1,370 (1,396)
Total loans charged-off (759) (1,190 (1,987 (1,370 (1,396
Total recoveries 684 17€ 413 242 167
Net loans charge-off (75) (1,012 (1,579 (1,129 (1,229
Acquisition - - - - -
Provision for loan losses 1,07¢ 1,22¢ 1,46¢ 98: 1,20¢€
Balance at year end $ 5,72¢ $ 4727 $ 4511 % 4,61 4,762
Net charg-offs to average loar .01% .2€% A4% .34% .38%
Allowance as percent of total loa .98% 1.14% 1.1€% 1.3%% 1.4<%
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of 1

loans .55% .82% 1.32% 1.27% 1.37%
Allowance as a multiple of nonaccrual lot 1.8X 1.4X .88X 1.1X 1.1X

At December 31, 2013, the components of the alleedar loan losses consisted of the following:

Allowance
(In thousands
Allocated:
Impaired loan: $ 84¢
Graded loans 4,87¢

$ 5,72¢

Graded loans are those loans or pools of loangrasia grade by internal loan review.

18




The following table represents the activity of tiiewance for loan losses for the years 2013 ari®20
Analysis of the Allowance for Loan Losses
Years Ended December 31

2012 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of ye $ 4727 $ 4,511
Chargeoffs:
Real Estat-constructior (30%) (202)
Real Estat-mortgage (152 (559
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidenti ) (260)
Commercial (10%) (16€)
Consumer (197) (209)
Total (759 (2,190
Recoveries
Real Estat-constructior 13z 14
Real Estat-mortgage 39: 37
Real Estat-nonfarm nonresidentii 74 32
Commercial 18 25
Consumer 66 70
Total 684 17¢
Net Charg-offs (75) (1,012
Provision for Loan Losses 1,07¢ 1,22¢
Balance at end of year $ 572¢ $ 4,727

The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretgp well as the percentage of the

category to total loans at December 31, 2013 ad@.20

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 201:

(Dollars in thousands)

% of loans
in each category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 582 14.(%
Commercial Real Esta 3,38¢ 57.2%
Consumer Real Esta 1,427 25.2%
Consume 172 3.4%
Unallocated 162 -
Total $ 5,27¢ 10(%
December 31, 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
% of loans
in each category
Amount to total loans
Commercial Non Real Esta $ 42C 13.2%
Commercial Real Esta 3,33¢ 63.7%
Consumer Real Esta 81C 19.(%
Consume 151 4.C%
Unallocated 8 -
Total $ 4,727 10(%
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Noninterest Income and Expense

Noninterest Income The Companyg primary source of noninterest income is servitarges on deposit accounts. Other sourc
noninterest income include bankcard fees, commissim check sales, safe deposit box rent, wiresteariees, official check fees and b

owned life insurance income.

Noninterest income increased $760,000 or 12.0%ndw013 to $7,083,000 from $6,324,000 for the weated December 31, 20
The deposit activity fees were $3,979,000 for 26@fpared to $3,432,000 for 2012. Other servicegdwdecreased by $240,000 or ¢
from $2,427,000 for the year ended December 312204 $2,187,000 for the year ended December 313.20mpairment losses

investment securities were $0 for 2013 as compiar&@ for 2012.

Noninterest expense increased from $22.2 million the year ended December 31, 2012 to $28.2 milfanthe year ends
December 31, 2013. The Company experienced shghéases in most expense categories. The larggetise was in salaries and emple
benefits, which increased by $2.9 million in 2053campared to 2012. These increases were duetitoghe addition of the Baldwin Cout

branches and staff.

The following table sets forth the primary compatsesf noninterest expense for the periods indicated

Noninterest Expense

Years ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Salaries and employee bene $ 14,85 $ 12,00: $ 9,67¢
Occupancy 2,351 1,79 1,35¢
Equipment 1,56¢ 1,43t 1,114
Marketing and public relatior 451 32¢ 353
Data processin 16¢ 85 46
Supplies and printin 45E 42~ 41€
Telephone 731 533 34¢€
Correspondent servic 74 96 10t
Deposit and other insuran 834 734 86&
Professional and consulting fe 2,43: 747 1,82¢
Postage 302 252 23€
ATM fees 57¢ 434 31C
Other 3,36¢ 3,29¢ 2,21¢

Total $ 28,16 $ 22,16 $ 18,87(

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists of two components fif$tes the current tax expense which represdmseixpected income tax to
paid to taxing authorities. The Company also recmdeferred tax for future deductible amountsiltes) from differences in the financ

statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
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Analysis of Financial Condition

Earning Assets

Loans.Loans typically provide higher yields than the othygpes of earning assets, and thus one of the @oypgoals is for loans
be the largest category of the Company's earnisgtasAt December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectiaghrage loans accounted for 68.0%
59.8% of average earning assets. Management atteampbntrol and counterbalance the inherent ceeditliquidity risks associated with -

higher loan yields without sacrificing asset quatt achieve its asset mix goals. Loans averag&3.85million during 2013, as compare(
$388.0 million during 2012, and $354.3 million chgi2011.

The following table shows the composition of thardgortfolio by category:
Composition of Loan Portfolio

December 31

2013 2012 2011
Percent Percent Percent
Amount Of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans held for sa $ 3,68( 0.6% $ 5,58t 1.4% $ 2,90¢ 0.7%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 81,79: 14.(% 53,23¢ 12.9% 48,38¢ 12.5%
Real Estate
Mortgage-commercia 212,38t 36.4% 142,04¢ 34.2% 138,94 35.&%
Mortgageresidentia 202,34: 34.1% 140,70: 34.(% 117,69. 30.2%
Constructior 67,28 11.5% 57,52¢ 13.€% 63,35’ 16.2%
Consumer and other 15,81: 2.8% 14,60( 3.5% 16,64¢ 4.4%
Total loans 583,30: 10C% 413,69 10C% 387,92¢ 10C%
Allowance for loan losses (5,729 (4,72)) (4,51)
Net loans $ 577,57 $ 408,97( $ 383,41

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatatgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thamdofor construction purpos
secured by real estate, regardless of the purpbsieedoan. The Company follows the common practiédinancial institutions in tr
Companys market area of obtaining a security interesteial estate whenever possible, in addition to aigroavailable collateral. Tt
collateral is taken to reinforce the likelihoodth& ultimate repayment of the loan and tends toeame the magnitude of the real estate
portfolio component. Generally, the Company limits loan-tovalue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maintainonservativ
philosophy regarding its underwriting guidelinesdarelieves it will reduce the risk elements of laan portfolio through strategies t
diversify the lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary ma@k@nmitments from investc
to purchase the loans are obtained upon origination
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The following table sets forth the Company's conuiarand construction real estate loans maturingpiwispecified intervals
December 31, 2013.

Loan Maturity Schedule and Sensitivity to Changesn Interest Rates

December 31, 2013
Over One Yeal
One Year Through Over Five
Type or Less Five Years Years Total
(In thousands)

Commercial, financial and agricultul $ 49,237 $ 27,78 $ 477C $ 81,79:
Real estate — construction 42,24: 25,04 - 67,28’

$ 91,47¢ $ 52,83( $ 477C $ 149,07!
Loans maturing after one year wi $ 43,82¢
Fixed interest rates 13,77«
Floating interest rates $ 57,60(

The information presented in the above table iethas the contractual maturities of the individieains, including loans which m
be subject to renewal at their contractual matufgnewal of such loans is subject to review arditrapproval, as well as modification
terms upon their maturity.

Investment Securitie§he investment securities portfolio is a signific@omponent of the Company's total earning as3ettal
securities averaged $248.2 million in 2013, as cneg to $235.8 million in 2012 and $134.8 milliond011. This represents 29.0%, 36.
and 27.1% of the average earning assets for thes yaaled December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, réspgctAt December 31, 201
investment securities were $258.0 million and repnéed 30.1% of earning assets. The Company atelmphaintain a portfolio of hig
quality, highly liquid investments with returns cpatitive with shortterm U.S. Treasury or agency obligations. This cbje is particularl
important as the Company focuses on growing ita jpartfolio. The Company primarily invests in saties of U.S. Government agenc
municipals, and corporate obligations with matastup to five years.

The following table summarizes the carrying valfisexurities for the dates indicated.
Securities Portfolio

December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Available-for-sale

U. S. Government agenci $ 108,14t $ 98,32¢ $ 103,00«
States and municipal subdivisia 108,07¢ 98,91( 94,25¢
Corporate obligation 26,85: 16,18" 14,29:
Mutual finds 972 97C 974
Total available-for-sale 244 ,05: 214,39: 212,52¢
Held-to-maturity
U.S. Government agenci 2,43¢ 2,47(C 2
States and municipal subdivisions 6,00( 6,00( 6,00(
Total held-to-maturity 8,43¢ 8,47( 6,00:
Total $ 25248t $ 22286: $ 218,53:
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The following table shows, at carrying value, tbheduled maturities and average yields of secsaiitedd at December 31, 2013.
Investment Securities Maturity Distribution and Yields (1)

December 31, 201

After One But After Five But
(Dollars in thousands Within One Yeal Within Five Years Within Ten Year: After Ten Year
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Held-to-maturity:
U.S. Government agencies | $ - -8 - -8 - - $ - -
States and municipal subdivisic - - - - - - 6,00( .93%
Total investment securities h-to-maturity $ - $ - $ - $ 6,00(
Available-for-sale: - - - -
U.S. Government agencies | $ 3,56¢€ 98% $  25,91¢ 111% $ 477 1.0% $ - -
States and municipal subdivisic 12,66: 2.7% 44,06( 2.8&% 30,73¢ 4.05% 20,61¢ 4.8%%
Corporate obligations and otf 2,03t 1.5(% 11,36¢ 1.92% 7,68¢ 2.71% 6,73¢ 1.7¢%
Total investment securities available-for-sale $  18,26: $ 81,34 $ 38,90 $ 27,35:

(1) Investments with a call feature are shown as ottrgractual maturity dai
(2) Excludes mortgac-backed securities totaling $2.4 million with a vielf 2.63%
(3) Excludes mortga(-backed securities totaling $78.2 million with algtief 2.27% and mutual funds of $1.0 milli

Short-Term InvestmentShort-term investments, consisting of Federal FuBdkl, funds in due from banks and intereséring
deposits with banks, averaged $18.6 million in 2081.7 million in 2012, and $5.5 million in 2014t December 31, 2013, and Decen
31, 2012, shorterm investments totaled $967,000 and $1,064,@8perctively. These funds are a primary source @fQbmpany's liquidil
and are generally invested in an earning capaaitgroovernight basis.

Deposits
Deposits.Average total deposits increased $125.1 million26:3% in 2012. Average total deposits increase@D &L million, o

26.6% in 2013. At December 31, 2013, total deposése $780.0 million, compared to $596.6 millioyear earlier, an increase of $1¢&
million, or 30.7%.
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The following table sets forth the deposits of @@mpany by category for the period indicated.

Deposits
December 31
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Percent Percent Percent
of of of

Amount Deposits Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
Noninteres-bearing account $ 173,79: 22.2% $ 109,62 18.4% $ 107,12¢ 18.7%
NOW accountt 240,51 30.8% 230,58 38.€%  200,21( 34.%
Money market accoun 107,56« 13.&8% 47,32¢ 7.% 43,29¢ 7.€%
Savings accoun 55,11 7.1% 48,15 8.1% 45,64 8.C%
Time deposits less than $100,( 86,36: 11.1% 69,11¢ 11.6% 77,56¢ 13.5%
Time deposits of $100,000 or over 116,62 14.% 91,82’ 15.2% 99,54¢ 17.2%
Total deposits $ 779,97 10% $ 596,62 10% $ 573,39 10(%

The Company’s loan-to-deposit ratio was 74.3% atdbber 31, 2013 and 68.4% at December 31, 2012I|0Bmetodeposit rati
averaged 76.6% during 2013. Core deposits, whictudr time deposits of $100,000 or more, providelatively stable funding source
the Company's loan portfolio and other earning tas§éhe Company's core deposits were $663.3 miliioBecember 31, 2013 and $5(
million at December 31, 2012. Management anticgp#tat a stable base of deposits will be the Cowylpaorimary source of funding to m
both its short-term and longrm liquidity needs in the future. The Company paschased brokered deposits from time to timeelp func
loan growth. Brokered deposits and jumbo certiisabf deposit generally carry a higher interest thain traditional core deposits. Furt
brokered deposit customers typically do not hawn lor other relationships with the Company. The @amy has adopted a policy no
permit brokered deposits to represent more than di08# of the Company’s deposits.

The maturity distribution of the Company's certifies of deposit of $100,000 or more at Decembe2813, is shown in tt
following table. The Company did not have any offirae deposits of $100,000 or more.

Maturities of Certificates of Deposit
of $100,000 or More

After Three
Within Three Through After Twelve
(In thousands) Months Twelve Month: Months Total
December 31, 2013 $ 28,70. $ 49,487 $ 38,43t $ 116,62

Borrowed Funds

Borrowed funds consist of advances from the Feddaahe Loan Bank of Dallas, federal funds purchamed reverse repurche
agreements. At December 31, 2013, advances fronkihd3 totaled $47.0 million compared to $31.8 noilliat December 31, 2012. 1
advances are collateralized by a blanket lien erfitst mortgage loans in the amount of the outtitemborrowings, FHLB capital stock, ¢
amounts on deposit with the FHLB. There were nefabfunds purchased at December 31, 2013 and Dexredd, 2012.
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Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $6@agreement. The agreement is secured by sesusiith a fair value «
$6,530,592 at December 31, 2013 and $6,421,762e¢m@ber 31, 2012. The maturity date of the remgiagreement is September 26, Z
with a rate of 3.81%.

Subordinated Debentures

In 2006, the Company issued subordinated debentir$d,124,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stayutrust 2 (Trust 2). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the Tug he Trust 2 issued $4,000,000 of preferredistées to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemtshe debentures to the Trust 2. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableyatimne beginning in 2011 and thereafter, and nesitn2036. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

In 2007, the Company issued subordinated debentir$§,186,000 to The First Bancshares, Inc. Stayutrust 3 (Trust 3). Tt
Company is the sole owner of the equity of the T8uS he Trust 3 issued $6,000,000 of preferredisées to investors. The Company me
interest payments and will make principal paymemtshe debentures to the Trust 3. These paymelitbevihe source of funds used to re
the preferred securities, which are redeemableyatimne beginning in 2012 and thereafter, and nasitu2037. The Company entered into
arrangement to provide funding for expected growth.

Capital

Total shareholderséquity as of December 31, 2013, was $85.1 milliamn,increase of $19.2 million or approximately 29,
compared with shareholders' equity of $65.9 milésnof December 31, 2012.

The Federal Reserve Board and bank regulatory aggerequire bank holding companies and financgtituitions to maintain capit
at adequate levels based on a percentage of asskbtdffbalance sheet exposures, adjusted for risk werghtging from 0% to 100%. Unc
the riskbased standard, capital is classified into twasti@rer 1 capital consists of common shareholdeysity, excluding the unrealized g
(loss) on available-fosale securities, minus certain intangible asseats. Z capital consists of the general reserve danllosses, subject
certain limitations. An institution’s total risk-bad capital for purposes of its riblesed capital ratio consists of the sum of its Tiand Tier
capital. The risk-based regulatory minimum requieeis are 4% for Tier 1 and 8% for total risk-basayiital.

Bank holding companies and banks are also reqtir@saintain capital at a minimum level based oaltassets, which is known
the leverage ratio. The minimum requirement forlthesrage ratio is 4%. All but the highest ratestimtions are required to maintain ra
100 to 200 basis points above the minimum. The Gom@and The First exceeded their minimum regulatapital ratios as of December
2013 and 2012.

25




Analysis of Capital

Adequately Well The Compan The First
Capital Ratios Capitalized Capitalized December 31 December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
Leverage 4.(% 5.C% 9.C% 8.€% 8.5% 8.4%
Risk-based capita
Tier 1 4.(% 6.C% 12.5% 12.&8% 12.2% 12.7%
Total 8.C% 10.(% 13.2% 13.8% 13.%% 13.6%
Ratios
2013 2012 2011
Return on assets (net income applicable to comnomkisolders
divided by average total asse A% .51% A4%
Return on equity (net income applicable to comntooldolders
divided by average equit' 5.C% 5.7% 5.2%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share divithgchet income pe
common share 15.€% 12.9% 18.2%
Equity to asset ratio (average equity divided bgrage total asset 9.C% 8.8% 8.4%

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves monitoring the Comyansources and uses of funds in order to meedatstoday cash flo\
requirements while maximizing profits. Liquiditymesents the ability of a company to convert assétscash or cash equivalents witk
significant loss and to raise additional funds hgréasing liabilities. Liquidity management is madere complicated because diffel
balance sheet components are subject to varyingede@f management control. For example, the tinohgiaturities of the investme
portfolio is very predictable and subject to a hitggree of control at the time investment decisamesmade; however, net deposit inflows
outflows are far less predictable and are not smlifethe same degree of control. Asset liquidityprovided by cash and assets whict
readily marketable, which can be pledged, or whiglh mature in the near future. Liability liquiditis provided by access to core func
sources, principally the ability to generate custogeposits in the Company’s market area.

The Company's Federal Funds Sold position, whicludes funds in due from banks and intetesstring deposits with banks
typically its primary source of liquidity, averagékl8.6 million during the year ended December 31132and totaled $10.9 million
December 31, 2013. Also, the Company has availati@nces from the Federal Home Loan Bank. Advaaca#able are generally bas
upon the amount of qualified first mortgage loansiolr can be used for collateral. At December 311320dvances available tota
approximately $181.8 million of which $47.0 millidrad been drawn, or used for letters of credit.
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Management regularly reviews the liquidity positmfithe Company and has implementetgrnal policies which establish guideli
for sources of asset-based liquidity and limit tiiial amount of purchased funds used to supporbdtence sheet and funding from noore
sources.

EESA also increased FDIC deposit insurance on amsiunts from $100,000 to $250,000. However, thithpassage of the Dodd-
Frank Act, this increase in the basic coveraget lias been made permanent.

Subprime Assets
The Bank does not engage in subprime lending éieiviargeted towards borrowers in high risk catiego
Accounting Matters

Information on new accounting matters is set fantRootnote B to the Consolidated Financial Stamsecluded at Item 8 in this rep:
This information is incorporated herein by refer@nc

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, the assets aatlliiies of financial institutions such as the Gmany are primarily monetary
nature. Therefore, interest rates have a morefgignt effect on the Company's performance thathdceffects of changes in the general
of inflation and change in prices. In addition girgst rates do not necessarily move in the sarmeetiin or in the same magnitude as the p
of goods and services. As discussed previously agement seeks to manage the relationships betwesest sensitive assets and liabil
in order to protect against wide interest ratetflations, including those resulting from inflation.
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REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
The First Bancshares, Inc.
Hattiesburg, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The First Bancshares, Inc., as of iBleee 31, 2013 and 2012, and
related consolidated statements of income, compehe income (loss), changes in stockholders' ggaitd cash flows for each of the ye
in the twoyear period ended December 31, 2013. The manageshdiiie First Bancshares, Inc. is responsible tiesé financial statemer
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighauBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thetaitmliobtain reasonable assurance about whethdén#recial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsridl control over financial reportir
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtver financial reporting as a basis for designamudit procedures that are appropria
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comigamternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinién. audit includes examining, on a test basis, @@ supporting the amounts

disclosures in the financial statements. An aul$ib ancludes assessing the accounting principlesl @d significant estimates made
management, as well as evaluating the overall Gigdustatement presentation. We believe that oditayrovide a reasonable basis for
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of The F

Bancshares, Inc., as of December 31, 2013 and 20itRthe consolidated results of its operationsitndash flows for each of the year:

the two-year period ended December 31, 2013, ifocarity with accounting principles generally acagghin the United States of America.
/s/ T. E. LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississipy

March 31, 201«
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 24,079,59 $ 20,225,12
Interes-bearing deposits with ban 14,205,33 9,587,60:
Federal funds sold 967,00( 1,064,00!
Total cash and cash equivale 39,251,92 30,876,722
Held-to-maturity securities (fair value of $9,624,427 03 and $7,055,499 in 201 8,438,43! 8,470,10:
Available-for-sale securitie 244,050,67 214,392,68
Other securities 5,533,85I 3,437,75|
Total securitie: 258,022,95 226,300,53
Loans held for sale 3,679,52. 5,585,37.
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $5,727 j& 2013 and $4,726,618 in 20 573,894,86 403,384,64
Interest receivabl 3,291,88 2,887,28
Premises and equipme 32,071,74 22,242,83
Cash surrender value of life insurar 6,593,40: 6,441,10!
Goodwill 10,620,81 9,362,49i
Other assets 13,462,96 14,304,27.
Total assets $ 940,890,07 $ 721,385,28
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninteres-bearing $ 173,793,89 $ 109,624,64
Interest-bearing 606,177,14 487,001,94
Total deposit: 779,971,03 596,626,58
Interest payabl 399,97¢ 212,04:
Borrowed funds 52,000,00 36,770,77
Subordinated debentur 10,310,00 10,310,00
Other liabilities 13,100,72 11,580,41
Total liabilities 855,781,73 655,499,81
Stockholder Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, $1,000 per shauédiédion, 10,000,000 shares authorized; 17,
shares issued and outstanding in 2013 and 20 & atxeely 17,102,50 17,020,53
Common stock, par value $1 per share: 10,000,08&slauthorized; 5,122,941 and 3,133,5¢
shares issued and outstanding in 2013 and 20df2ectvely 5,122,94. 3,133,591
Additional paic-in capital 42,086,46 23,710,77
Retained earning 22,508,91 19,951,17
Accumulated other comprehensive income (i (1,248,84 2,533,02!
Treasury stock, at cost (463,64 (463,64%)
Total stockholders’ equity 85,108,34 65,885,46
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 940,890,07 $  721,385,28

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loa

Interest and dividends on securiti
Taxable interest and dividen
Tax-exempt interes

Interest on federal funds sc

Interest on deposits in banks
Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or
Interest on other depos
Interest on borrowed funds
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

OTHER INCOME
Service charges on deposit accol
Other service charges and ft
Bank owned life insurance incor
Loss on sale of other real est
Other
Total other income

OTHER EXPENSE
Salaries
Employee benefit
Occupancy
Furniture and equipmel
Supplies and printin
Professional and consulting fe
Marketing and public relatior
FDIC and OCC assessme
Other

Total other expense

30

2013 2012

25,736,16 21,412,46
3,279,36 2,744.64:
2,140,08. 2,040,41;
62,24 50,68¢
100,16 82,71¢
31,318,03 26,330,92
698,58 1,050,13:
1,601,02 2,016,49
617,65 1,069,98;
2,917,25 4,136,61
28,400,77 22,194,31
1,075,98: 1,228,01
27,324,79 20,966,29
3,979,15 3,431,57!
2,187,22! 2,426,75!
152,29 170,91
(76,537 (55,426)
841,14 349,92:
7,083,29 6,323,75.
12,216,09 10,059,38
2,638,55! 1,941,33
2,351,00! 1,797,34
1,568,11: 1,435,15:
455,44; 425,08(
2,433,11 746,94:
451,01¢ 329,36:
766,50 681,54(
5,285,14 4,747,76.
28,165,00 22,163,90




Continued:

Income before income tax
Income taxes

Net income

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Preferred dividends and stock accretion
Net income applicable to common stockholders

Net income per shar
Basic
Diluted

Net income applicable to common stockhold

Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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2013 2012
6,243,08! 5,126,141
1,603,59 1,077,37
4,639,49! 4,048,76
424,42t 424,42t
4,215,06 3,624,33!
1.07 1.31
1.0¢ 1.2¢€
.98 1.17
.96 1.1¢




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012
Net income $ 4,639,490 $  4,048,76
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains on securitie
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising durirgkriod (5,676,94) 3,022,771
Plus reclassification adjustment for losses inatligienet income - -
(5,676,94) 3,022,771
Unrealized holding losses on loans held for (55,967 (36,365
Income tax benefit (expense) 1,951,03 (1,015,38i)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (3,781,87) 1,971,03.
Comprehensive income $ 857,620 $  6,019,79

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Accun-
ulated
Other
Compre-
Additional hensive
Common Preferrec Stock Paid-in Retainec Income Treasury
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
Balance, January 1, 20 $ 3,092,560 $ 16,93857 $ 283,73t $ 23,220,49 $ 16,79156 $ 561,99° $ (463,64) $ 60,425,28
Net income 201: - - - - 4,048,76' - - 4,048,76'
Other comprehensive incor 1,971,03 1,971,03
Dividends on preferred stot - - - - (342,46() - - (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15 pe
common shar - - - - (464,72) - - (464,72)
Grant of restricted stoc 42,79¢ - - (42,795 - - - -
Compensation cost on restrict
stock - - - 263,21t - - - 263,21t
Preferred stock accretic - 81,96¢ - - (81,96¢) - - -
Repurchase of restricted stock fc
payment of taxes (1,76%) - - (13,877) - - - (15,642
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 3,13359 $ 17,02053 $ 283,73 $ 23,427,03 $ 19,951,17 $ 2,533,020 $ (463,64) $ 65,88546
Net income 201: - - - = 4,639,49! - - 4,639,49!
Other comprehensive incor - - - - - (3,781,87) - (3,781,87)
Dividends on preferred stot - - - - (342,46() - - (342,46()
Cash dividend declared, $.15 |
common shar - - - - (615,78) - - (615,78)
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Continued:

Grant of restricted stoc

Compensation cost on restrict
stock

Preferred stock accretic

Repurchase of restricted stock fc
payment of taxe

Issuance of 1,951,220 comm
shares

Balance, December 31, 20

THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Accun-
ulated
Other
Compre-
Additional hensive
Common Preferrec Stock Paid-in Retainec Income Treasury
Stock Stock Warrants Capital Earnings (Loss) Stock Total
39,91 - > (39,919 - - - 2
- - - 391,77 - - - 391,77
- 81,96¢ - - (81,96%) - - -
(1,78%) - - (24,96)) - - - (26,749
1,951,22 - - 18,048,78 (1,041,54) - - 18,958,46
5122,94. $ 17,102,50 $ 283,73t $ 41,802,72 $ 22,50891 $ (1,248,84) $ (463,64) $ 85,108,34

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 4,639,490 $ 4,048,76
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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Depreciation and amortizatic 1,915,39: 1,724,05
FHLB Stock dividend: (4,100 (3,300)
Provision for loan losse 1,075,98. 1,228,011
Deferred income taxe 1,707,40. (136,34
Restricted stock expen 391,77 263,21¢
Increase in cash value of life insurai (152,299 (170,919
Amortization and accretion, n (107,17() 789,99¢
Writedown of bank propert 193,07: -
Loss on sale/writedown of other real es 350,02: 526,95
Changes in
Loans held for sal 2,671,88! (2,716,03))
Interest receivabl (54,600 (115,61)
Other asset 4,412,57! 3,255,801
Interest payabl (153,069 (95,71)
Other liabilities 1,108,98! 1,624,58
Net cash provided by operating activities 17,995,36 10,223,47
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of availal-for-sale securitie (83,415,97) (60,102,10)
Purchases of other securit (2,780,101 (1,409,301
Purchases of he-to-maturity securitie! - (2,489,45I)
Proceeds from maturities and calls of avail-for-sale securitie 52,237,98 59,198,13
Proceeds from redemption of other securi 788,20( 620,10(
Increase in loan (50,100,14) (29,994,97)
Net additions to premises and equiprr (746,724 (448,272
Cash received in excess of cash paid for acquisitio 43,150,000 -
Net cash used in investing activities (40,866,75) (34,625,86)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in depo (1,971,43) 23,170,42
Proceeds from borrowed fun 47,000,00 133,340,00
Repayment of borrowed fun (31,770,77) (123,601,05)
Dividends paid on common sto (600,459 (453,109
Dividends paid on preferred sto (342,46() (342,46()
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of ti (26,749 (15,647
Issuance of 1,951,220 common shares, net 18,958,46 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 31,246,59 32,098,16




THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Continued: 2013 2012
Net increase in cash and cash equival 8,375,20 7,695,77.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 30,876,722 23,180,95
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3925192 $ 30,876,72
Supplemental disclosure
Cash paid during the year fot
Interest $ 2,729,320 $  4,232,32
Income taxe: 980,49( 1,562,85!
Non-cash activities:
Transfers of loans to other real est 2,136,68 6,198,001
Issuance of restricted stock gra 39,918 42,795

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktegements.
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THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A- NATURE OF BUSINESS

The First Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) is a baslking company whose business is primarily conelidby its whollyewnec
subsidiary, The First, A National Banking Assomati{the Bank). The Bank provides a full range afkiag services in its primary marl
area of South Mississippi, South Alabama, and BagglLouisiana. The Company is regulated by theraed®Reserve Bank. Its subsidi
bank is subject to the regulation of the Officdtef Comptroller of the Currency (OCC).

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company and the Bank follow accounting prirespyenerally accepted in the United States of Asadricluding, where applicab
general practices within the banking industry.

1. Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements include ttemants of the Company and its whotlyned subsidiary. All significant intercomps
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

2. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States of Ameri
requires management to make estimates and assusghat affect the reported amounts of assets wahdities and disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ef fihancial statements and the reported amount®wdnues and expenses during
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates. Material estimates that are péatlg susceptible to significant char
in the near term relate to the determination ofalfmvance for loan losses and the valuation oédefl tax assets.

3. Cash and Due From Bank

Included in cash and due from banks are legal ves@quirements which must be maintained on anageecbasis in the form of cash .
balances due from the Federal Reserve. The rebataace varies depending upon the types and amotidksposits. At December !
2013, the required reserve balance on deposittivitirederal Reserve Bank was approximately $8,006,0

4. Securities
Investments in securities are accounted for asviali
Available-for-Sale Securities

Securities classified as available-&ale are those securities that are intended telokefér an indefinite period of time, but not nexasly
to maturity. Any decision to sell a security cldiesl as available-fosale would be based on various factors, includimmyements i
interest rates, liquidity needs, security risk asseents, changes in the mix of assets and liasiliind other similar factors. Th
securities are carried at their estimated fair #and the net unrealized gain or loss is repor&tf tax, as a component of accumul
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockhold=yaity, until realized. Premiums and discountsrapegnized in interest income us
the interest method. Gains and losses on the $ad@adlable-forsale securities are determined using the adjusist af the specif
security sold.
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Securities to be Held-to-Maturity

Securities classified as held-teaturity are those securities for which there ipoaitive intent and ability to hold to maturity. 83t
securities are carried at cost adjusted for araditin of premiums and accretion of discounts, camxbipy the interest method.

Trading Account Securities

Trading account securities are those securitiegtwhie held for the purpose of selling them atdifprThere were no trading acco
securities on hand at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Other Securities

Other securities are carried at cost and are cestrin marketability. Other securities consistirofestments in the Federal Home L
Bank (FHLB), Federal Reserve Bank and First Natiddankers’ Bankshares, Inc. Management reviews for impairniested on tf
ultimate recoverability of the cost basis.

Other-than-Temporary Impairment

Management evaluates investment securities forrakf@temporary impairment on a quarterly basis. A declin the fair value «
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securitiedow cost that is deemed other-titamporary is charged to earnings for a declir
value deemed to be credit related and a new cass bar the security is established. The declingdlue attributed to nooredit relate
factors is recognized in other comprehensive income

5. Loans held for sale

The Bank originates fixed rate single family, resitial first mortgage loans on a presold basis. Béuek issues a rate lock commitmer
a customer and concurrently “locks iwith a secondary market investor under a best tsffdelivery mechanism. Such loans are
without the servicing retained by the Bank. Thenteiof the loan are dictated by the secondary investnd are transferred within sev
weeks of the Bank initially funding the loan. Thar recognizes certain origination fees and semgtEase fees upon the sale, whict
included in other income on loans in the consolidattatements of income. Between the initial fugdifthe loans by the Bank and
subsequent purchase by the investor, the Banlesatre loans held for sale at the lower of co$aiovalue in the aggregate as determ
by the outstanding commitments from investors.

6. Loans
Loans are carried at the principal amount outstamdiet of the allowance for loan losses. Inteirgstme on loans is recognized base

the principal balance outstanding and the statedafithe loan. Loan origination fees and certaiedl origination costs are deferred
recognized as an adjustment of the related lodd yi&ng the interest method.
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A loan is considered impaired, in accordance with impairment accounting guidance of Accountingn8sads Codification (AS(
Section 310-10-35Receivables, Subsequent Measuremeamhen—based upon current events and informatibrisqprobable that tt
scheduled payments of principal and interest will lIne collected in accordance with the contracterahs of the loan agreement. Fac
considered by management in determining impairrrehide payment status, collateral values, angtbbability of collecting schedul
payments of principal and interest when due. Gdigermpairment is measured on a loan by loan basi®g the fair value of tl
supporting collateral.

Loans are generally placed on a nonaccrual states wrincipal or interest is past due ninety daywlwen specifically determined to
impaired. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual statterest accrued but not received is generaWensed against interest income
collectibility is in doubt, cash receipts on normad loans are used to reduce principal rather tieaorded in interest income. Past
status is determined based upon contractual terms.

7. Allowance for Loan Losse

For financial reporting purposes, the provisionlé@mn losses charged to operations is based upoageaent's estimations of the am
necessary to maintain the allowance at an adedgsde Allowances for any impaired loans are gelieidetermined based on collate
values. Loans are charged against the allowandedarlosses when management believes the coilégtifif the principal is unlikely.

Management evaluates the adequacy of the allowandéean losses on a regular basis. These evahmtoe based upon a periodic re\
of the collectibility considering historical expenice, the nature and value of the loan portfolimeulying collateral values, internal ¢
independent loan reviews, and prevailing economoieditions. In addition, the OCC, as a part of tegutatory examination proce
reviews the loan portfolio and the allowance farldosses and may require changes in the allowaaesd upon information available
the time of the examination. The allowance congiétsvo components: allocated and unallocated. ddreponents represent an estime
done pursuant to either ASC Topic 48yntingencies or ASC Subtopic 310-1®Receivables The allocated component of the allowe
reflects expected losses resulting from an anatiei®loped through specific credit allocationsiftividual loans, including any impair
loans, and historical loan loss history. The analissperformed quarterly and loss factors are tgatieegularly.

The unallocated portion of the allowance reflecemagemens$ estimate of probable inherent but undetecteefoadthin the portfolio dt
to uncertainties in economic conditions, changesoifateral values, unfavorable information aboutoarowers financial condition, ar
other risk factors that have not yet manifestednedves. In addition, the unallocated allowancduihes a component that explic
accounts for the inherent imprecision in the lazsslanalysis.

8. Premises and Equipmer

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, leashatated depreciation. The depreciation policyoigtovide for depreciation over |
estimated useful lives of the assets using thégbtrine method. Repairs and maintenance expenditueesharged to operating expen
major expenditures for renewals and bettermentsap#alized and depreciated over their estimatsdull lives. Upon retirement, sale
other disposition of property and equipment, thet@nd accumulated depreciation are eliminated fiteenaccounts, and any gains
losses are included in operations.
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9. Other Real Estatt

Other real estate, carried in other assets in ¢hsalidated balance sheets, consists of propextigsired through foreclosure and, as
for sale property, is recorded at the lower ofdgbestanding loan balance or current appraisaldsmated costs to sell. Any writlwn tc
fair value required at the time of foreclosurehisuged to the allowance for loan losses. Subse@ans or losses on other real estat
reported in other operating income or expensesDédember 31, 2013 and 2012, other real estateetbtd,470,249 and $6,782,4
respectively.

10. Goodwill and Other Intangible Asse
Goodwill totaled $10,620,814 and $9,362,498 forytbars ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, resggctive

Goodwill totaling $1,258,316 acquired during theyended December 31, 2013 was a result of theisiton of First National Bank
Baldwin County. Footnote C to these consolidatedritial statements provides additional informatarthe acquisition during 2013.

The Company performed the required annual impaitrreests of goodwill as of December 1, 2013. The Gany’s annual impairment te
did not indicate impairment as of the testing dated subsequent to that date, management is natafiaany events or changes
circumstances since the impairment test that wimditate that goodwill might be impaired.

The Companys acquisition method recognized intangible asseltéch are subject to amortization, and includediher assets in t
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, inclogedeposit intangibles, amortized on a stralgig-basis, over a 10 year average
The definite-lived intangible assets had the folluywcarrying values at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

2013 2012
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulatec Carrying Carrying Accumulatec Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(Dollars in thousands
Core deposit intangibles $ 3,77¢  $ (1,09¢) $ 2671 $ 3,098 $ (743 $ 2,352

During 2013, the Company recorded $679,970 in depmsit intangible assets related to the deposifsiged in the Baldwin acquisition.
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The related amortization expense of business catibmrelated intangible assets is as follows:

(dollars in thousand:

Amount

Aggregate amortization expense for the year endszbDber 31
2012 $ 30¢
2013 35E

Estimated amortization expense for the year enbimcember 31
2014 $ 377
2015 377
2016 36C
2017 30¢
2018 30¢
Thereafter 947
$ 2,67

11. Other Assets and Cash Surrender Value

Financing costs related to the issuance of junidrosdinated debentures are being amortized ovelifth®f the instruments and ¢
included in other assets. The Company invests ik lbsvned life insurance (BOLI). BOLI involves thearghasing of life insurance by 1
Company on a chosen group of employees. The Comigatine owner of the policies and, accordingly, tiash surrender value of
policies is reported as an asset, and increasesimsurrender values are reported as income.

12. Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock based compensatioactordance with ASC Topic 71&ompensation - Stock Compensation
Compensation cost is recognized for all stock oystigranted based on the weighted average fair géhas price at the grant date.

13. Income Taxes

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects efttAnsactions reported in the financial statemantsconsist of taxes currently pay:
plus deferred taxes related primarily to differenbetween the bases of assets and liabilities asuned by income tax laws and tl
bases as reported in the financial statements. ddferred tax assets and liabilities represent tliaré tax consequences of th
differences, which will either be taxable or dedhletwhen the assets and liabilities are recoverezkttied.

The Company and its subsidiary file consolidatezbine tax returns. The subsidiary provides for inedaxes on a separate return t
and remits to the Company amounts determined fiaipable.

ASC Topic 740Jncome Taxesprovides guidance on financial statement recogmigind measurement of tax positions taken, or egg
to be taken, in tax returns. ASC Topic 740 requine®valuation of tax positions to determine if téve positions will more likely than n
be sustainable upon examination by the approptéadaeg authority. The Company at December 31, 281@® 2012, had no uncertain
positions that qualify for either recognition osdiosure in the financial statements.

14. Advertising Costt

Advertising costs are expensed in the period inctvithey are incurred. Advertising expense for teary ended December 31, 2013
2012, was $419,873 and $278,330, respectively.
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15. Statements of Cash Flow

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egatvalents include cash, amounts due from bdntesestbearing deposits with bar
and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funéssatd for a one to seven day period.

16. Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instrument

In the ordinary course of business, the subsidimk enters into ofbalance sheet financial instruments consistingoofimitments t
extend credit, credit card lines and standby Iettércredit. Such financial instruments are recdritethe financial statements when t
are exercised.

17. Earnings Applicable to Common Stockholde

Per share amounts are presented in accordancéA®EhTopic 260Earnings Per ShardJnder ASC Topic 260, two per share amo
are considered and presented, if applicable. Basicshare data is calculated based on the weigivterdge number of common shi
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted pkare data includes any dilution from potent@nmon stock, such as outstanc
stock options .

The following table discloses the reconciliationtbé numerators and denominators of the basic dated computations applicable
common stockholders:

For the Year Ende For the Year Ende
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Net Net
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator Amount (Numerator) (Denominatot Amount
Basic per common share $ 4,215,06 4,319,48! ¢ 98 $ 3,624,33 3,101,41 $ 1.17
Effect of dilutive shares
Restricted Stock 53,44¢ 23,85¢
$ 4,215,06 4,372,931 $ 9€ $ 3,624,33 3,125,26 $ 1.1¢€

The diluted per share amounts were computed byimgpthe treasury stock method.
18. Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the Zbfancial statements to conform with the cldgstions used in 2013. The

reclassifications did not impact the Company's otidated financial condition or results of operato
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19. Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011*B4aJance Sheet Disclosures about Offsetting Asaet$ Liabilities.” The ASL
amends ASC Topic 210 by requiring additional imm@vinformation to be disclosed regarding finandmadtruments and derivati
instruments that are offset in accordance withciaditions under ASC 210-20-45 or ASC 81548)or subject to an enforceable me
netting arrangement or similar agreement. The amend is effective for annual and interim reportipgriods beginning on or af
January 1, 2013. The disclosures required by thendments should be applied retrospectively focathparative periods presented
January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-01,rifglag the Scope of Disclosures about OffsettingsAts and Liabilities.The ASL
clarifies that ordinary trade receivables and nesdglies are not in the scope of ASU 2a111-Only derivatives, repurchase agreement:
reverse purchase agreements, and securities bagawid securities lending transactions that ateeiffset in accordance with spec
criteria contained in the Codification or subjectat master netting arrangement or similar agreemenapplicable. The amendments
not have a material impact on the financial statgme

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*@dmprehensive Income Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumud
Other Comprehensive Incoméelhe amendments do not change the current requitsnf@nreporting net income or other compreher
income in financial statements. These amendmermgairee an entity to provide information about the camts reclassified out

accumulated other comprehensive income by compohemtddition, an entity is required to presenh@iton the face of the staterr
where net income is presented or in the notesjfsignt amounts reclassified out of accumulatedeotbomprehensive income by

respective line items of net income but only if #mount reclassified is required under U. S. GAAP¢ reclassified to net income in
entirety in the same reporting period. For othepants that are not required under U. S. GAAP todmtassified in their entirety to r
income, an entity is required to cragference to other disclosures required under G/AAP that provide additional details about tf
amounts. ASU 20182 was effective for interim and annual periodsifbeigg after December 15, 2012. The Company adofiie
standard on January 1, 2013. The effect of adophiisgguidance increased the disclosures surrogndiclassification items, if any, out
accumulated other comprehensive income.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013*Digbilities — Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several LidpiArrangement
for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Etk at the Reporting DateThe ASU requires entities to measure obligatiossiltec
from joint and several liability arrangements fdnigh the total amount of the obligation within theope of this guidance is fixed at
reporting date. The measurement is the sum of thetlamount the reporting entity agreed to pay erbidsis of its arrangement amony
co-obligors and any additional amount the reporémdity expects to pay on behalf of its @bligors. Required disclosures includ
description of the joint-and-several arrangemenmt e total outstanding amount of the obligation d6 joint parties. ASU 20184 is
effective for interim and annual periods beginnimgor after December 15, 2013. The ASU should Ipdiegbretrospectively to obligatio
existing at the beginning of an entiyfiscal year of adoption. Early adoption is petetit The Company is currently evaluating
possible effects of this guidance on its finanstatement disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, time Taxes -Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Whé&etOperatin
Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Taxdir€arryforward Exists." The ASU requires an entity to present a unrecognias
benefit, or a portion thereof, in the financialtstaents as a reduction to a deferred tax assenf&fOL carryforward, a similar tax loss.
a tax credit carryforward, except when the entigsinot intend to use the deferred tax assetedtdém is not available as of the repor
date. ASU 20131 is effective for interim and annual periods bedgig after December 15, 2013. Early adoption agtdospectiv
application is permitted. The Company is curresthaluating the possible effects of this guidancé®financial statements.
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NOTE C- BUSINESS COMBINATION
On April 30, 2013, the Company completed the adtijois of all of the outstanding shares of First idatl Bank of Baldwin County,
wholly-owned subsidiary of First Baldwin Bancshares, Imn, Alabama corporation, which included five (5ariches and (1) lo
production office located on the Alabama Gulf Caaddaldwin County, Alabama.
In connection with the acquisition, the Companyorded $1.3 million of goodwill and $.7 million obre deposit intangible. The ci
deposit intangible will be expensed over 10 yedlhe Company acquired the $124.2 million loan pdidfat a fair value discount of §
million. The discount represents expected credids, adjustments to market interest rates anidiligadjustments.

The amounts of the acquired identifiable assetdiabdities as of the acquisition date were asofok (dollars in thousands):

Purchase price

Cash $ 3,30(
Total purchase pric 3,30(
Identifiable asset:
Cash and due from ban 46,45(
Investments 2,50¢
Loans and lease 124,16!
Other Real Estal 87
Core deposit intangibl 68C
Personal and real prope! 10,65¢
Deferred tax asst 2,96¢
Other assets 1,03¢
Total asset 188,54t
Liabilities and equity
Deposits 185,77:
Other liabilities 73€
Total liabilities 186,50°
Net assets acquire 2,041
Goodwill resulting from acquisitio $ 1,25¢

The outstanding principal balance and the carrgimgunt of these loans included in the consolidatddnce sheet at December 31, 2013, are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding principal balan: $ 108,63¢
Carrying amoun 108,44:
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All loans obtained in the acquisition reflect nasific evidence of credit deterioration and verw lprobability that the Company would
unable to collect all contractually required priyadiand interest payments.

The amount of the revenue and earnings includeédeérCompanys consolidated income statement for the year ebdmgmber 31, 201
reflect only amounts from the acquisition date @frih30, 2013, through December 31, 2013. Histdrfoeancial information related

each loan and deposit acquired was impracticaéterthine due to retrospective application requisigmificant estimates of amounts 1
cannot be independently substantiated. Furtheelieve it is impossible to distinguish objectivéhjormation about those estimates

provides evidence of circumstances that existetherdates at which those amounts would be recogrimd measured under retrospec
application.

Expensesssociated with the acquisition were $30,000 and3®1,000 for the three and twelve month periodssdridecember 31, 20:
respectively. These costs included system convemia integrating operations charges as well aal l@gd consulting expenses, wt
have been expensed as incurred.

NOTE D— SECURITIES

A summary of the amortized cost and estimatedvaline of available-for-sale securities and heldvnigiurity securities at December
2013 and 2012, follows:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities

Obligations of U.S. Government Agenc $ 29,963,63 3 122,76 $ 124,49: $ 29,961,90
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states andicipal

subdivisions 107,676,08 1,937,58 1,535,03 108,078,63
Mortgage-backed securitie 78,770,40 810,37( 1,394,06 78,186,70
Corporate obligation 28,210,14 223,77¢ 1,582,00. 26,851,92
Other 1,255,48; - 283,98( 971,50«

$ 24587575 $ 3,094,49 $ 4,919,57! $ 244,050,67

Held-to-maturity securities

Mortgagebacked securitie $ 243843 $ - $ 74,00¢ $ 2,364,422
Taxable obligations of states and municipal sulsiivis 6,000,001 1,260,00! - 7,260,001
$ 8,438,43 $ 1,260,000 $ 74,006 $ 9,624,422
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December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities

Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 36,148,00 $ 231,81 $ 20,73 $ 36,359,07
Tax-exempt and taxable obligations of states andicimpal

subdivisions 95,113,06 3,823,24. 26,12: 98,910,18
Mortgagebacked securitie 60,384,18 1,596,67. 14,36 61,966,48
Corporate obligation 17,640,09 298,47: 1,751,81. 16,186,74
Other 1,255,48: - 285,30( 970,18:

$ 210,540,82 $ 5,950,19' $ 2,098,333 $ 214,392,68

Held-to-maturity securities

Mortgagebacked securitie $ 2470100 $ 84,79¢ $ - $ 2,554,89
Taxable obligations of states and municipal sulsitivis 6,000,00! - 1,499,40! 4,500,60!
$ 8,470,10: $ 84,79¢ $ 1,499,400 $ 7,055,49
The scheduled maturities of securities at DecerBbe2013, were as follows:
Available-for-Sale Held-to-Maturity
Estimated Estimated
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value

Due less than one ye $ 18,172,80 $ 18,263,17 $ - 8 =
Due after one year through five ye. 80,376,37 81,347,35 - -
Due after five years through ten ye 38,986,73 38,900,60 - -
Due after ten yeal 29,569,44 27,352,83 6,000,001 7,260,001
Mortgage-backed securities 78,770,40 78,186,70 2,438,43! 2,364,42

$ 245,875,75 $ 244,050,67 $ 8,438,43 $ 9,624,42

Actual maturities can differ from contractual métes because the obligations may be called orgidepwith or without penalties.

No gain or loss was realized from the sale of awdd-for-sale securities in 2013 or in 2012. Noeotthantemporary impairment loss
were recognized for the years ended 2013 and 2012.

Securities with a carrying value of $197,611,198 &459,725,903 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, ctrsply, were pledged to seci
public deposits, repurchase agreements, and fer ptirposes as required or permitted by law.

The details concerning securities classified agdaba-for-sale with unrealized losses as of Decendi, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:
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2013

Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government agenc $ 6,898,94! $ 124,49. $ - 8 - $ 6,898,94 $ 124,49:
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligations of statt
and municipal subdivisior 37,725,91 1,523,78! 1,297,79. 11,25¢ 39,023,70 1,535,03
Mortgagebacked securitie 39,540,66 1,394,06 - - 39,540,66 1,394,06
Corporate obligation 10,814,40 174,21( 3,386,22! 1,407,79. 14,200,63 1,582,00
Other - - 971,50: 283,98( 971,50: 283,98
$94,979,92 $ 3,216,541 $ 5,655,520 $ 1,703,02° $100,635,44 $ 4,919,57
2012
Losses < 12 Month Losses 12 Months or Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government agenc $ 5,063,920 $ 20,73t $ - 8 - $ 506392 $ 20,73t
Tax-exempt and tax- able obligations of stat¢
and municipal subdivisior 4,556,69! 26,00( 254,60! 121 4,811,30. 26,12
Mortgagebacked securitie - - 236,88t 14,36¢ 236,88t 14,36¢
Corporate obligation 978,60( 1,76¢ 2,668,16! 1,750,05! 3,646,76! 1,751,81.
Other - - 970,18 285,30( 970,18 285,30(
$10,599,22 $ 48,49¢ $ 4,129,84; $ 2,049,83" $14,729,06 $ 2,098,333

Approximately 38% of the number of securities ie thvestment portfolio at December 31, 2013, rédfié@n unrealized loss. Managen
is of the opinion the Company has the ability tddhthese securities until such time as the valwmwvers or the securities matt
Management also believes the deterioration in véuattributable to changes in market interestsrated lack of liquidity in the cre:
markets. We have determined that these securigesa other-than-temporarily impaired based upticigated cash flows.

NOTE E - LOANS

Loans typically provide higher yields than the ottyges of earning assets, and thus one of the @oygpgoals is for loans to be the lar
category of the Company's earning assets. At Deeerdb, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectiveinsiaccounted for 68.1% ¢
63.6% of earning assets. The Company controls atigates the inherent credit and liquidity risksagh the composition of its lo

portfolio.
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The following table shows the composition of thadgortfolio by category:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Percent c Percent ¢
Amount Total Amount Total
(Dollars in thousands
Mortgage loans held for sa $ 3,68( 0.6%0% 5,58t 1.4%
Commercial, financial and agricultut 81,79: 14.C 53,23¢ 12.¢
Real Estate
Mortgage-commercia 212,38t 36.4 142,04t 34.:
Mortgageresidentia 202,34: 34.1i 140,70: 34.C
Constructior 67,28’ 11.5 57,52¢ 13.¢
Consumer and other 15,81: 2.€ 14,60( 3.8
Total loans 583,30: 10% 413,69 10C%
Allowance for loan losses (5,729 (4,72))
Net loans $ 577,57 $ 408,97

In the context of this discussion, a "real estatetgage loan" is defined as any loan, other thiaa for construction purposes, secure
real estate, regardless of the purpose of the [6ha. Company follows the common practice of finahanstitutions in the Company’
market area of obtaining a security interest il estate whenever possible, in addition to any roéwailable collateral. This collateral
taken to reinforce the likelihood of the ultimatpayment of the loan and tends to increase the itndgnof the real estate loan portfc
component. Generally, the Company limits its loasvdlue ratio to 80%. Management attempts to maindéaconservative philosop
regarding its underwriting guidelines and belieitesill reduce the risk elements of its loan politicthrough strategies that diversify
lending mix.

Loans held for sale consist of mortgage loans waigid by the Bank and sold into the secondary ma@@mmitments from investors
purchase the loans are obtained upon origination.

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for Dedsan 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

(In thousands)

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of peri $ 4727 % 4,511
Loans charge-off:
Real Estatt (457) (821)
Installment and Othe (197) (209)
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture (105) (16€)
Total (759) (1,190
Recoveries on loans previously char-off:
Real Estatt 60C 83
Installment and Othe 66 7C
Commercial, Financial and Agriculture 18 25
Total 684 17¢
Net Charg-offs (75) (1,012
Provision for Loan Losses 1,07¢ 1,22¢
Balance at end of period $ 572¢ $ 4,725
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The following tables represent how the allowanaddan losses is allocated to a particular loaretsp well as the percentage of the cate
to total loans at December 31, 2013 and Decemhe2IP.

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands
% of loans

in each

category
Amount to total loan

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 582 14.(%
Commercial Real Esta 3,38¢ 57.2
Consumer Real Esta 1,427 25.2
Consume 17¢ 34
Unallocated 162 -
Total $ 5,72¢ 10(%

December 31, 201
(Dollars in thousands
% of loans
in each
category
Amount to total loan

Commercial Non Real Esta $ 42C 13.5%
Commercial Real Esta 3,33¢ 63.7
Consumer Real Esta 81C 19.C
Consume 151 4.C
Unallocated 8 -
Total $ 4,727 10(%

The following table represents the Companiyhpaired loans at December 31, 2013 and DeceB1he2012. This table excludes perforn
troubled debt restructurings.

December 3: December 3:
2013 2012
(In thousands

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans without a valuation allowar $ 75¢ $ 1,44¢

Impaired loans with a valuation allowance 4,071 2,144
Total impaired loans $ 483( $ 3,58¢
Allowance for loan losses on impaired loans atqeEnd 84¢ 93€
Total nonaccrual loar 3,181 3,401
Past due 90 days or more and still accrt 15¢ 15¢
Average investment in impaired loa 4,007 2,97¢
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The following table is a summary of interest redagd and cash-basis interest earned on impairets lm the years ended December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012:

2013 2012
Average of individually impaired loans during pet $ 3811 % 297¢
Interest income recognized during Impairm - -
Casl-basis interest income Recogniz 14¢ 50

The gross interest income that would have beerrdedoin the period that ended if the nonaccruatddaad been current in accordance
their original terms and had been outstanding thinout the period or since origination, if held foart of the twelve months for the ye
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was $43,000&h00p, respectively. The Company had no loan camerits to borrowers in non-
accrual status at December 31, 2013 and 2012 .

The following tables provide the ending balanceth@xCompany's loans (excluding mortgage loans foelsale) and allowance for loan
losses, broken down by portfolio segment as of B 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The tablepatwvide additional detail as to the
amount of our loans and allowance that corresporiddividual versus collective impairment evaluatidhe impairment evaluation
corresponds to the Company's systematic methoddtmggstimating its Allowance for Loan Losses.

December 31, 2013

Installment Commercial

and Financial an
Real Estatt Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatec $ 4,70¢ $ 39 % 82 % 4,83(

Collectively evaluated 473,83 19,72t 81,23t 574,79:
Total $ 47854. $ 19,76« $ 81,31f $ 579,62
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 804 $ 3 % 10 $ 84¢

Collectively evaluated 4,007 30C 572 4,87¢
Total $ 4,811 $ 33E $ 58z $ 5,72¢
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December 31, 2012

Installment Commercial

And Financial an
Real Estatt Other Agriculture Total
(In thousands

Loans

Individually evaluatec $ 4,111 $ 5t § 221 % 4,387

Collectively evaluated 333,29¢ 16,40: 54,02¢ 403,72
Total $ 337,40¢ $ 16,45¢ $ 54,24¢ $  408,11:
Allowance for Loan Losse

Individually evaluatec $ 917 $ 11C % 76 $ 1,102

Collectively evaluated 3,231 49 344 3,62¢
Total $ 4,14¢ $ 15¢ $ 42C $ 4,727

The following tables provide additional detail afpaired loans broken out according to class aseakhber 31, 2013 and 2012. The recc
investment included in the following table reprasecustomer balances net of any partial chaf@e+recognized on the loans, net of
deferred fees and costs. As nearly all of our imgzhloans at December 31, 2013 are on nonaccralsstrecorded investment excludes
insignificant amount of accrued interest receivatmeloans 9@ays or more past due and still accruing. The whpalance represents
recorded balance prior to any partial charge-offs.

December 31, 2013

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen Recognize(
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands
Impaired loans with no related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 3 3 3 3 - $ 45 $ -
Commercial real esta 358 35¢& - 1,03t 8
Consumer real esta 341 39¢ - 262 9
Consumer installment 4 4 - 5 -
Total $ 701 $ 75¢ $ - $ 1,347 $ 17
Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer $ 79 % 79 % 10 $ 42 $ 6
Commercial real esta 2,68¢ 2,68¢ 40C 2,147 10C
Consumer real esta 1,20z 1,27z 404 1,01¢ 21
Consumer installment 35 35 35 36 4
Total $ 4,001 $ 4,071 $ 84¢ $ 3,24¢  $ 131
Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer $ 82 % 82 % 10 $ 87 $ 6
Commercial real esta 3,03¢ 3,03¢ 40C 3,182 10€&
Consumer real esta 1,54: 1,671 404 1,281 30
Consumer installment 39 39 35 41 4
Total Impaired Loans $ 4,702 $ 4,83 $ 84¢ $ 4591 $ 14¢
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December 31, 2012

Impaired loans with no related allowance:

Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment

Total

Impaired loans with a related allowance:
Commercial installmer

Commercial real esta

Consumer real esta

Consumer installment

Total

Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial installmer
Commercial real esta
Consumer real esta
Consumer installment

Total Impaired Loans

Average Interest
Recordec Income
Recordec Unpaid Related Investmen Recognize(
Investmen Balance Allowance YTD YTD
(In thousands

15 % 15 % - 46 -

1,01z 1,52¢ - 1,00¢ 39

10€ 96¢ - 16€ 8

311 311 - 15€ 1

1,44t % 2,82¢ $ - 1,37¢ 48

20 % 20 % 73 178 8

1,54¢ 1,54¢ 747 1,54¢ 38

44 44 44 72 4

34¢ 34¢ 72 197 2

2,142 $ 2,14 $ 93¢ 1,98¢ 52

21€ % 21€ $ 73 21¢ 8

2,562 3,07¢ 747 2,55( 77

15C 1,01z 44 24C 12

65¢ 65¢ 72 352 3

358¢ $ 4,96¢ $ 93€ 3,36: 10C

52




The following tables provide additional detail odubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2013.

Outstanding Outstanding
Recordec Recordec Interest
Investment Investment Number of Income
Pre-Modification Pos-Modification Loans Recognizec

(in thousands except number of loa

Commercial installmer $ - % = - $ =
Commercial real esta 85¢ 85¢ 3 53
Consumer real esta 66 65 1 2
Consumer installment - - -

Total $ 924 $ 922 4 3 55

The balance of troubled debt restructurings at Béxeg 31, 2013 was $2.2 million, calculated for fagpry reporting purpose. Of the
amounts, $1.6 million were performing in accordaméth the modified terms. The remaining $.6 milliane on noraccrual. There wi
$80,000 in specific reserves established with retsfpethese loans as of December 31, 2013. As oEbber 31, 2013, the Company hau
additional amount committed on any loan classifisdroubled debt restructuring.

The recorded investment in loans for which thevedloce for loan losses was previously measured wndgeneral allowance for loan los
methodology and are now impaired under ASC Se@t1035 was $1,305,000. The allowance for loan lossescéted with those loa
on the basis of a current evaluation of loss wds@®. All loans were performing as agreed with ified terms.

During the twelve month period ending December2R11,3, the terms of 4 loans were modified as a TORes. modifications included one
the following or a combination of the following: mogity date extensions, interest only payments, rizaiions were extended beyond w
would be available on similar type loans, and paytnweaiver. No interest rate concessions were givethese nor were any of these Ic
written down.

The following tables summarize by class our lodasdified as past due in excess of 30 days or moagdition to those loans classifiec
non-accrual:

December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due
Past Due 90 Days or Total

30 to 89 More and Past Due and Total

Days Still Accruing Non-Accrual Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 47¢ % - 3 212 % 69C $ 67,287
Real Estat-mortgage 4,69¢ 142 2,45: 7,292 202,34:
Real Estat-non farm nonresidenti 252 - 507 75¢ 212,38t
Commercia 12 - 9 21 81,79:
Consumer 11E 16 - 131 15,81:
Total $ 555 $ 15¢ $ 3,181 $ 8,89: $ 579,62:
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December 31, 201
(In thousands

Past Due 90
Past Due Days or More Total

30to 89 and Still Past Due and Total

Days Accruing Non-Accrual Non-Accrual Loans
Real Estat-constructior $ 99C $ - $ 1,667 $ 2651 $ 57,52¢
Real Estat-mortgage 3,04¢ 147 98¢ 4,17¢ 140,70:
Real Estai-non farm nonresidentii 38¢ - 60¢ 997 142,04¢
Commercia 88 - 13t 223 53,23¢
Consumer 132 11 5 14¢ 14,60(
Total $ 464, $ 156 $ 3,401 $ 8,20 $ 408,11:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categdm@sed on relevant information about the abilitypofrowers to service their debt, suck
current financial information, historical paymentperience credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, am
other factors. The Company uses the following diédins for risk ratings, which are consistent witie definitions used in supervisi
guidance:

Special Mention. Loans classified as specialtinarhave a potential weakness that deserves marags close attention. If I
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may iasigterioration of the repayment prospects foritlae or of the Compang’credi
position at some future date.

Substandard. Loans classified as substandardaatequately protected by the current net worth @aying capacity of the oblig
or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so siféed have a welllefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardidathéation o
the debt. They are characterized by the distinssipdity that the Company will sustain some logghie deficiencies are r
corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have e weaknesses inherent in those classified astaswdzsd, with the add
characteristic that the weaknesses make colleotidiquidation in full, on the basis of currentlyisting facts, conditions, and valu
highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describedccess are considered to be pass
loans.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012hardd on the most recent analysis performed, shecétegory of loans by class
loans (excluding mortgage loans held for sale) agfollows:
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(In thousands
December 31, 2013

Pass
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful
Subtotal
Less:
Unearned Discount

Loans, net of unearned discount

December 31, 2012

Pass
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful
Subtotal
Less:
Unearned Discount

Loans, net of unearned discount

NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation and amortization as follows:

Premises

Land

Buildings and improvemen
Equipment
Construction in progress

Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate  Installment an Financial and

Commercia Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
$ 316,57, $ 145,78° $ 19,728 $ 80,087 $ 562,17
4,08¢ 32 - 1,03¢ 5,14¢
10,97 1,42¢ 39 22t 12,66:
331,62¢ 147,24! 19,76« 81,34¢ 579,98
23€ 97 - 27 36C
$ 331,39 $ 147,14¢ $ 19,76¢ $ 81,31¢ $ 579,62:

Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate  Installment an Financial and

Commercia Mortgage Other Agriculture Total
$ 241,92t $ 76,20t % 16,42¢ $ 53,88( $ 388,43t
5,65¢ 144 17 - 5,81¢
12,60¢ 1,05¢ 15 32C 14,00(
- - - 60 60
260,18! 77,40¢ 16,45¢ 54,26( 408,31
91 94 2 14 201
$ 260,09: $ 77,31 % 16,45¢ $ 54,24¢ $ 408,11

2013 2012

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

$ 9,891,751 $ 7,226,25
22,966,21 15,697,16

9,558,091 6,954,111
32,98¢ 11,47
42,449,04 29,888,99
10,377,29 7,646,15

$ 32,071,74 $ 22,242,83
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The amounts charged to operating expense for deficecwere $1,379,748 and $1,195,877 in 2013 &1® 2respectively.
NOTE G- DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denonaingtof $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2013284& was $116,623,516 ¢
$91,821,044, respectively.

At December 31, 2013, the scheduled maturitiegvd teposits included in interest-bearing depasitee as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2014 $ 134,35(
2015 34,57
2016 12,97:
2017 13,37:
2018 7,721
Thereafter -
NOTE H - BORROWED FUNDS
Borrowed funds consisted of the following:
December 31
2013 2012
Reverse Repurchase Agreem $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,001
FHLB advances 47,000,00 31,770,77

$ 52,000,00 $ 36,770,77

Advances from the FHLB have maturity dates randiogn January 2014 through June, 2019. Interesayaiple monthly at rates rang
from 0.13% to 2.22%. Advances due to the FHLB aslateralized by a blanket lien on first mortgagars in the amount of t
outstanding borrowings, FHLB capital stock, and ame on deposit with the FHLB. At December 31, 208HLB advances availat
and unused totaled $134,844,839.

Future annual principal repayment requirementsherbbrrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 201&enas follows:

Year Amount
2014 $ 41,000,000
2015 3,000,001
2016 -
2017 -
2018 -
2019 3,000,001
$ 47,000,00

56




Reverse Repurchase Agreements consist of one $60@&greement. The agreement is secured by sesuwith a fair value «
$6,530,592 at December 31, 2013 and $6,421,762etDber 31, 2012. The maturity date of the remgiagreement is September
2017 with a rate of 3.81%.

NOTE | — LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Company is committed under several long-teraratjng leases which provide for minimum lease payts Certain leases contain
options for renewal. Total rental expense undesdtoperating leases amounted to $249,000 and ®IR&Vof December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

The Company is also committed under one lterga capital lease agreement. The capital leasseawnt had an outstanding balanc
$1,286,000 and $1,415,000 at December 31, 2012@h2, respectively (included in other liabilitie$his lease has a remaining term
years at December 31, 2013. Assets related toahiéat lease are included in premises and equipemththe cost consists of $2.6 mill
less accumulated depreciation of approximately $85and $346,110 at December 31, 2013 and 2042ectvely.

Minimum future lease payments for the operating eaquital leases at December 31, 2013 were as fsllow
Operating

Leases Capital Leas
(In thousands

2014 $ 265 $ 16€
2015 23¢€ 16€
2016 22¢ 16¢
2017 167 191
2018 12€ 191
Thereafter 81€ 557
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 1,83¢ $ 1,43¢
Less: Amounts representing interest (159
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,28¢

NOTE J- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary bank are subjectdalatory capital requirements administered byefaebdbanking agencies. Failure
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate aiartmandatory and possibly additional discretionacgions by regulators that,
undertaken, could have a direct material effecttlvmn Companys financial statements. Under capital adequacy djjniels and tt
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actitiie Company and its subsidiary bank must meet Bpeeipital guidelines that invol
guantitative measures of assets, liabilities, aarthin offbalance sheet items as calculated under regulatmgunting practices. Cap
amounts and classifications are also subject tditgtiae judgment by regulators about componernitk weightings, and other rela
factors.
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To ensure capital adequacy, quantitative measwaes heen established by regulators, and thesereetiig Company and its subsidi
bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (sghfim the table below) of total and Tier | capifabk defined) to riskveighted asse
(as defined), and of Tier | capital to adjustedlaissets (leverage). Management believes, asadrblger 31, 2013, that the Company
its subsidiary bank exceeded all capital adequegyirements.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the subsidiary Iveask categorized by regulators as walpitalized under the regulatory framework
prompt corrective action. A financial institutios) ¢onsidered to be well-capitalized if it has altoisk-based capital ratio of 10% or mc
has a Tier | riskbased capital ratio of 6% or more, and has a Tievérage capital ratio of 5% or more. There arecanditions ¢
anticipated events that, in the opinion of managemeould change the categorization. The actuait@a@mounts and ratios at Decen
31, 2013 and 2012, are presented in the follownaidet No amount was deducted from capital for egkrate risk exposure.

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 88,50 13.2% $ 87,70° 13.2%
Tier | risk-basec 82,75t 12.59% 81,97¢ 12.4%
Tier | leverage 82,75¢ 9.(% 81,97¢ 8.€%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 66,08( 13.8% $ 65,04¢ 13.6%
Tier | risk-basec 61,35 12.€% 60,31¢ 12.7%
Tier | leverage 61,35: 8.€% 60,31¢ 8.4%

The minimum amounts of capital and ratios as estaddl by banking regulators at December 31, 2083812, were as follows:

Company Subsidiary
(Consolidated The First
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 53,02¢ 8.% $ 52,93t 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 26,51« 4.C% 26,467 4.C%
Tier | leverage 37,00: 4.(% 36,95¢ 4.(%
December 31, 201
Total risk-basec $ 38,27: 8.C% $ 38,16: 8.C%
Tier | risk-basec 19,13¢ 4.(% 19,08( 4.C%
Tier | leverage 28,71 4.(% 28,66 4.C%

The Companys dividends, if any, are expected to be made frond@hds received from its subsidiary bank. The Oidts dividends of
national bank in any calendar year to the net fwafi that year combined with the retained netigdbr the two preceding years.
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NOTE K- INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense are as fallows

Current:
Federal (benefit
State (benefit
Deferred (benefit)

The Company's income tax expense differs from theuamts computed by applying the federal incomestatutory rates to income bef

income taxes. A reconciliation of the differencess follows:

Income taxes at statutory re
Tax-exempt income

Nondeductible expens:

State income tax, net of federal tax efi
Tax credits

Other, net

Years Ended December <

2013 2012

$ (88,079 $ 1,000,41
(15,73 213,30
1,707,40. (136,34%)

$ 1,603,559 $ 1,077,337

Years Ended December

2013 2012

Amount % Amount %
$ 2,122,65! 34% $ 1,742,89 34%
(797,16 (13)% (745,595 (15)%
326,87 5% 233,00¢ 5%
(10,38¢) - 92,15¢ 2%
- - (295,80() (6)%
(38,379 - 50,72: 1%
$ 1,603,59. 260 $ 1,077,37! 21%

The components of deferred income taxes includéldrconsolidated financial statements were asviai

Deferred tax asset
Allowance for loan losse
Net operating loss carryov
Unrealized loss on availal-for-sale securitie
Other

Deferred tax liabilities
Securities
Premises and equipme
Unrealized gain on availal-for-sale securitie
Core deposit intangibl
Goodwill

Net deferred tax asset, included in other as

December 31

2013 2012
$ 1,980,19. $ 1,489,54
1,313,50. 652,06
620,52 -
1,113,76. 870,83:
5,027,98 _ 3,012,43
(97,91) (89,42)
(684,78) (986,689
- (1,309,63)
(239,369 (58,35¢)
(498,61)) (281,030)
(1,520,68) _ (2,725,14)
$ 3,507,300 $ 287,29
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With the acquisition of Wiggins in 2006 and Baldwin?2013, the Company assumed federal tax net tpgrioss carryovers. These
operating losses are available to the Company gfirdle year 2023 and 2033, respectively.

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic M@pme Taxeswhich prescribes a recognition threshold and memsent attribut
for the financial statement recognition and measerd of a tax position taken or expected to bertake tax return. ASC Topic 740 a
provides guidance on derecognition, classificatiatgerest and penalties, accounting in interim quisj disclosure and transition. As
December 31, 2013, the Company had no uncertaipdaitions that it believes should be recognizethanfinancial statements. The
years still subject to examination by taxing auities are years subsequent to 2008.

NOTE L - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company and its subsidiary bank provide a deflecompensation arrangement (401(k) plan) wheeshployees contribute
percentage of their compensation. For employeeribotibns of six percent or less, the Company dsdubsidiary bank provide a 5
matching contribution. Contributions totaled $2453n 2013 and $189,519 in 2012.

The Company sponsors an Employee Stock Ownerskip @ESOP) for employees who have completed one gkaervice for th
Company and attained age 21. Employees becomeviedied after five years of service. Contributitmshe plan are at the discretior
the Board of Directors. At December 31, 2013, ti8OP held 6,022 shares of Company common stock addb debt obligation. £
shares held by the plan were considered outstarfdinget income per share purposes. Total ESOPresepwas $22,785 for 2013 ¢
$20,310 for 2012.

NOTE M - STOCK PLANS

In 2007, the Company adopted the 2007 Stock Imeerfilan. The 2007 Plan provides for the issuarfcepoto 315,000 shares
Company Common Stock, $1.00 par value per shahereS issued under the 2007 Plan may consist itevdran part of authorized t
unissued shares or treasury shares. Through tireeyeled December 31, 2009, no shares were isswkst this Plan. During the ye
ended December 31, 2012, 42,785 nonvested redtrstoek awards were granted under the Plan. Duliagyear ended December
2013, 52,653 nonvested restricted stock awards wyereted under the Plan and 12,740 stock awards feefeited due to separatis
During 2013, 1,788 shares were repurchased for payof taxes. The weighted average gdate fair value for these shares was $1
per share. Compensation costs in the amount of, $3%was recognized for the year ended Decembe2®1 and $263,216 for the y
ended December 31, 2012. Shares of restricted gi@eked to employees under this stock plan arsuto restrictions as to the vesi
period. The restricted stock award becomes 100%edem the earliest of 1) the three year vestimipdeprovided the Grantee has
incurred a termination of employment prior to tidate, 2) the Grantee’s retirement, or 3) the Gedstdeath. During this period, 1
holder is entitled to full voting rights and dividds. As of December 31, 2013, there was approxiyn&@32,000 of unrecogniz
compensation cost related to this Plan. The castpected to be recognized over the remaining tdrtine vesting period (approximatel
years).
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NOTE N- SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On June 30, 2006, the Company issued $4,124,00foating rate junior subordinated deferrable ins¢rdebentures to The Fi
Bancshares Statutory Trust 2 in which the Compamgsoall of the common equity. The debentures agestile asset of the Trust. ~
Trust issued $4,000,000 of Trust Preferred Seesri{TPSs) to investors. The Compangbligations under the debentures and re
documents, taken together, constitute a full ancboditional guarantee by the Company of the Tsusbligations under the prefer
securities. The preferred securities were redeamiaplthe Company in 2011, or earlier in the evhetdeduction of related interest
federal income taxes is prohibited, treatment a3 Ticapital is no longer permitted, or certainesticontingencies arise. The prefe
securities must be redeemed upon maturity of tHeemteires in 2036. Interest on the preferred seesris the three month Lond
Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.65% and is gagaquarterly. The terms of the subordinated dabestare identical to those of
preferred securities. On July 27, 2007, the Compssiyed $6,186,000 of floating rate junior suboatial deferrable interest debenture
The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3 in whichGoenpany owns all of the common equity. The delrestare the sole asset of Trus
The Trust issued $6,000,000 of Trust Preferred @&z (TPSs) to investors. The Compangbligations under the debentures and re
documents, taken together, constitute a full ancboditional guarantee by the Company of the Tsusbligations under the prefer
securities. The preferred securities are redeemaplihe Company in 2012, or earlier in the evemt deduction of related interest
federal income taxes is prohibited, treatment &3 Ticapital is no longer permitted, or certaineotbontingencies arise. The prefe
securities must be redeemed upon maturity of themkeires in 2037. Interest on the preferred seéesinis the three month LIBOR p
1.40% and is payable quarterly. The terms of thmslinated debentures are identical to those ofptkéerred securities. In accorda
with the provisions of ASC Topic 81Qonsolidationthe trusts are not included in the consolidatedrfaial statements.

NOTE O- TREASURY STOCK
Shares held in treasury totaled 26,494 at Deceihe2013, and 2012.
NOTE P- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of business, the Bank makassido its directors and executive officers anddmpanies in which they haw
significant ownership interest. In the opinion aimagement, these loans are made on substantialsathe terms, including interest ri
and collateral, as those prevailing at the timeclmmparable transactions with other parties, arsistent with sound banking practic
and are within applicable regulatory and lendingitiations. Such loans amounted to approximateh@®B000 and $9,683,000
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Theigctivloans to current directors, executive offigeand their affiliates during the y
ended December 31, 2013, is summarized as followbgusands):

Loans outstanding at beginning of yi $ 9,68:
New loans 57€
Repayments (1,289
Loans outstanding at end of year $ 8,971
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NOTE Q- COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS OFCREDIT RISK

In the normal course of business, there are oustgrvarious commitments and contingent liabilitiegch as guaranties, commitment
extend credit, etc., which are not reflected indseompanying financial statements. The subsidiank had outstanding letters of cr
of $675,000 and $574,000 at December 31, 2013 ahd, 2espectively, and had made loan commitmengppfoximately $113,372,0
and $63,583,000 at December 31, 2013 and 201Zcteeply.

Commitments to extend credit and letters of credilude some exposure to credit loss in the evémioaperformance of the custorr
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to feral customer as long as there is no violatiomrgf condition established in 1
contract. Standby letters of credit are conditiot@mhmitments issued by the Bank to guarantee thferpgance of a customer to a tr
party. The credit policies and procedures for stmnmitments are the same as those used for leadingties. Because these instrum
have fixed maturity dates and because a numbereewpihout being drawn upon, they generally do pr@sent any significant liquidi
risk. No significant losses on commitments wereaiined during the two years ended December 31, 20dr3are any significant losses
result of these transactions anticipated.

The primary market area served by the Bank is Bgrteamar, Jones, Pearl River, Jackson, HancookeStand Harrison Counties wit
South Mississippi, as well as Washington Parish &bd Tammany Parish in Louisiana and Baldwin CouimtySouth Alabami
Management closely monitors its credit concentregtiand attempts to diversify the portfolio withits primary market area. As
December 31, 2013, management does not considerttheée any significant credit concentrations witihe loan portfolio. Although tt
Bank’s loan portfolio, as well as existing commitmemnflects the diversity of its primary market areasubstantial portion of
borrower's ability to repay a loan is dependentnuiiie economic stability of the area.

NOTE R- FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company follows the guidance of ASC Topic 8B@ir Value Measurements and Disclosurésat establishes a framework
measuring fair value and expands disclosures daoutalue measurements.

The guidance defines the fair value as the priaewould be received to sell an asset or paidatasfier a liability in an orderly transact
between market participants at the measurement ldatso establishes a fair value hierarchy whistjuires an entity to maximize the
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unoladgde inputs when measuring fair value.

In accordance with the guidance, the Company grdaspnancial assets and financial liabilities ree@d at fair value in three leve
based on the markets in which the assets andifiebiare traded and the reliability of the assuoms used to determine fair value. Tt

levels are:
Level 1: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded iniva&ciexchange markets, such as the New York Stoath&hge
Valuations are obtained from readily available ipgcsources for market transactions involving idtsaitassets «
liabilities.
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Level 2: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded irslastive dealer or broker markets. Valuations atained from thir
party pricing services for identical or comparadésets or liabilities which use observable inptiteiothan Level
prices, such as quoted prices for similar assetmbitities; quoted prices in markets that are aotive; or othe
inputs that are observable or can be corroborayedbservable market data for substantially the tedin of th
assets and liabilitie:

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by litle@market activity and that are significant to tai value of th
assets or liabilities

Following is a description of the valuation methlmgdes used for instruments measured at fair vafua recurring basis and recognized ir
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Available-for-Sale Securities

The fair value of available-fasale securities is determined by various valuati@thodologies. Where quoted market prices areablaiin ai
active market, securities are classified within élel. Level 1 securities include mutual funds.ubted market prices are not available, then
fair values are estimated by using pricing modelgumted prices of securities with similar chardsties. Level 2 securities include U.S.
Treasury securities, obligations of U.S. governnoemporations and agencies, obligations of statdspalitical subdivisions, mortgage-
backed securities and collateralized mortgage atitigs. In certain cases where Level 1 or Levelgiis are not available, securities are
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.

The following table presents the Company’s avaddbl-sale securities that are measured at fairevah a recurring basis and the level
within the hierarchy in which the fair value measuents fell as of December 31, 2013 and Decemhe2@3P (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 2013
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 29,96: $ -8 29,96: $ =
Municipal securitie: 108,07¢ - 108,07¢ -
Mortgagebacked securitie 78,18 - 78,18 -
Corporate obligation 26,85 - 24,05¢ 2,79¢
Other 972 972 - -
Total $ 244,05, $ 97z $ 240,28. $ 2,79¢
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Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

December 31, 2012
Obligations of U.S. Government agenc $ 36,35¢ $ - 8 36,35¢ $ =
Municipal securitie: 98,91( - 98,91( -
Mortgagebacked securitie 61,967 - 61,96 -
Corporate obligation 16,181 - 13,51¢ 2,66¢
Other 97C 97C = =
Total $ 214,39: $ 97C $ 210,75 $ 2,66¢

The following is a reconciliation of activity foisaets measured at fair value based on signifigastiservable (non-market) information.

Bank-Issued Trust
Trust Preferred
(In thousands) Securities

2013 2012
Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at Janus $ 2,66t $ 2,25
Transfers into Level - -
Transfers out of Level - -
Unrealized income included in comprehensive income 13C 41€

Balance of recurring Level 3 assets at December 31 $ 2,79t $ 2,66¢

The following table presents quantitative inforroatabout recurring Level 3 fair value measureméntthousands):

Trust Preferred Significant
Securities Fair Value Valuation Technigut Unobservable Inpul Range of Input
December 31, 201 $ 2,79¢ Discounted cash floy Probability of defaul 0-100%
December 31, 201 2,66¢ Discounted cash floy Probability of defaul 0-100%
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Following is a description of the valuation methlodges used for assets and liabilities measurddiatvalue on a nomecurring basis at
recognized in the accompanying balance sheets elisaw the general classification of such assetkliabilities pursuant to the valuati
hierarchy.

Impaired Loans

Loans for which it is probable that the Companyl wilt collect all principal and interest due acdongdto contractual terms are measure(
impairment. Allowable methods for estimating fa@we include using the fair value of the collatdaalcollateral dependent loans or, whe
loan is determined not to be collateral dependesihg the discounted cash flow method.

If the impaired loan is identified as collaterapdadent, then the fair value method of measuriegatimount of impairment is utilized. T
method requires obtaining a current independentaégad of the collateral and applying a discourtda to the value. If the impaired loar
determined not to be collateral dependent, themligeounted cash flow method is used. This metkeqdires the impaired loan to be recol
at the present value of expected future cash fldissounted at the loas'effective interest rate. The effective interegerof a loan is tt
contractual interest rate adjusted for any netrdedeloan fees or costs, premiums or discountgiegisit origination or acquisition of the lo
Impaired loans are classified within Level 2 of fa& value hierarchy.

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned consists of propertiesradatahrough foreclosure. The adjustment at the tihforeclosure is recorded through
allowance for loan losses. Fair value of other esdate owned is based on current independentiaglsraDue to the subjective nature
establishing the fair value when the asset is aeduihe actual fair value of the other real estateed or foreclosed asset could differ f
the original estimate. If it is determined the faalue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valualowance is recorded through of
income. Operating costs associated with the assfets acquisition are also recorded as mdarest expense. Gains and losses ol
disposition of other real estate owned and foretlogssets are netted and posted to other incorher @tal estate owned measured a
value on a nomecurring basis at December 31, 2013, amounted ® illion. Other real estate owned is classifiéthin Level 2 of the fa
value hierarchy.

The following table presents the fair value measenet of assets and liabilities measured at fainevaln a nonrecurring basis and the |
within the fair value hierarchy in which the famlue measurements fell at December 31, 2013 andrblger 31, 2012 (in thousands).
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Fair Value Measurements Usi
Quoted Prices Significant

Active Markets Other Significant
For Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2013
Impaired loan $ 4,830 $ - 8 483 $ =
Other real estate ownt 4,47(C - 4,47( -
December 31, 2012
Impaired loan: $ 3,58¢ $ - 8 3,58¢ $ -
Other real estate own 6,782 - 6,782 -

The following methods and assumptions were usegbtinate the fair value of each class of finanicisirument for which it is practicable
estimate that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents For such short-term instruments, the carryinguam@ a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment in securities availak-for-sale and held-to-maturity- The fair value measurement for securities avkgtidr-sale was discuss
earlier. The same measurement approach was usseddarities held-to-maturity and other securities.

Loans— The fair value of loans is estimated by discountimg future cash flows using the current rateshathsimilar loans would be ma
to borrowers with similar credit ratings and foe ttame remaining maturities.

Bank-owned Life Insurance- The fair value of bankwned life insurance approximates the carrying amhobecause upon liquidation
these investments, the Company would receive tsle sarrender value which equals the carrying amount

Deposits— The fair values of demand deposits are, as requiyedSC Topic 825, equal to the carrying value ofts deposits. Dema
deposits include noninterelsearing demand deposits, savings accounts, NOWuats;ocand money market demand accounts. The fhie
of variable rate term deposits, those repricinghimitsix months or less, approximates the carryialye of these deposits. Discounted
flows have been used to value fixed rate term depasd variable rate term deposits repricing aigrmonths. The discount rate use
based on interest rates currently being offeredaonparable deposits as to amount and term.
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Short-Term Borrowings— The carrying value of any federal funds purchas®diother short-term borrowings approximates ttagirvalues.

FHLB and Other Borrowings— The fair value of the fixed rate borrowings areirated using discounted cash flows, based on ci
incremental borrowing rates for similar types ofrowing arrangements. The carrying amount of amabte rate borrowing approximates
fair value.

Subordinated Debenture- The subordinated debentures bear interest at ablanate and the carrying value approximatesahesélue.
Off-Balance Sheet Instruments- Fair values of ofbalance sheet financial instruments are based es ¢barged to enter into sim

agreements. However, commitments to extend cremihat represent a significant value until such catmants are funded or clos
Management has determined that these instrumentstdwave a distinguishable fair value and novalue has been assigned.

As of December 31, 2013 Fair Value Measuremen
Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Prices Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Instruments
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 39,25 $ 39,25 $ 39,25: $ - $ =
Securities availab-for-sale 244,05: 244,05: 972 240,28: 2,79¢
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,43¢ 9,62¢ - 9,62¢ -
Other securitie 5,53¢ 5,53¢ - 5,53¢ -
Loans, ne 577,57 590,86t - - 590,86t
Bank-owned life insuranc 6,59: 6,59: - 6,59: -
Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 144,62: $ 144,62: $ - 8 144,62: $ >
Interes-bearing deposit 635,34" 634,90° - 634,90° -
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( - - 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 52,00( 52,00( - 52,00( -

67




As of December 31, 2012 Fair Value Measuremen

Significant
Other Significant
Quoted Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Prices Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Instruments
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 30,877 $ 30,877 $ 30,877 $ - $ =
Securities availab-for-sale 214,39: 214,39: 97C 210,75" 2,66¢
Securities hel-to-maturity 8,47( 7,05t - 7,05t -
Other securitie 3,43¢ 3,43¢ - 3,43¢ -
Loans, ne 408,97( 422,02 - - 422,02¢
Bank-owned life insuranc 6,441 6,441 - 6,441 -
Liabilities:
Noninteres-bearing deposit $ 109,62 $ 109,62 $ - % 109,62 $ =
Interes-bearing deposit 487,00: 487,59¢ - 487,59¢ -
Subordinated debentur 10,31( 10,31( - - 10,31(
FHLB and other borrowing 36,77 36,77: - 36,77: -

NOTE S- SENIOR PREFERRED STOCK

On February 6, 2009, as part of the U.S. DepartoEfhteasury’s (“Treasury”) Capital Purchase ProgiaCPP”),the Company receivi
a $5.0 million equity investment by issuing 5 thaud shares of Series A, no par value preferrek $tothe Treasury pursuant to a Le
Agreement and Securities Purchase Agreement thappweviously disclosed by the Company. The Compsy issued a warrant to
Treasury allowing it to purchase 54,705 shareshef Companys common stock at an exercise price of $13.71. Wwagant can t
exercised immediately and has a term of 10 years.

The nonvoting Series A preferred shares issued, with aidation preference of $1 thousand per share, pall a cumulative ca
dividend quarterly at 5% per annum during the fiige years the preferred shares are outstandesggtting to 9% thereafter if r
redeemed. The CPP also includes certain restriction dividend payments of the Companyower ranking equity and the ability
purchase its outstanding common shares.

The Company allocated the proceeds received frenTthasury, net of transaction costs, on a prolrasés to the Series A preferred si
and the warrant based on their relative fair valdée Company assigned $.3 million and $4.7 milliorthe warrant and the Serie:
preferred stock, respectively. The resulting distaan the Series A preferred stock is being acdrefe to the $5.0 million liquidatic
amount at the time of the exchange discussed ifotleaving paragraph.
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On September 29, 2010, and pursuant to the terrtteedetter agreement between the Company and itedJStates Department of
Treasury (“Treasury”the Company closed a transaction whereby Treasuntyamged its 5,000 shares of Fixed Rate Cumul&erpetus
Preferred Stock, Series UST, (The “CPP Preferrearesti) for 5,000 shares of a new series of preferred stiedignated Fixed Ré
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series CB (@DCI Preferred Shares"Pn the same day, and pursuant to the terms ofketts
agreement between the Company and Treasury, th@&uonissued an additional 12,123 CDCI Preferred&hiam Treasury for a purchi
price of $12,123,000. As a result of the CDCI Temt®ns, the Company is no longer participatinthimn TARP Capital Purchase Progi
being administered by Treasury and is now parttgigain Treasury’s TARP Community Development Caplnitiative (the “CDCI).
The terms of the CDCI Transactions are more fudlyferth in the Exchange Letter Agreement and tinelfase Letter Agreement.

The Letter Agreement, pursuant to which the Pretei$hares were exchanged, contains limitationsherpayment of dividends on
common stock to no more than 100% of the aggrguetshare dividend and distributions for the imragsglprior fiscal year (dividends
$0.15 per share were declared and paid in 20101,281d 2012) and on the Companybility to repurchase its common stock,
continues to subject the Company to certain ofetkecutive compensation limitations included in Braergency Economic Stabilizati
Act of 2008 (EESA), as previously disclosed by @mmpany.

The most significant difference in terms between@DCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Preferred Sisaifee dividend rate applicable
each. The CPP Preferred Shares entitled the htudir annual dividend of 5% of the liquidation \alf the shares, payable quarterl
arrears; by contrast, the CDCI Preferred Sharafiectite holder to an annual dividend of 2% of kiqeidation value of the shares, pay:
quarterly in arrears. Other differences in termsnvbeen the CDCI Preferred Shares and the CPP Redfé&hares, include, withc
limitation, the restrictions on common stock divide and on redemption of common stock and otharrgies exist. The terms of t
CDCI Preferred Shares are more fully set forthtia Articles of Amendment creating the CDCI Prefér&hares, which Articles
Amendment were filed with the Mississippi Secretafbtate on September 27, 2010.

As a condition to participation in the CDCI, the Mjpany was required to obtain certification as a @amity Development Financ
Institution (a “CDFI”) from Treasurg Community Development Financial Fund. On Septer@Be 2010, the Company was notified
its application for CDFI certification had been emyed. In order to become certified and maintasrcértification as a CDFI, the Compi
is required to meet the CDFI eligibility requirenieset forth in 12 C.F.R. 1805.201(b).
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NOTE T- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On March 3, 2014, The First Bancshares, Inc. a isEg®pi corporation (“The First"gntered into an Agreement and Plan of Merget
“Agreement”) with BCB Holding Company, Inc. an Akaina corporation (“BCB")and parent of Bay Bank, Mobile, Alabama.
Agreement provides that, upon the terms and subgeitte conditions set forth in the Agreement, B&iB merge with and into The Fit
(the “Merger”) and Bay Bank will merge with andanthe First, A National Banking Association (“BaMerger”). Subject to the tern
and conditions of the Agreement, which has beemosegl by the Boards of Directors of The First andBB each outstanding share
BCB common stock, other than shares held by Thst leir BCB, or, shares with respect to which thedbd thereof have perfec
dissenterstights, will receive (i) for the BCB common stodkat was outstanding prior to August 1, 2013, $3é0share which may
received in cash or The First common stock provithed at least 30% of the aggregate consideratiohtp such shareholders is in FB
common stock and one non-transferable contingdoevéght (“CVR”) of the CVR Consideration, and (ii) for the BCB coomrstock the
was issued on August 1, 2013, $2.25 per sharesin. &ach CVR is eligible to receive a cash payregnal to up to $0.40, with the ex
amount based on the resolution of certain idewtiBE€B loans over a thregear period following the closing of the transacti®ayout ¢
the CVR will be overseen by a special committe¢hefFBMS Board of Directors. FBMS will also eitreessume or redeem in full a n
payable by BCB to Alostar Bank as well as the prefi stock issued under the U.S. Treasui@apital Purchase Program. The !
consideration to be paid in connection with theugition will range between approximately $6,239,&hd $6,611,762 depending u
the payout of the CVR as well as the price of tBMIS common stock on the closing of the transactwinich is subject to a cap an
collar regarding its price.

The transaction is expected to close in the seqoader of 2014.

Concurrently, The First and BCB will enter into agreement and plan of merger pursuant to which B@Biolly-owned subsidiary, B
Bank, will be merged with and into The First's wigebwned subsidiary, The First, A National Bankifigsociation.

NOTE U - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The balance sheets, statements of income and loaghfbr The First Bancshares, Inc. (parent companiy) follow.
Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31

2013 2012
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8,31« $ 48,52¢
Investment in subsidiary bai 94,311,64 74,851,30
Investments in statutory trus 310,00( 310,00(
Other securitie 100,00( 100,00(
Premises and equipme 368,62: 368,62:
Other 511,74. 599,19.

$ 95610,32 $ 76,277,64

Liabilities and Stockholde’ Equity:

Subordinated debentur 10,310,00 10,310,00
Other 191,98: 82,17¢
Stockholders’ equity 85,108,34 65,885,46

$ 95610,32 $ 76,277,64
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Condensed Statements of Income

Income:
Interest and dividenc
Dividend income
Other

Expenses
Interest on borrowed func
Legal
Other

Income before income taxes and equity in undisteibincome of subsidial
Income tax benefit

Income before equity in undistributed income ofsdiary

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary

Net income

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskl is@perating activities
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiz
Restricted stock expen
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activitie
Investment in subsidiary bank
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitie
Dividends paid on common sto
Dividends paid on preferred sto
Repurchase of restricted stock for payment of ti
Issuance of 1,951,220 common shares, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Years Ended December :

2013 2012
$ 561C $ 6,212
3,100,00! 980,00(
3,105,611 986,21.
186,58: 206,59:
773,16 112,20:
810,32 404,44
1,770,06 723,24
1,335,54. 262,96¢
511,74 169,27:
1,847,28 432,24,
2,792,20! 3,616,52!
$ 463949 $  4,048,76

Years Ended December

2013 2012
$  4,639,49 $  4,048,76
(2,792,20) (3,616,52)
391,77 263,21
181,92 157,88:
2,420,908 853,34
(20,450,00) -
(20,450,00) -
(600,45) (453,109
(342,46() (342,46)
(26,749 (15,64
18,958,46 -
17,988,80 (811,20)
(40,21)) 42,13¢
48,52t 6,391
$ 83l $ 48,52t




NOTE V- SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FEESHARE AMOUNTS (UNAUDITED)

2013
Total interest incom
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Total nor-interest incom
Total nor-interest expens
Income tax expense
Net income
Preferred dividends and stock accretion
Net income applicable to common Stockholders

Per common shar
Net income, basi
Net income, dilutet
Cash dividends declart

2012
Total interest incom
Total interest expense
Net interest incom
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Total nor-interest income
Total nor-interest expens
Income tax expense
Net income
Preferred dividends and stock accretion
Net income applicable to common Stockholc

Per common sharn
Net income, basi
Net income, dilutet
Cash dividends declar

Three Months Ende
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March 31 June 3( Sept. 3C Dec. 31
(In thousands, except per share amot

$ 6,65( 7,60¢ 8,64¢ 8,411
75¢ 822 69C 64E

5,891 6,78¢ 7,95¢ 7,76¢€

311 34¢ 36C 59

5,58( 6,437 7,59¢ 7,707

1,93( 1,89( 1,59 1,671

5,97¢ 7,24 7,63( 7,30¢

30€ 27C 45€ 572

1,22¢ 81z 1,104 1,49¢

10€ 10€ 10€ 10€

$ 1,11¢ 70€ 99¢ 1,392
$ .3€ 18 .2C 27
235 A8 19 27

.037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢

$ 6,66¢ 6,60¢ 6,45¢ 6,597
1,181 1,101 1,02¢ 827

5,48t 5,50¢ 5,431 5,77C

152 221 371 484

5,33¢ 5,287 5,06( 5,28¢

1,47¢ 1,51C 1,51¢ 1,821

5,527 5,414 5,437 5,791

31t 34¢ 26¢ 14¢

971 1,037 872 1,16¢

10€ 10€ 10€ 10€

$ 865 931 76€ 1,06z
$ .28 .3C 325 .34
.28 .3C .24 .34

.037¢ .037¢ .037¢ .037¢




EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE FIRST BANCSHARES, INC.

The First, A National Banking Association
(a nationally chartered banking association)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 2
(Delaware statutory trust)

The First Bancshares Statutory Trust 3
(Delaware statutory trust)




EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N&-BA1996) and Form S-3 (No. 333-
188922) of the First Bancshares, Inc. of our repated March 31, 2014, with respect to the conatdid financial statements of The F
Bancshares, Inc., included in the 2013 Annual Repof~orm 10-K of The First Bancshares, Inc. f& ylear ended December 31, 2013.

/s/ T. E.LOTT & COMPANY

Columbus, Mississipy
March 31, 201«




EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATIONS

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The First Bancshares, In

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures as of the end of the period coumyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 31, 201
/s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKhe First Bancshares, Inc. ;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the statements matightrof the circumstances under which such stateseere made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this ref

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angdtfie periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f))for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

b. Designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures as of the end of the period coumyehis report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: March 31, 201
/sl Dee Dee Lower

Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATIONS
I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr. Chief Executive Officeertify that
this periodic report containing financial statensefioly complies with the requirements of secti@tal) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #nad information contained in the periodic repaiitlf presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rapons of the issuer.
Date: March 31, 201
/sl M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Chief Executive Office

I, Dee Dee Lowery, Chief Financial Officer, certtfyat

this periodic report containing financial statensefioilly complies with the requirements of secti@fd) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) #urad information contained in the periodic repaiitlfy presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results @rapons of the issuer.

Date: March 31, 201

/s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 99.1
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Jr., certify, based on molledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatiddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgezdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,gbnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensaaois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirstdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bameshk, Inc. has identified and limited during anyt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfi@stires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgtion plan and identified any features of the pheat could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdrazes, Inc. to enhance the compensation of armgegland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)weho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEQ@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowgdttr the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessatpipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mostlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimeiér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the mpayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régokand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiiibesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(i) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employeasttomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved,




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that wasRP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecant, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of diresaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshas engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertficesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfmayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaimtTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#in,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order aflleffannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.geefor example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, J

M. Ray (Hoppy) Cole, Ji
Principal Executive Office

Date: March 20, 201




EXHIBIT 99.2
EESA CERTIFICATION

I, Dee Dee Lowery, certify, based on my knowledbat:

(i) The compensation committee of The First Banoshidnc. has discussed, reviewed, and evaluatiddsenior risk officers at least
every six months during any part of the most rdgezdmpleted fiscal year that was a TARP period,gbnior executive officer (SEO)
compensation plans and the employee compensaaois phd the risks these plans pose to The FirstdBares, Inc.;

(i) The compensation committee of The First Bameshk, Inc. has identified and limited during anyt pdthe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period any featureh®fSEO compensation plans that could lead SE@&kéounnecessary and excessive risks
that could threaten the value of The First Banas$ydnc., and has identified any features of thpleyee compensation plans that pose risks
to The First Bancshares, Inc. and has limited tfiestires to ensure that The First Bancsharesidmat unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The compensation committee has reviewedeas$t every six months during any part of the mesemtly completed fiscal year that
was a TARP period, the terms of each employee cosgtion plan and identified any features of the et could encourage the
manipulation of reported earnings of The First Bdrazes, Inc. to enhance the compensation of armgeland has limited any such
features;

(iv) The compensation committee of The First Baacsh, Inc. will certify to the reviews of the SEQmpensation plans and employee
compensation plans required under (i) and (iii)weho

(v) The compensation committee of The First Baneshadnc. will provide a narrative description @it limited during any part of the
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARRod the features in

(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEQ@aki® unnecessary and excessive risks that cowgdttr the value of The First
Bancshares, Inc

(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessapipse The First Bancshares, Inc. to risks; and

(C) Employee compensation plans that could enceutfagy manipulation of reported earnings of ThetBemcshares, Inc. to enhance the
compensation of an employee;

(vi) The First Bancshares, Inc. has required bgraysnents to SEOs or any of the next twenty mostlhigompensated employees, as
defined in the regulations and guidance establisimeiér section 111 of EESA (bonus payments), bgesuto a recovery or “clawback”
provision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially
inaccurate financial statements or any other naltgiinaccurate performance metric criteria;

(vii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited golden parachute payment, as defined in the régotand guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to an SEO or any of the niset fnost highly compensated employees during anygbdahe most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has limited bopagments to its applicable employees in accordaiiitesection 111 of EESA and the
regulations and guidance established thereundarglany part of the most recently completed fisear that was a TARP period;

(i) The First Bancshares, Inc. and its employeasttomplied with the excessive or luxury expendgipolicy, as defined in the
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, during any part of the most recentignpleted fiscal year that was a TARP
period; and any expenses that, pursuant to theypotquired approval of the board of directorspmmittee of the board of directors, an
SEO, or an executive officer with a similar levéresponsibility were properly approved,;




(x) The First Bancshares, Inc. will permit a nonédng shareholder resolution in compliance with applicable Federal securities rules
and regulations on the disclosures provided urtdeFederal securities laws related to SEO compiengaaid or accrued during any part of
the most recently completed fiscal year that wasRP period;

(xi) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose timecant, nature, and justification for the offerimlyiring any part of the most recently
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period, of gerquisites, as defined in the regulations aridamece established under section 111 of
EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,000 for anyl@rap who is subject to the bonus payment limitetimentified in paragraph (viii);

(xii) The First Bancshares, Inc. will disclose whet The First Bancshares, Inc., the board of diresaf The First Bancshares, Inc. or the
compensation committee of The First Bancshareshas engaged during any part of the most recentiypleted fiscal year that was a TA
period, a compensation consultant; and the sertficesompensation consultant or any affiliate ef tompensation consultant provided
during this period;

(xiii) The First Bancshares, Inc. has prohibited gfmayment of any gross-ups, as defined in the a¢ignk and guidance established under
section 111 of EESA, to the SEOs and the next tyverast highly compensated employees during anygidhte most recently completed
fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has substant@diyplied with all other requirements related to lype compensation that are provided
in the agreement between The First BancsharesaimtTreasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The First Bancshares, Inc. has submitted #a3ury a complete and accurate list of the SEOshentiventy next most highly
compensated employees for the current fiscal ye#in,the non-SEOs ranked in descending order aflleffannual compensation, and with
the name, title, and employer of each SEO and highty compensated employee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection wiih ¢ertification may be punished by
fine, imprisonment, or both.geefor example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

By: /s/ Dee Dee Lower
Dee Dee Lowen
Principal Financial Office

Date: March 20, 201




